
 

 

 
 

        
Town Hall – 11 S. Main Street, Pittsford – Lower Level 

Tuesday, April 5, 2022 – 6:00 PM  
 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Public Hearing: Sewer District Extension JH-160 
 
Presentation by Director of IT Joy Brown 
 
Minutes 
            Approval of Minutes of Meeting of March 15, 2022 
 
Legal Matters 

Public Comment 
Kilbourn Place – Termination of Sewer Easement 
Agreement with Toshiba American Business Solutions for Docuware Cloud Service 
 

Financial Matters 
Public Comment 
Budget Transfers  
Vouchers 
Surplus 
Acknowledging Auditor’s Financial Review of Justice Court Records for 2021 
 

Operational Matters 
Public Comment 
Renewal of RG&E Auburn Trail License 
Set Bid Date for Installation and Repair of Concrete Sidewalks 
 

Recreation Matters 
            Public Comment 
            2022 Summer Programs 
            2022 Event Infrastructure Contracts  
            Board Discussion: ARPA Funding for Regulation-Sized Pickleball Courts 
 
Personnel Matters 

Public Comment 
Hiring Resolution 
 

Other Business 
Public Comment 
Adjournment 

SUPERVISOR 
William A. Smith, Jr. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Kate Bohne Munzinger, Deputy Supervisor 

Cathy Koshykar  
Kim Taylor 

Stephanie Townsend 

TOWN BOARD AGENDA 



PUBLIC MEETINGS OF THE TOWN BOARD are IN-PERSON at TOWN HALL  
 
Attending in Person 
Per State requirements, those who are not fully vaccinated must wear a mask and stay 6 feet away from 
other people. 
 
Comments:   
As always, comments are open to Pittsford residents, owners of property in the Town who pay Town 
taxes, owners of a businesses in the Town, attorneys or agents designated by a resident to speak on the 
resident’s behalf.  To comment you must sign in at the sign-in desk. 
 
Viewing from Home   
1. Live 
 
The Town Board meeting will stream live through our cable access station's streaming portal. Please use 
the following link: 
 
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/819?fullscree
n=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true  
 
You can watch on any computer, tablet, smart phone or web capable TV. If you log in before the 
meeting starts and see an error message, refresh your screen at 6:00pm when the board meeting starts 
and you can view the meeting live while it is happening. 
 
Comments:   
 
Comments are open to Pittsford residents, owners of property in the Town who pay Town taxes, owners 
of a businesses in the Town, attorneys or agents designated by a resident to speak on the resident’s behalf. 
 

 at any time before 2:30pm on the day of the meeting (a) by email to 
comments@townofpittsford.org; (b) by submitting it in writing, through the drop slot to the right of 
the front door at Town Hall (11 South Main Street); or (c) by U.S. Mail to the Town Clerk, for 
receipt no later than 2:30pm on the day of the meeting; 
 
and, in addition,  
 

 at any time during the meeting by email to comments@townofpittsford.org 
 

 All comments submitted should include the name and street address of the commenter.  
Comments from residents will be read by the Town Clerk at the appropriate point of the meeting.   

 
2. On-Demand Video 
 
As always, video will be uploaded to our cable access station's streaming portal within 48 hours of the 
meeting.  It is available on demand.  You can see it here:  
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/690?fullscree
n=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true 
 

https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/819?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/819?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true
mailto:comments@townofpittsford.org
mailto:comments@townofpittsford.org
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/690?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/690?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true


MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board Members 

From: Paul Schenkel - Commissioner of Public Works 

Date: March 10, 2022 

Regarding: Sewer District Extension JH-160 
 

For Meeting On: April 5, 2022 
 
    
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
The Town Board has previously received a Petition for the establishment of an Extension to 
the Pittsford Sewer District, to be known as “JH-160”. A Public Hearing on the Petition has 
been scheduled for the evening of April 5, 2022. 

 
Attached is the proposed “Resolution and Order” approving the establishment of this Extension 
to the Sewer District. 

 
Recommendation is hereby made that the Town Board approve the proposed Extension. In the 
event that the Board determines that action should take place on the proposed Sewer District 
Extension, I suggest the following Resolution motion: 

 
I move that Extension JH-160 to the Pittsford Sewer District, on lands located on 510 
Thornell Road owned by Kenneth and Paula Jamison, be approved, as set forth in the 
proposed written Resolution and Order. 



 1 

At a regular Meeting of the Town Board of the 
Town of Pittsford, New York held at the Town 
Hall, 11 South Main Street, in the Town of 
Pittsford, New York, on the 5th day of April, 
2022. 

 
PRESENT: William A. Smith, Jr., Supervisor 

Katherine Bohne Munzinger, Deputy Supervisor 
  Cathleen A. Koshykar, Councilwoman  

Kim Taylor, Councilwoman 
  Stephanie M. Townsend, Councilwoman 
 
ABSENT: None 
 
TOWN BOARD      STATE OF NEW YORK 
TOWN OF PITTSFORD                            COUNTY OF MONROE 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
In the Matter of Extension JH-160       
to the PITTSFORD SEWER DISTRICT, 
to include 510 Thornell Road (Kenneth and  
Paula Jamison), T.A. 178.03-2-20      
_______________________________________________________________                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                         
 
 WHEREAS, a Petition having been duly presented to the Town Board of the 
Town of Pittsford, Monroe County, New York, together with the necessary maps and 
information which requests an Extension to the Pittsford Sewer District, to be known as 
“JH-160”; and 
 WHEREAS, the aforesaid Petition was signed by the sole joint owners of the 
property within the proposed Extension to the District; and 

WHEREAS, an Order was duly adopted by the Town Board on the 15th day of 
March, 2022, for the hearing of all persons interested in the matter to be held on the 5th 
day of April, 2022, at 6:00 o’clock P.M., Local Time, at the Pittsford Town Hall, 11 South 
Main Street, Town of Pittsford, New York; and 

WHEREAS, due proof of publication and posting of the said Order has been duly 
filed with the Clerk of the said Town Board; and 

WHEREAS, the hearing required by the said Order has been duly held, and it 
appears from the said Petition that the proposed Extension to the District does not 
require any expenditure of money for the construction or acquisition of the improvement 
therein, and does not require the financing of the cost thereof by the issuance of any 
bonds, notes, certificates of any indebtedness of said Town; and 

WHEREAS, the within action is a Type II action, pursuant to the SEQRA 
regulations published at 6 NYCRR § 617.5(c)(13), requiring no further environmental 
review by the Town Board; and 

RESOLUTION AND 
ORDER 
EXTENDING 
DISTRICT 



 2 

WHEREAS, the permission of the Comptroller of the State of New York is not 
required for the Extension to the District; 

NOW, ON MOTION duly made and seconded, it is unanimously  
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that 
(a) The Petition is signed and acknowledged or approved as required by law 

and is otherwise sufficient; 
(b) All the property and the sole property owners within the Extension to the 

District are benefited thereby; 
(c) All the property and the sole property owners benefited are included within 

the limits of the Extension to the District;  
(d) The expenses of Maintenance of the Extension to the District are to be 

paid by the sole property owners annually on a benefit basis; and 
(e) It is in the public interest to grant in whole the relief sought; and it is further 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that Extension “JH-160” to the Pittsford Sewer 

District, be and the same hereby is created, and that the boundaries of the Extension, 
as hereby created, are as set forth in “Schedule A” annexed hereto, and as further set 
forth on the map annexed hereto as “Schedule B”; and it is further 

RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that all improvements to the sewer system 
required for the Extension will be constructed or caused to be constructed by the 
Petitioner, at the expense of the Petitioner; and it is further 

RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to record in 
the Monroe County Clerk’s Office and file with the New York state Office of Audit and 
Control certified copies of the within Resolution, as required by law.  

Said matter having been put to a vote, the following votes were recorded: 
 William A. Smith, Jr.   VOTING 
 Katherine Bohn Munzinger  VOTING 
 Cathleen A. Koshykar  VOTING 
 Kim Taylor    VOTING 
 Stephanie Townsend  VOTING 
The Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 

Dated: April 5, 2022 
 

TOWN CLERK CERTIFICATION  
 

I, Renee M. McQuillen, Town Clerk of the Town of Pittsford, New York, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared a copy of the Resolution as herein specified 
with the original in the minutes of the meeting of the Town Board of the Town of 
Pittsford, and that the same is a correct transcript thereof and the whole of the said 
original. 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this _____ day of April, 
2022. 
 
     _____________________________________ 
               Renee M. McQuillen, Town Clerk 













MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board 

From: Joy E. Brown, Technology Director 

Date: March 30, 2022 

Regarding: Technology Dept. Proposed Projects 
 

For Meeting On: April 5, 2022 
 
Technology Dept. Total Request:      $147,200    
 

1. Technology Consulting:      $50,000  
 
The types of assessments/audits listed below, will help us comply with the NY SHIELD Act 
requirements as well as other NYS regulations.  They will also aid in reducing the cost of the 
Town’s cybersecurity insurance. 
 

 IT Risk Assessment 
 

An IT Risk Assessment is the process of identifying security risks and assessing the threat they 
pose. The ultimate purpose of an IT Risk Assessment is to mitigate risks to prevent security 
incidents and compliance failures. Using the information from the risk assessment process, you 
can determine which threats are the most important to mitigate.  
 
Risk assessments involve looking outside of an organization to determine what threats exist 
that could potentially lead to problems. 
 

 Security Vulnerability Assessment  
 

A Security Vulnerability Assessment provides an overview of an organization’s cybersecurity 
landscape, providing an opportunity to identify where security policies, practices, and 
procedures meet best practices as well as identify gaps and vulnerabilities. Vulnerability 
assessments focus on identifying existing weaknesses in assets that malicious actors can 
exploit. Performing a vulnerability assessment allows an organization to identify vulnerabilities 
and security gaps and then take measures to eliminate them. 
 
Vulnerability assessments involve looking inside the organization for structural flaws and 
weaknesses. 
 
**  To put it simply, the IT Risk Assessment evaluates which armies might approach the castle 
gates while the Security Vulnerability Assessment checks the locks on the doors.  ** 

  



 IT Security Audit 
 

An IT Security Audit’s purpose is for a third-party certified auditor to examine and evaluate our 
information technology infrastructure, applications, data use and management, policies, 
procedures, and operational processes so as to verify whether we are operating according to 
legal standards and guidelines.  The audit will measure our current status and benchmark it 
against a specific industry standard. All control gaps must be identified and remediated. 
 

 PCI Compliance Audit    
 
PCI compliance is required by credit card companies to make online transactions secure and 
protect them against identity theft. Anyone that wants to process, store or transmit credit card 
data is required to be PCI compliant. This audit will help us achieve and maintain PCI 
compliance to safeguard cardholder information and prevent losses.  
 
In addition, some credit card processors charge fees to companies who are non-compliant.  In 
order to avoid such fees, this audit would provide a report of any policies and processes we 
might need to implement to ensure we continue to meet all applicable PCI DSS (Payment Card 
Industry Data Security Standard) requirements for compliance. 
 

 Technology Policy Consulting  
 
A third party consultant would review the Town’s current I.T. policies and procedures and assist 
in creating any additional as required by applicable legal standards and guidelines. 
 

2. SIEM System:     $18,000 
 
A SIEM  (Security Information and Event Management) system is a security solution that helps 
organizations recognize potential security threats and vulnerabilities before they have a chance 
to disrupt business operations. It provides real-time analysis of security alerts by applications 
and network hardware. SIEM analyzes user behavior abnormalities and uses artificial 
intelligence to automate many of the manual processes associated with threat detection and 
incident response.  SIEM has become a staple in security and compliance management. 
 
The last time the Town had a Vulnerability Assessment, a SIEM system was included as a 
recommendation, but was cost-prohibitive at the time. With ransomware infections 
skyrocketing, this is the right time to put in place a system that, in comparison to traditional 
tools, would allow us a much better chance at detection.  SIEM provides a network overview 
and automated analysis of security events.  Defense such as this is what can help to keep our 
network healthy by identifying ransomware infection by its key symptoms before it causes 
major data loss and downtime.  



3. Docuware Cloud migration/upgrade    $3,200 
 
Note:  I have included with this proposal a resolution and the contracts necessary, which I have 
reviewed with the Town Attorney, to move forward with the Docuware Cloud product. 
 
One thing that became increasingly clear during the pandemic, was the advantage to cloud 
computing.  Those who were using cloud services were able to transition their employees to 
work from home more easily than those who did not use cloud computing. In addition, large 
cloud providers have more security controls in place than most small entities can afford. Cloud 
solutions offer anytime, anywhere, any device access to applications and data.  

 
DocuWare is document management and workflow automation software that the Town 
(mostly DPW, Planning/Zoning, Sewer, Highway and Parks) has utilized for over 10 years.  By my 
best estimate, it houses over 250,000 files at this point.  The types of files that are stored in the 
system include:  maps, plans, easements, sewer inspections, sewer trouble call reports, sewer 
maps, subdivision maps, DPW property files, etc.  Organizations worldwide use DocuWare to 
capture, route and securely archive their most important business information.   
 
We currently house DocuWare on our internal servers which makes it difficult to access outside 
of the office. It would be very advantageous for our DocuWare data to be available to staff 
when they are working in the field with a multi-client cloud solution.  In addition, Docuware 
Cloud would enable us to use all of the Docuware features. In our current on-premise version, 
there are many features that are only available with the purchase of additional licenses. Beyond 
the enhanced accessibility and features, the security, compliance, archival and backup features 
we would gain from this migration, would be highly beneficial. 
 

4. KVS to Cirrus Cloud migration/upgrade  $31,000   
 
Springbrook’s KVS Enterprise is the Town’s financial software for accounts payable, budget, 
fixed assets, general ledger, etc.  The Town started using KVS around 1995 and we upgraded to 
the version we are on now around 2008. An upgrade to a modern version of this software is, to 
say the least, long overdue.  
 
I recommend upgrading  and migrating KVS Enterprise on-premise to Springbrook’s cloud 
offering, Cirrus.  Just like the Docuware migration, this move to the cloud would offer us 
improved data security, a more robust backup solution and access flexibility. This new version 
also features Tableau, the industry’s most powerful reporting tool. 
 
One of the most important operational benefits of Springbrook Cloud Services is the business 
continuity capabilities it provides their customers. Regardless of the state of the customer’s 
infrastructure, their users will be able to access the Springbrook Cloud Service and their 
corresponding data during times of crisis that may impact the availability of their offices.   
 
The on-premise version we have now requires server hardware, manual updates (which result 
in downtime) and IT staff time for software and server maintenance as well as backup and 
security planning.  With the cloud offering, this all goes away, plus gives us the benefit of two-



factor authentication and tightened security.  Cirrus is the upgrade path from KVS Enterprise 
that will bring us up to a modern platform and user interface. 
 
A demonstration of the Cirrus software was provided to our Finance Director, Brian Luke, and I 
and we are were able to review the interface and reporting tools.  I believe that the new 
interface and features of the program as well as the improved reporting functionality would be 
a welcome relief to our KVS users.  A migration from KVS Enterprise to Cirrus would be the most 
logical route to follow as this solution was designed exclusively for local government agencies in 
mind. Springbrook has already migrated several agencies from KVS Enterprise to Cirrus Cloud, 
and several more within New York and other states have already started their migrations. 
Springbrook is at about 30 total migrations so far and they are actively working to migrate the 
rest since Cirrus is their future standard platform. 
 

5. Backup Server    $10,000 
 
Backups maintain a redundant copy of the Town’s data in the event of a system failure or 
natural disaster as well as retain data to compliance requirements.  In addition, one of the only 
ways to recover from a ransomware attack, is to have an up-to-date backup. Currently, we 
utilize a system that is robust and fast with a high level of data reliability.  However, our present 
method can be time consuming and requires a manual process to maintain the server backup 
rotations.  It is, as a result, susceptible to human error. 
 
To supplement, or possibly replace, our current backup process, I am recommending the 
purchase of a backup server with replication to the cloud.  This would offer fast backup and 
restoration as well as redundancy. Backups can be configured to run every 10-15 minutes, 
giving us near-continuous protection of important servers. This backup solution runs on a 
secure operating platform, which makes it less susceptible to ransomware attacks and does not 
present as a network share, which makes it harder for attackers to access. This solution would 
protect our data with encryption and control access to our data with multifactor 
authentication. 
 

6. Apple products for the Library  $10,000 
 

I am including a project brought to me by Angel Martinez, our new Network Administrator. He 
brings to us a Mac background and would be able to take on a project such as this.  Below is my 
summary of his proposal:  
 
As we know, the Library offers many services that support the community’s educational needs. 
To enhance this, I would propose to add additional Apple products, specifically Mac computers 
and their exclusive apps.  Local educational institutions like the Rochester Institute of 
Technology and the University of Rochester have numerous Macs in their labs. Providing Macs 
in our Library will give students exposure should they go on to one of these institutions or if 
they just want to learn more about working with an Apple computer. Also, the Rochester Public 
Library has current plans to make available two Apple computers (including Adobe Creative 
Cloud) in their facility. 
 



Besides Adobe Creative Cloud, there are applications built-in and exclusive to Apple computers, 
such as iMovie and GarageBand, that could help young audiences explore their creativity. 
Furthermore, Final Cut Pro is a professional application entirely for Macs used by video tubers 
and the film industry plus Logic Pro is used for advanced music production.  Beyond creative 
applications, Apple has free applications for computer science, Xcode and Swift, which could be 
helpful for a teenager or adult exploring or learning how to code. 
 
Offering Macs at the library can be an opportunity to bring patrons who want to explore their 
creative side, learn to code, or use a Mac because their own is unavailable or as part of their 
preparation to go to college. Furthermore, bringing Macs to the library can open new ways to 
enrich the community’s relationship with their library. 
 
The proposal would include 2 iMacs & 2 MacBooks with:  
 

Final Cut Pro and Logic Pro      
Adobe Creative Cloud 
Adobe Acrobat Pro       
MS Office for Mac       
 

7. Interactive Display-Town Hall meeting room  $10,000 
 

Currently in the Town Hall basement meeting room, presenters use wireless casting to a 
portable projector which displays on an outdated pull down projection screen.  
 
To incorporate a modern feature to the room, I propose that we purchase and install an 
interactive display on a movable cart (for flexibility).  This display would include a Windows 
module and also a videoconferencing kit. Town Board, Planning Board, Zoning Board and the 
Design Review & Historic Preservation Board all utilize this meeting room and would benefit 
from this long overdue upgrade for their public meetings. 
 
An interactive display enables users to make visual presentations and control on-screen data 
through digital touchscreen interactions. It is large display unit that is driven by a computer as 
well as an Android operating system. They are digital devices that allow users to access their 
computer files and interact with them as well as create new content. 
 

 Interactive displays can be used to present documents, maps, information, and videos 
during meetings in a business environment.  

 There is no need to purchase a separate projector and the display will produce an image 
that is much cleaner and crisper than a projector.  

 This interactive display will come with a built-in PC, offering an ‘all-in-one’ system that is 
easy to use, user-friendly, and needs no additional hardware. 

 Interactive displays can be used with wireless connectivity and are also compatible with 
wireless casting from Apple and Android products.  



8. Technology Training    $15,000  
 

Note:  These funds would be utilized for staff training needs that arise from 2022 through the 
end of 2024. 

 
As software maintenance, subscriptions and other costs have risen, I have had to place more 
budgeting emphasis on software maintenance and budget lines other than education that have 
increased, in order to keep within budget.  
 
With four staff currently employed in the I.T. Department, it becomes necessary for them to 
attend training periodically as new technology is introduced to our environment.  Furthermore, 
as the Town acquires new systems, training becomes necessary for various Town staff that are 
using those systems.   
 
These funds would be used for I.T. technical training as well as general staff training. We 
recently upgraded to Office 365 and it would be beneficial if staff had access to training for the 
components of that system, especially SharePoint, OneDrive and Teams.  For I.T. staff, Office 
365 Administration, Windows Server training and Windows 11 training would be beneficial. This 
training could be online, in a classroom or in a lecture setting, whatever is appropriate and cost-
effective. 
 
In addition, the NY SHIELD Act sets out a series of administrative safeguards, one of which is 
security awareness training for staff. We have already implemented an online system called 
KnowBe4 for general phishing and security awareness training.  We should supplement that 
with in-person or other online security awareness training in order to keep our residents’ 
private information safe and secure. 



Proposed Projects $147,200

Technology Consulting-audits/assessments  $50,000
Security Information & Event Mgt System (SIEM) $18,000
Docuware Cloud migration/upgrade $3,200
KVS to Cirrus Cloud migration/upgrade $31,000
Backup Server $10,000
Apple products for the Library $10,000
Interactive Display-Town Hall meeting room $10,000
Technology Training for IT & general staff $15,000



TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING: $50,000

The types of assessments/audits listed below, will help us comply with the NY SHIELD Act requirements as well as other
NYS regulations.  They will also aid in reducing the cost of the Town’s cybersecurity insurance.

IT Risk Assessment

An IT Risk Assessment is the process of identifying security risks and assessing the threat they pose. The ultimate purpose
of an IT Risk Assessment is to mitigate risks to prevent security incidents and compliance failures. Using the information
from the risk assessment process, you can determine which threats are the most important to mitigate. Risk assessments
involve looking outside of an organization to determine what threats exist that could potentially lead to problems.

Security Vulnerability Assessment 

A Security Vulnerability Assessment provides an overview of an organization’s cybersecurity landscape, providing an opportunity to identify where security policies, practices, and procedures meet 
best practices as well as identify gaps and vulnerabilities. Vulnerability assessments focus on identifying existing weaknesses in assets that malicious actors can exploit. Performing a vulnerability 
assessment allows an organization to identify vulnerabilities and security gaps and then take measures to eliminate them. Vulnerability assessments involve looking inside the organization for 
structural flaws and weaknesses.

**  To put it simply, the IT Risk Assessment evaluates which armies might approach the castle gates while the Security Vulnerability Assessment checks the locks on the doors.  **

IT Security Audit

An IT Security Audit’s purpose is for a third-party certified auditor to examine and evaluate our information technology infrastructure, applications, data use and management, policies, procedures, 
and operational processes so as to verify whether we are operating according to legal standards and guidelines.  The audit will measure our current status and benchmark it against a specific 
industry standard. All control gaps must be identified and remediated.

PCI Compliance Audit

PCI compliance is required by credit card companies to make online transactions secure and protect them against identity theft. Anyone that wants to process, store or transmit credit card data is 
required to be PCI compliant. This audit will help us achieve and maintain PCI compliance to safeguard cardholder information and prevent losses. 

In addition, some credit card processors charge fees to companies who are non-compliant.  In order to avoid such fees, this audit would provide a report of any policies and processes we might 
need to implement to ensure we continue to meet all applicable PCI DSS (Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard) requirements for compliance.

Technology Policy Consulting

A third party consultant would review the Town’s current I.T. policies and procedures and assist in creating any additional as required by applicable legal standards and guidelines.



SIEM SYSTEM: $18,000

A SIEM  (Security Information and Event Management) system is a security solution that helps organizations recognize potential security threats and vulnerabilities before they have a chance to 
disrupt business operations. It provides real-time analysis of security alerts by applications and network hardware. SIEM analyzes user behavior abnormalities and uses artificial intelligence to 
automate many of the manual processes associated with threat detection and incident response.  SIEM has become a staple in security and compliance management.

The last time the Town had a Vulnerability Assessment, a SIEM system was included as a recommendation, but was cost-prohibitive at the time. With ransomware infections skyrocketing, this is the 
right time to put in place a system that, in comparison to traditional tools, would allow us a much better chance at detection. SIEM provides a network overview and automated analysis of security 
events.  Defense such as this is what can help to keep our network healthy by identifying ransomware infection by its key symptoms before it causes major data loss and downtime.



DOCUWARE CLOUD MIGRATION/UPGRADE: $3,200

Note:  I have included with this proposal a resolution and the contracts necessary, which I have reviewed with the Town Attorney, to move forward with the Docuware Cloud product.

One thing that became increasingly clear during the pandemic, was the advantage to cloud computing.  Those who were using cloud services were able to transition their employees to work from 
home more easily than those who did not use cloud computing. In addition, large cloud providers have more security controls in place than most small entities can afford. Cloud solutions offer 
anytime, anywhere, any device access to applications and data. 

DocuWare is document management and workflow automation software that the Town (mostly DPW, Planning/Zoning, Sewer, Highway and Parks) has utilized for over 10 years.  By my best 
estimate, it houses over 250,000 files at this point.  The types of files that are stored in the system include:  maps, plans, easements, sewer inspections, sewer trouble call reports, sewer maps, 
subdivision maps, DPW property files, etc.  Organizations worldwide use DocuWare to capture, route and securely archive their most important business information.  

We currently house DocuWare on our internal servers which makes it difficult to access outside of the office. It would be very advantageous for our DocuWare data to be available to staff when 
they are working in the field with a multi-client cloud solution.  In addition, Docuware Cloud would enable us to use all of the Docuware features. In our current on-premise version, there are many 
features that are only available with the purchase of additional licenses. Beyond the enhanced accessibility and features, the security, compliance, archival and backup features we would gain from 
this migration, would be highly beneficial.



KVS TO CIRRUS CLOUD MIGRATION/UPGRADE: $31,000

Springbrook’s KVS Enterprise is the Town’s financial software for accounts payable, budget, 
fixed assets, general ledger, etc.  The Town started using KVS around 1995 and we upgraded to 
the version we are on now around 2008. An upgrade to a modern version of this software is, to 
say the least, long overdue. 

I recommend upgrading  and migrating KVS Enterprise on-premise to Springbrook’s cloud 
offering, Cirrus.  Just like the Docuware migration, this move to the cloud would offer us 
improved data security, a more robust backup solution and access flexibility. This new version 
also features Tableau, the industry’s most powerful reporting tool.

One of the most important operational benefits of Springbrook Cloud Services is the business 
continuity capabilities it provides their customers. Regardless of the state of the customer’s 
infrastructure, their users will be able to access the Springbrook Cloud Service and their 
corresponding data during times of crisis that may impact the availability of their offices.  

The on-premise version we have now requires server hardware, manual updates (which result 
in downtime) and IT staff time for software and server maintenance as well as backup and 
security planning.  With the cloud offering, this all goes away, plus gives us the benefit of two-
factor authentication and tightened security.  Cirrus is the upgrade path from KVS Enterprise 
that will bring us up to a modern platform and user interface.

A demonstration of the Cirrus software was provided to our Finance Director, Brian Luke, and I 
and we are were able to review the interface and reporting tools.  I believe that the new 
interface and features of the program as well as the improved reporting functionality would be 
a welcome relief to our KVS users.  A migration from KVS Enterprise to Cirrus would be the 
most logical route to follow as this solution was designed exclusively for local government 
agencies in mind. Springbrook has already migrated several agencies from KVS Enterprise to 
Cirrus Cloud, and several more within New York and other states have already started their 
migrations. Springbrook is at about 30 total migrations so far and they are actively working to 
migrate the rest since Cirrus is their future standard platform.



BACKUP SERVER: $10,000

Backups maintain a redundant copy of the Town’s data in the event of a system failure or natural disaster as well as retain data to compliance requirements.  In addition, one of the only ways to 
recover from a ransomware attack, is to have an up-to-date backup. Currently, we utilize a system that is robust and fast with a high level of data reliability.  However, our present method can be 
time consuming and requires a manual process to maintain the server backup rotations.  It is, as a result, susceptible to human error.

To supplement, or possibly replace, our current backup process, I am recommending the purchase of a backup server with replication to the cloud.  This would offer fast backup and restoration as 
well as redundancy. Backups can be configured to run every 10-15 minutes, giving us near-continuous protection of important servers. This backup solution runs on a secure operating platform, 
which makes it less susceptible to ransomware attacks and does not present as a network share, which makes it harder for attackers to access. This solution would protect our data with encryption 
and control access to our data with multifactor authentication.



APPLE PRODUCTS FOR THE LIBRARY: $10,000

I am including a project brought to me by Angel Martinez, our new Network Administrator. He brings to us a Mac background and would be able to take on a project such as this.  Below is my 
summary of his proposal: 

As we know, the Library offers many services that support the community’s educational needs. To enhance this, I would propose to add additional Apple products, specifically Mac computers and 
their exclusive apps.  Local educational institutions like the Rochester Institute of Technology and the University of Rochester have numerous Macs in their labs. Providing Macs in our Library will 
give students exposure should they go on to one of these institutions or if they just want to learn more about working with an Apple computer. Also, the Rochester Public Library has current plans 
to make available two Apple computers (including Adobe Creative Cloud) in their facility.

Besides Adobe Creative Cloud, there are applications built-in and exclusive to Apple computers, such as iMovie and GarageBand, that could help young audiences explore their creativity. 
Furthermore, Final Cut Pro is a professional application entirely for Macs used by video tubers and the film industry plus Logic Pro is used for advanced music production.  Beyond creative 
applications, Apple has free applications for computer science, Xcode and Swift, which could be helpful for a teenager or adult exploring or learning how to code.

Offering Macs at the library can be an opportunity to bring 
patrons who want to explore their creative side, learn to code, 
or use a Mac because their own is unavailable or as part of 
their preparation to go to college. Furthermore, bringing Macs 
to the library can open new ways to enrich the community’s 
relationship with their library.

The proposal would include 2 iMacs & 2 MacBooks with:

Final Cut Pro and Logic Pro
Adobe Creative Cloud & Adobe Acrobat Pro
MS Office for Mac 



INTERACTIVE DISPLAY-TOWN HALL MEETING ROOM: $10,000

Currently in the Town Hall basement meeting room, presenters use wireless casting to a portable projector which displays on an outdated pull down projection screen. 

To incorporate a modern feature to the room, I propose that we purchase and install an interactive display on a movable cart (for flexibility).  This display would include a Windows module and also 
a videoconferencing kit. Town Board, Planning Board, Zoning Board and the Design Review & Historic Preservation Board all utilize this meeting room and would benefit from this long overdue 
upgrade for their public meetings.

An interactive display enables users to make visual presentations and control on-screen data through digital touchscreen interactions. It is large display unit that is driven by a computer as well as an 
Android operating system. They are digital devices that allow users to access their computer files and interact with them as well as create new content.

Interactive displays can be used to present documents, maps, information, and videos during meetings in a business environment. 
There is no need to purchase a separate projector and the display will produce an image that is much cleaner and crisper than a projector. 
This interactive display will come with a built-in PC, offering an ‘all-in-one’ system that is easy to use, user-friendly, and needs no additional hardware.
Interactive displays can be used with wireless connectivity and are also compatible with wireless casting from Apple and Android products.



TECHNOLOGY TRAINING: $15,000 

Note:  These funds would be utilized for staff training needs that arise from 2022 through the end of 2024.

As software maintenance, subscriptions and other costs have risen, I have had to place more budgeting emphasis on software maintenance and budget lines other than education that have 
increased, in order to keep within budget. 

With four staff currently employed in the I.T. Department, it becomes necessary for them to attend training periodically as new technology is introduced to our environment.  Furthermore, as the 
Town acquires new systems, training becomes necessary for various Town staff that are using those systems.  

These funds would be used for I.T. technical training as well as general staff training. We recently upgraded to Office 365 and it would be beneficial if staff had access to training for the components 
of that system, especially SharePoint, OneDrive and Teams.  For I.T. staff, Office 365 Administration, Windows Server training and Windows 11 training would be beneficial. This training could be 
online, in a classroom or in a lecture setting, whatever is appropriate and cost-effective.

In addition, the NY SHIELD Act sets out a series of administrative safeguards, one of which is security awareness training for staff. We have already implemented an online system called KnowBe4 for 
general phishing and security awareness training.  We should supplement that with in-person or other online security awareness training in order to keep our residents’ private information safe and 
secure.



 
 4/5/22 
 

Amendments & Transfers 
For I.T. Department Projects 

 
  
Be it resolved that the following are approved: 
 
 
That 1.1680.4404.3.2 be increased by $84,200.00; that 1.1680.2001.3.2 be increased by 
28,000.00; that 1.1680.4141.3.2 be increased by $20,000.00; and 1.1680.4604.1.2 be 
increased by $15,000.00.  The source of these funds will be American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA) Federal Aid totaling $147,200.00.  The funds are to be spent as presented in the I.T. 
Department proposal dated March 30, 2022 and presented at this meeting on April 5, 2022.  
The Finance Director is authorized to amend the budget as necessary to facilitate the 
expenditure of these funds.   
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 15, 2022 
 

DRAFT 
TOWN OF PITTSFORD 

TOWN BOARD 
March 15, 2022 

 
Proceedings of a regular meeting of the Pittsford Town Board held on Tuesday, February 15, 2022 at 
6:00 P.M. local time in the Lower Level Meeting Room of Town Hall, 11 South Main Street, in person. 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor William A. Smith, Jr.; Councilmembers Cathy Koshykar, Katherine B. 

Munzinger, Kim Taylor and Stephanie M. Townsend. 
 
ABSENT:  None. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Staff Members: Brian Luke, Finance Director; Renee McQuillen, Town Clerk; 

Jessie Hollenbeck, Recreation Director,  Shelley O’Brien, Communications 
Director; Suzanne Reddick, Assistant to the Supervisor; Spencer Bernard, Chief 
of Staff; Jessica Neal, Parks General Foreman. 

 
ATTENDANCE: Ten members of the public along with an interpreter attended. 
 
Supervisor Smith called the Town Board meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. and invited all to join in the 
Pledge to Flag.   
 
SUPERVISORS ANNOUCEMENTS 

1.    March 17, 2022 will be the first day of eliminating overdue fees for all Juvenile and Young Adult 
materials checked out from the library. The 2-year pilot program has the support of the Library’s 
Board of Trustees and the Town Board. 
      

PRESENTATION BY PARKS FOREMAN: PARK AND TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS 
Jessica Neal, Parks Department Foreman, presented to board members Park and Trail improvements 
proposals including projects put on hold the last two years due to COVID. The total anticipated cost is 
$281,930, for the following projects: resurfacing of the basketball and tennis courts at Thornell Farm 
Park including adding lines for pickle ball courts; the sealing of Thornell Farm Park parking lot; 
replacement of locks at the dog park to work with the Monroe County e-card entry system, and 
reconstruction of the entrance and parking areas at Isaac Gordon Park. Improvements planned for 
Kings Bend Park are for the replacement of picture windows and ceiling fans in both lodges; at Great 
Embankment Park, the addition of two pollinator garden areas; relocation of a fire hydrant at the Parks 
Garage; and the purchase of an additional Ventrac mower with attachments to increase efficiencies in 
Town trail maintenance. Upgrades proposed for the ball fields at Farm View Park include the addition of 
bleachers, foul poles, and outfield fencing. A connection of the Auburn Trail at Thornell Road to the 
Wood Stone Rise/Bromsgrove Road area with additional neighborhood connections planned was the 
final item proposed. This project is part of the Town’s Active Transportation Plan approved in 2020. The 
funding of these improvements will allow the Town to maintain our heavily used parks and trails and, in 
some cases, increase their usage potential. The source of funding for the projects would be the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Federal Aid the Town received.  
 
Following questions from board members on the presentation, board members then moved to 
discussion regarding the transfer of funds for the improvements. Councilmember Koshykar said that the 
Board’s early conversations regarding ARPA funding had included providing residents with an 
opportunity to make suggestions for use of the funds and that the Board has not had public meetings to 
do that.  
 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 15, 2022 
 

Councilmember Townsend agreed that resident input is important but suggested that formal public 
meetings for that purpose may not be the best way. She noted that so far residents have had several 
opportunities to offer their opinions, through communications to the Board and the opportunity to speak 
at Town Board meetings, but none have. Councilmember Koshykar suggested that not all members of 
the public are aware of Town Board meetings and agendas. Councilmember Townsend proposed 
soliciting public opinion, in addition to the methods already available, at the Town Board table at the 
Paddle and Pour event that is always well-attended.  This year it is scheduled for May 28th. This way 
the Board could hear from a diverse group of residents about possible ideas.  Councilmember Taylor 
recommended a Suggestion Box for the Town table at Paddle and Pour for this purpose. Board 
members expressed approval of these ideas.   
 
Councilmember Taylor commented further that she posts the agenda for Board meetings on her 
Facebook page and offered her support for Councilmember Townsend’s idea, adding that she most 
often hears from residents when they happen to see her around Town.  
 
Supervisor Smith noted that when our residents have been concerned about a matter, they have turned 
out to Town Board meetings to voice their opinions.  He referred to the Town’s two well-attended public 
meetings late last year, where many residents spoke and overwhelmingly communicated a clear 
message about marijuana sales and lounges and that most of the Town Board members had honored 
the public’s wishes.   
 
The Supervisor noted that from the time the Board first publicly discussed ARPA funds and expressed 
its desire for public input, all avenues of communication to the Board have been open although, as 
Councilmember Townsend pointed out, to date we have received no messages about ARPA funds.  He 
noted that before the last Town Board meeting where the Board first voted on any use of ARPA funds 
the Library’s proposals had been publicly published on the Town website the Friday before the meeting; 
that the Parks proposals presented tonight have been publicized similarly, and in addition have been 
publicized in the Town’s e-News several times and on the Supervisor’s Facebook page.  In addition the  
Town added an ARPA page to the Town website that includes a link for sending an email to all board 
members so that residents can more easily share their ideas with board members and it also contains 
the departmental proposals for use of ARPA funds that the Board has considered.  He also commented 
that the Town Facebook page also has carried requests for public input on using ARPA funds.   
 
Deputy Supervisor Munzinger echoed the need to take care of deferred maintenance projects because 
of the pandemic and to listen to and heed the recommendations of department heads. They hear from 
residents throughout the year about improvements needed and concerns involving their departmental 
areas. She further commented that the proposals now before the board will have a beneficial impact for 
many residents and community groups.  She then made a motion to approve the proposed transfer. 
Councilmember Koshykar stated that because of the Board’s willingness to seek public input, including 
at this year’s Paddle and Pour, and to make clear the amount of funds that would be available once all 
departmental requests have been approved, she will support this motion. All members agreed to 
continue to seek public comments even prior to that event.  
 
Town Clerk McQuillen read an email comment from Jon Sussman. 
 
Councilmember Taylor seconded the motion to approve, and it was voted on as follows: Ayes: 
Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend and Smith. Nays: none.   
 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows:   
RESOLVED, that the following be approved: 
That 1.7110.4003.16.21 be increased by $82,500.00; that 1.7110.4003.14.7 be increased by 
18,500.00; that 1.7110.4003.16.26 be increased by $14,000.00; that 1.2620.2007.10.19 be increased 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 15, 2022 
 

by $7,730.00; that 1.7110.2025.2.7111 be increased by $42,000.00; that 1.7110.4003.16.20 be 
increased by $4,000.00; that 1.7110.4003.16.22 be increased by $6,400.00; that 1.7110.4003.16.39 be 
increased by 57,000.00; and 1.7110.4003.16.44 be increased by $49,800.00.  The source of these 
funds will be American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Federal Aid totaling $281,930.00.  The funds are to be 
spent as presented in the Parks Department ARPA proposal.  The Finance Director is authorized to 
amend the budget as necessary to facilitate the expenditure of these funds.   
 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 1, 2022 TOWN BOARD MEETING APPROVED 
Following a correction noted by the Town Clerk that the term of office for the Assessment Board 
reappointment was incorrectly stated, a Resolution to approve the Minutes of the Town Board meeting 
of March 1, 2022, as corrected, was offered by Supervisor Smith, seconded by Deputy Supervisor 
Munzinger, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend and 
Smith. Nays: none.   
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the March 1, 2022 Town Board meeting are approved. 
 
 
 
LEGAL MATTERS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments.  
 
VETERINARY SPECIALISTS AND EMERGENCY SERVICE CONTRACT 
A Resolution to authorize the Town Supervisor to execute the proposed 2022 contract with Pathway 
Vet Alliance LLC d/b/a Veterinary Specialists and Emergency Service for boarding and veterinary 
services involving stray animals was made by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, seconded by 
Councilmember Townsend, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, 
Townsend and Smith. Nays: none.   
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Town Supervisor is authorized to execute the proposed agreement with Pathway 
Vet Alliance LLC d/b/a Veterinary Specialists and Emergency Service for boarding and veterinary 
services involving stray animals. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments.  
 
MARCH TRANSFERS APPROVED 
A Resolution to approve the March transfers was offered by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, seconded 
by Councilmember Townsend, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, 
Taylor Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none.   
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the following transfers be approved as follows: 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 15, 2022 
 

That $529.55 be transferred from 1.1430.4137.1.1 (WT – Personnel Supplies) to 1.1430.2002.1.1 (WT 
– Personnel Equipment).   
 
MARCH SURPLUS APPROVED 
A Resolution to approve the items designated for surplus was offered by Councilmember Townsend, 
seconded by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes: Koshykar, 
Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none.   
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the following list of equipment be declared surplus and be removed from the Town’s 
inventory. 
 
Asset   # Year Description Department Cost Disposition
17262 2013 TELOG FLO METER Sewer 6,000.00 Junked
17263 2013 TELOG FLO METER Sewer 6,000.00 Junked  
 
MARCH VOUCHERS APPROVED 
A resolution to approve the proposed vouchers was offered by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, 
seconded by Councilmember Taylor, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, 
Taylor Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none.   
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the March vouchers No. 155036 – 155411 for $ $882,442.21 are approved for 
payment. 
 
 
 
OPERATIONAL MATTERS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments.  
 
ANNUAL RABIES CLINIC APPROVED 
A motion to approve the Annual Rabies Clinic was offered by Supervisor Smith, seconded by 
Councilmember Townsend, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, 
Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves expenditure of up to $500.00 for a free Rabies 
Clinic to be held at the Town Highway Garage on Thursday, May 12, 2022 from 4:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. 
 
AWARD BID FOR CONTRACTUAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 
Following comments from Commission Schenkel, a motion to accept the bid of $105,605 submitted by 
Plant Concepts as the lowest responsible bidder was offered by Supervisor Smith, seconded by 
Councilmember Taylor and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, 
Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows:  
RESOLVED, that the Town Board accept the bid for $105,605 from Plant Concepts as the lowest 
responsible bidder. 
 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 15, 2022 
 

AWARD BID FOR THORNELL FARM PARK TENNIS AND BASKETBALL COUURT 
RESURFACING 
A motion to award the bid for the Thornell Farm Park Tennis Courts Resurfacing Project to Super Seal 
Sealcoating Company was made by Councilmember Taylor, seconded by Deputy Supervisor 
Munzinger and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend and 
Smith. Nays:  none. 
  
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, as the lowest responsible bidder for $44,860, with the optional basketball court 
resurfacing for an additional $14,000, for a not to exceed total of $60,000. 
 
SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING FOR SEWER DISTRICT EXTENSION JH-160 
Supervisor Smith proposed a resolution to set a Public Hearing on April 5, 2022 at 6:00 P.M. for the 
proposed Sewer Extension JH-160 to the Pittsford Consolidated Sewer District, seconded by Deputy 
Supervisor Munzinger, and voted on by board members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, 
Townsend and Smith. Nays: None. 
 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that a Public Hearing be set for April 5, 2022 at 6:00 P.M., local time to consider the 
approval of Sewer Extension JH-160 to the Pittsford Consolidated Sewer District, on lands located at 
510 Thornell Road.  
 
 
 
PERSONNEL MATTERS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 
 
HIRING/PERSONNEL ADJUSTMENTS APPROVED 
A Resolution to approve the recommendations for new hires, status and/or salary changes was offered 
for approval by Councilmember Townsend, seconded by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, and voted on 
by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend and Smith. Nays: none. 
 
The following employee(s) is recommended for a status change and/or salary change due to a change 
in status. 
Name       Position   Reason for Change    Salary       Effective Date 
Zachary Valletta   Laborer    CDL – Class B Salary Adj   $20.08   03/16/2022 
Kahlil Robinson   Laborer    CDL – Class B Salary Adj   $20.08   03/16/2022 
Christopher Downey  Rec Asst 4   Additional Rate      $16.75   03/21/2022 
 
Should the Board approve the above recommendation and personnel adjustments, the following    
resolution is proposed. RESOLVED, that the Town Board approve the appointment for the following 
employee(s): 
Name       Position   Reason for Change    Salary       Effective Date 
Zachary Valletta   Laborer    CDL – Class B Salary Adj   $20.08   03/16/2022 
Kahlil Robinson   Laborer    CDL – Class B Salary Adj   $20.08   03/16/2022 
Christopher Downey  Rec Asst 4   Additional Rate      $16.75   03/21/2022 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 15, 2022 
 

Deputy Supervisor Munzinger shared that the Senior Center had its annual St. Patrick’s Day lunch that 
was enjoyed by all. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mary Moore shared comments with the board.   
 
As there was no further business, the Supervisor adjourned the meeting at 7:00 P.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Renee McQuillen 
Town Clerk 



MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board Members 

From: Robert B. Koegel 

Date: March 29, 2022 

Regarding: Kilbourn Place – Release of Sewer Easement 
 

For Meeting On: April 5, 2022 

 

 As you will recall, the original plans for the residential development project on East 
Avenue dubbed “Kilbourn Place” called for the construction of individually-owned townhouse 
dwelling units, and in fact, some of them were built.  As part of those townhouse plans, the Town 
obtained a sanitary sewer easement from the developer for the sewers to be built on the project 
site in order for the Town to own and maintain the sewers that would tie into the public sewer 
main along East Avenue. 
 
 Later, the residential plans changed from townhouses to rental apartment buildings, to be 
owned by the developer, and large portions of those buildings would be, or have been, built over 
areas which are subject to the easement but where sewers will not be installed.  As part of this 
process, the developer redesigned the configuration of the sewer system on the site to 
accommodate all of the structures that have been or will be built, and the developer agreed to 
be responsible for the sewer effluent on the site to the public East Avenue main sewer, obviating 
the need for any public sewer easement on the site. 
 
 Recognizing the changed circumstances of the project, the Planning Board, as a condition 
of final site plan and subdivision approval for the apartment complex, required the developer to 
request a release of the sewer easement from the Town.  The developer has made such a 
request. The proposed Release of Sewer Easement submitted herewith would effect that 
release.  
     
 

RESOLUTION 
 

I move that the Town Board authorize the Town Supervisor to sign the attached proposed 
“Release of Sewer Easement” involving the Town’s easement located on 3520 – 3596 East 
Avenue.  This resolution is subject to permissive referendum, and the Town Clerk is directed to 
post and publish the required notice of such permissive referendum. 
 



 
 
 

RELEASE OF SEWER EASEMENT 
 

THIS RELEASE, made the __ day of April, 2022, by the Town of Pittsford, a 
municipal corporation with its principal office at 11 South Main Street, Pittsford, New 
York 14534 (“Releasor”) to Kilbourn Place Associates, LP, a limited partnership having 
an address of 45 East Avenue, Rochester, New York (“Releasee.”) 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, Releasee granted Releasor a 20’ wide Sanitary Sewer Easement, 

dated February 19, 2013, and recorded in the Monroe County Clerk’s Office on March 
6, 2013, in Liber 11227 of Deeds, at Page 236 (the “Easement”); and 

WHEREAS, Releasee’s residential development plans for the property subject to 
the Easement subsequently changed from the construction of individually-owned 
townhouses to rental apartments owned solely by Releasee, thereby obviating the need 
for the Town to own and maintain the sanitary sewer facilities to be built on Releasee’s 
private property; and 

WHEREAS, as a condition of the final site plan and subdivision approval for the 
construction of the rental apartments granted March 8, 2021, the Planning Board 
required the Releasee to request the abandonment of certain Town easements, 
including the Easement, and the Releasee has made such a request; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the facts and circumstances as set forth 
above, the Releasor herein does hereby Release the aforesaid Easement, as described 
in Schedule A and depicted on Exhibit A both attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 
Property Address: 3520 – 3596 East Avenue, Rochester, New York 14618 
Tax Account Number: 138.14-1-13.21 

 
 

          TOWN OF PITTSFORD, NEW YORK 

      By: ______________________________ 
       William A. Smith, Jr., Supervisor 

STATE OF NEW YORK) 
COUNTY OF MONROE) SS: 
 

On the ____ day of April, 2022 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in 
and for said State, personally appeared William A. Smith, Jr., Supervisor, personally 
known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual 
whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he 
executed the same in his capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, the 
individual, or the person upon behalf of which the individual acted, executed the 
instrument. 
 

      ________________________________ 
                 Notary Public 



SCHEDULE A 
 

KILBOURN PLACE 
DESCRIPTION OF FILED 20’ WIDE SANITARY  
SEWER EASEMENT TO TOWN OF PITTSFORD 

TO BE RELEASED 
 
All that tract or parcel of land situate in the Town of Pittsford, County of Monroe, State of New York, all as 
shown on a map entitled "Kilbourn Place – Subdivision Map", prepared by Costich Engineering, P.C., 
having Drawing No. 3530-SUB, dated 6/1/2011, last revised 3/18/2013, said map to be filed with the 
Monroe County Clerk’s Office, being more particularly bounded and described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the intersection of the northeasterly bounds of East Avenue - N.Y.S. Route 96 (66’ 
R.O.W.) and the northerly bounds of Brettonwoods Drive (60’ R.O.W.); thence 
 

A. N43°00'13"W, along said northeasterly bounds of East Avenue - N.Y.S. Route 96, a distance of 
315.80 feet to the point and place of beginning; thence 

 
1. N43°00'13"W along the aforesaid line, a distance of 20.39 feet to a point; thence 
2. N35°45'30"E, a distance of 27.90 feet to a point; thence 
3. N77°43'04"E, a distance of 116.81 feet to a point; thence 
4. N50°37'53"E, a distance of 96.21 feet to a point; thence 
5. N38°36'11"W, a distance of 54.06 feet to a point; thence 
6. N48°26'33"W, a distance of 208.80 feet to a point; thence 
7. S47°42'43"W, a distance of 100.86 feet to a point; thence 
8. N42°17'17"W, a distance of 20.00 feet to a point; thence 
9. N47°42'43"E, a distance of 118.82 feet to a point; thence 
10. S48°26'33"E, a distance of 228.48 feet to a point; thence 
11. S38°36'11"E, a distance of 64.35 feet to a point; thence 
12. S61°52'58"E, a distance of 231.78 feet to a point; thence 
13. S28°38'18"W, a distance of 20.00 feet to a point; thence 
14. N61°52'58"W, a distance of 227.80 feet to a point; thence 
15. S50°37'53"W, a distance of 90.57 feet to a point; thence 
16. S44°22'27"E, a distance of 165.35 feet to a point; thence 
17. S45°37'33"W, a distance of 20.00 feet to a point; thence 
18. N44°22'27"W, a distance of 170.73 feet to a point; thence 
19. S77°43'04"W, a distance of 106.02 feet to the point; thence 
20. S35°45'30"W, a distance of 24.20 feet to the point and place of beginning.   
 

 
A sewer easement was created upon the above-described property by the filing of a sewer easement with 
the Monroe County Clerk’s Office in Deed Book 11227, page 236.  That sewer easement will be 
abandoned by the subsequent filing of a release of sewer easement upon the above-described property 
with the Monroe County Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



EXHIBIT 1 



 
 
 
 
 

PITTSFORD LEGAL NOTICE 
 

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION  
SUBJECT TO PERMISSIVE REFERENDUM 

 
 

Notice is hereby given that on April 5, 2022 the Town Board of the Town 
of Pittsford, New York adopted a Resolution authorizing the Town Supervisor to 
execute a release of a sewer easement held by the Town on property located at 
3520 – 3596 East Avenue.  Pursuant to Town Law, the Resolution is subject to a 
Permissive Referendum, a petition for which must be filed within thirty (30) days 
hereof.  Copies of the Town Board minutes of the above Town Board Resolution 
may be obtained at the Town Hall from the Office of the Town Clerk. 
 
 
Dated:  April 5, 2022    Renee M. McQuillen, Town Clerk 
                                                                     Town of Pittsford, New York 



MEMORANDUM 
To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Joy E. Brown - Director of Technology 

Date: March 28, 2022 

Regarding: Docuware Cloud Migration 
 

For Meeting On: April 5, 2022 

 
One thing that became increasingly clear during the pandemic, was the advantage to cloud 

computing.  Those who were using cloud services were able to transition their employees to work from 
home more easily than those who did not use cloud computing. In addition, large cloud providers have 
more security controls in place than most small entities can afford. Cloud solutions offer anytime, 
anywhere, any device access to applications and data.  

 
DocuWare is document management and workflow automation software that the Town (mostly 

DPW, Planning/Zoning, Sewer, Highway and Parks) has utilized for over 10 years.  By my best 
estimate, it houses over 250,000 files at this point.  The types of files that are stored in the system 
include:  maps, plans, easements, sewer inspections, sewer trouble call reports, sewer maps, 
subdivision maps, DPW property files, etc.  Organizations worldwide use DocuWare to capture, route 
and securely archive their most important business information.   

 
We currently house DocuWare on our internal servers which makes it difficult to access outside 

of the office. It would be very advantageous for our DocuWare data to be available to staff when they 
are working in the field with a multi-client cloud solution. In addition, Docuware Cloud would enable us 
to use all of the Docuware features. In our current on-premise version, there are many features that are 
only available with the purchase of additional licenses. Beyond the enhanced accessibility and features, 
the security, compliance, archival and backup features we would gain from this migration, would be 
highly beneficial. 

 
Costs of the project: 
 

Initial investment (one-time cost): $3,200 
License fees:    $1,000/month (36-month term) 

 
There is $2,340 already budgeted for maintenance for our current on-premise version of 

Docuware. Anticipating that we would be paying the monthly subscription cost of $1,000/month for 
possibly 8 months in 2022, we would require an extra $5,660 if the system is operational by May.  

 
With a transfer from the I.T. consultants (4404) line, there would be sufficient funds in the I.T. 

software maintenance (4409) line to cover this cost for 2022.  However, some funds may have to be 
transferred from other departments who benefit from this project, to cover any shortfall in paying the 
entire yearly subscription fee in the 2023 budget and beyond. 

 
I recommend that the Town Board approve the attached “Statement of Services” and “Master 

Software and Services Agreement” from Toshiba America Business Solutions, Inc. for the migration to 
Docuware Cloud. 
  



In the event that the Town Board determines that the proposed actions should be taken, the 
following Resolution is suggested: 
 
  
 
 
 

 
Resolved, that the Town Board approves the Docuware Cloud migration project and accepts 

the agreements with Toshiba America Business Solutions, Inc. 
  
 Further Resolved, that the Director of Technology, Joy E. Brown, is authorized to sign the 
agreements with Toshiba America Business Solutions, Inc. 



TOSHIBA Confidential    Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
      

 
STATEMENT OF SERVICES ("SOS") 

for 
Customer – Town of Pittsford 

Services – Migration to DocuWare Cloud 

 
Customer  Contractor 

 
Joy Brown  Timothy J. O’Neil 
Printed Name  Printed Name 

IT Manager 
 

Executive Vice President 
Printed Title  Printed Title 
 
 

  

Signature (Authorized Customer)  Signature (Authorized Contractor) 
 
 

  
 

Date   Date 
 
This Statement of Services (“SOS”) is made by and between Toshiba America Business Solutions, Inc. (“TABS”), 
including its division Toshiba Business Solutions (“TBS”), with its headquarters located at 25530 Commercentre 
Drive, Lake Forest, CA 92630 (collectively or individually TABS and TBS shall be referred to as the “Contractor”), 
and Town of Pittsford located at 11 S. Main Street, Pittsford, NY 14534 (the “Customer”). 

This SOS describes the project and details the services and deliverables (hereinafter collectively known as “Project 
Services”) associated with the DocuWare Migration from On-Premise to Cloud project (the “Project”). 

Project Services shall be provided pursuant to the “Project Contract” which consists of (i) this SOS together with 
(ii) the Master Software and Services Agreement (“MSSA”) Town of Pittsford DocuWare Cloud 36-Month MSSA 
dated 2/22/2022 between Contractor and its Customer (the “Services Agreement”).  This SOS is subject and 
subordinate to the MSSA.  To the extent the terms and conditions of the Services Agreement and SOS conflict, the 
MSSA shall prevail. 



TOSHIBA Confidential    Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 2 of 19      

Table of Contents 
 
 

1. PROJECT CONTACTS ............................................................................................. 3 

2. INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................ 4 

3. PROJECT OBJECTIVE ............................................................................................. 4 

4. PROJECT SCOPE ..................................................................................................... 4 

4.1. IN-SCOPE FUNCTIONALITY .................................................................................... 4 

4.2. OUT OF SCOPE FUNCTIONALITY: ......................................................................... 5 

5. PROJECT DELIVERABLE(S) ................................................................................... 5 

6. SERVICES ................................................................................................................. 6 

7. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND LICENSE FEES ................................................ 7 

8. ACCEPTANCE MILESTONES .................................................................................. 8 

9. COMPLETION CRITERIA ......................................................................................... 8 

10. CHANGE MANAGEMENT ......................................................................................... 9 

11. SUPPORT .................................................................................................................. 9 

12. SOS - ASSUMPTIONS ............................................................................................ 10 

13. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES .......................................................................... 10 

14. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES ..................................................................... 11 

15. ADDITIONAL TERMS .............................................................................................. 12 

EXHIBIT A: PROPOSED PROJECT PLAN ............................................................................... 13 

EXHIBIT B: PRICING SCHEDULE ............................................................................................. 14 

EXHIBIT C: SOLUTIONS DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE FORM .......................................... 15 

EXHIBIT D: CHANGE ORDER AUTHORIZATION FORM ......................................................... 16 

EXHIBIT E: SUPPORT ESCALATION PROCESS .................................................................... 17 

EXHIBIT F: BUSINESS REQUIREMENTS DOCUMENT ........................................................... 18 

EXHIBIT G: FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DOCUMENT .................................................................... 19 

 
 

 

 



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 3 of 19         Customer Initials 

1. Project Contacts 

 

 
 

 

  

Contractor Office 
Details 

 

Contractor Region North Central Region 
Address Line1 180 Kenneth Drive, Suite #200 
Address Line 2       
City, State, ZIP City, State. ZIP Rochester, NY 14623 
Phone Number 585-427-2222 
Fax Number       
Contractor Sales Rep. Name Mark Pelcher 
Contractor Consultant Name Henry Potts 
Contractor Analyst Name Karl Fanghanel 
Customer Number       
Contract Number       

Customer Details 
Customer Name Town of Pittsford 
Customer Contact Person Joy Brown 
Customer Address Line-1 11 S. Main Street 
Customer Address Line-2       
City, State, ZIP Pittsford, NY 14534 
Telephone #: 585-248-6201 Ext:       
Fax Number:       
Email Address: jbrown@townofpittsford.org  
Customer Number:       
Contract Number:       



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 4 of 19         Customer Initials 

2. Introduction 

Customer’s acceptance of this SOS shall be authorization for Contractor’s performance of the Project Services 
set forth in this SOS. Contractor reserves the right to utilize subContractors and sub-subContractors 
(collectively known as “Sub-Contractors”) in performance of the Project Services.  Contractor represents that 
all its Sub-Contractors (i) will be competent to perform the Project Services; (ii) will exercise commercially 
reasonable standards in performing these Project Services; and (iii) will comply with all terms and conditions 
applicable to Contractor in the performance of the Project Services.  

The purposes of the SOS are to (i) specify the work to be completed by the Contractor during phases of the 
Project; (ii) detail the obligations of the Contractor and the Customer; and (iii) set forth the Project schedule 
and fees.  

 

Contractor has prepared this SOS to detail the scope of Project Services and costs for the Project Services. 
The costs stated were derived by drawing from Contractor’s experience with similar engagements and using 
preliminary information received from Customer.   

 

The information in this SOS supersedes all previous estimates or verbal discussions on the project. This 
document is intended for Customer and Contractor only and cannot be distributed to persons or third parties 
not directly involved with this project without express written consent of both Customer and Contractor. 

3. Project Objective 

Based on the agreed upon business requirements, Contractor will provide design, implementation, training, 
and support services to the following locations: 
 

Town of Pittsford 11 S. Main Street, Pittsford, NY 14534 

4. Project Scope 

Contractor has identified the need to deploy Software and provide Professional Services for the 
implementation. Contractor will provide the following services to Customer: 

4.1. In-Scope Functionality 

• Consult with Customer personnel to implement Software. 
• Educate the Customer IT personnel on the features of Software.  
• Deploy and integrate Software.  
• Assist Customer IT personnel in the configuration of Software.    
• Training : 

o Administrative Training. 



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 5 of 19         Customer Initials 

o End user to use the Software. 

See the attached Exhibit A, Project Plan for more specific project tasks. 

4.2. Out of Scope Functionality: 

• Any activity not defined in the In-Scope functionality section of this document. 

5. Project Deliverable(s) 

Deliverable(s): 

Based on the agreed upon business requirements, Contractor will provide the following: 

1. Solution Design (Functional Design Document). 
2. Software Deployment and Configuration.  
3. Documentation: 

• Project Plan. 
• This Statement of Service (SOS). 
• Acceptance Documents (project signoff). 
• Software documentation is provided with the Contractor provided Software. 
• User Manual. 
• Installation & Administration Manual. 
• Configuration Documentation. 
• User Acceptance Testing Recommendations. 
• Administrative Training Materials. 

 

NOTE: For the on-premise components of the deployed solution, It is the responsibility of the Customer to meet 
the minimum installation pre-requisites provided to them prior to the installation of the software. 

 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 6 of 19         Customer Initials 

6. Services 

Contractor will provide the following services: 

• Data Migration from Old System to New 
• Configuration of DocuWare System 
• Project Management 
• System Setup and Configuration 
• Power User Testing 
• User Acceptance Testing 
• Building New Archive File Cabinet and Replicating Indexes 
• Define Established Roles and Permissions 
• Knowledge Worker Training 
• Post Testing Configuration Adjustments 
• Project Based, scoped per implementation (16 hours total) 

 
Note: Please reference the Project Plan for a complete list of Services provided. 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 7 of 19         Customer Initials 

 

7. Professional Services and License Fees 

 
This is a fixed fee engagement. If applicable the Professional Services for this project are included in the 
terms of the lease agreement signed by Customer. Any changes to this SOS will require a Change Order 
executed and agreed upon by both parties.  Contractor cannot perform work outside of the scope of this SOS 
without an authorized Change Order signed by Customer. 

Services Fees 

Initial Investment $3,200.00 

License Fees  $1,000.00/month (36-month term) 
(includes M&S) 

This document is valid for a period of 30 days from the cover date; after this date it may be revised upon 
consent by Contractor. 

Expenses associated with travel, overnight stays, etc., for the duration of this project are included in the 
estimate of this project. 

 

See Exhibit B, Pricing Schedule for itemized pricing quote  
 
  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 8 of 19         Customer Initials 

8. Acceptance Milestones 

Contractor has created the following testing and acceptance milestones to enable successful completion of the 
project to the satisfaction of both Contractor and Customer. These milestones are used to demonstrate the 
successful execution of the required services for Customer and this project. 

During this project, Contractor may request that you initial and date each milestone to signify acceptance. If 
additional milestones other than listed below are required, Contractor reserves the right to document and 
incorporate a Change Order to this SOS. 

 

Project Milestones 

Please refer to Exhibit A, Project Plan for project detail. 

Notes:  

The milestones table below is intended as a sample. Update as needed. 

Milestone Description Milestone Date 

DocuWare Cloud Migration  

1. Initiation and planning complete Mutually established between Customer and Contractor 

2. Software configuration complete Mutually established between Customer and Contractor 

3. Workflow design complete Mutually established between Customer and Contractor 

4. System testing complete Mutually established between Customer and Contractor 

5. User acceptance testing (UAT) complete Mutually established between Customer and Contractor 

6. Training complete  Mutually established between Customer and Contractor 

7. User Acceptance Signoff Mutually established between Customer and Contractor 

Project Complete Mutually established between Customer and Contractor 

9. Completion Criteria 

When the services detailed in this SOS and associated Project Plan have been completed and demonstrated, 
the project will be considered complete and Contractor will request Customer signoff of the attached Exhibit 
C, Solutions Delivery and Acceptance within 15 days of Project Plan completion. 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 9 of 19         Customer Initials 

10. Change Management 

While this SOS is intended to provide, as much as possible, a clear understanding of the responsibilities of the 
parties concerning these Project Services, it is not intended to encompass every conceivable obligation and 
responsibility that may arise.   

Circumstances encountered during the performance of these services that warrant additional time or 
expense could result in the inability to deliver the services detailed within this SOS. Changes to the scope, 
assumptions, personnel, environment, dependencies, timeline, Software or Deliverables will be 
communicated in writing and agreed to by both Contractor and Customer via Contractor’s Project 
Management personnel. A Change Order Authorization ("COA”) form may be added to this agreement to 
amend and set forth the effective date, purpose, description and price, if applicable. 

The work required to address these changes will be scoped and presented to Customer as a COA with any 
additional time, materials or cost. The following list provides a detailed process to follow if changes to the 
scope of this SOS are required. 

• A COA will be the vehicle for communicating change and will be prepared by the Contractor lead 
Solutions Analyst assigned to this project. The COA must describe the change, the reason for the change, 
and the effect the change will have on the project. 

• Both Project Managers will review the proposed change and approve. The review will determine the 
effect the COA will have on price, schedule, and other terms and conditions of this SOS.  

• A written COA must be signed by both parties to authorize the implementation of any changes. See the 
attached Exhibit D, SOS Change Order Authorization. 

11. Support 

Contractor will provide implementation support for this project through to its completion. This includes but is 
not limited to ensuring installed applications are performing to manufacturer’s specifications.  

Upon completion of the project, Customer will have access to the implemented solution’s support Engineers 
for technical issues. Support will continue to be available throughout the term of the contract and upon 
renewal of the contract. 

 

Please Refer to Exhibit E, Proposed Support Escalation Process for support details 
 

 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 10 of 19         Customer Initials 

12. SOS - Assumptions 

The following are the general assumptions on which this SOS and Professional Services Fee are based. If any 
of these assumptions either change or are incorrect a COA may be required, which may result in additional 
Professional Services fees.  

• Building environmental conditions that are within equipment specifications for airflow, temperature, 
humidity, and electrical quality. 

• Access to equipment and facilities will be unimpeded. If access delays occur, work may be considered out 
of scope and may be required to be done outside of business hours at an overtime premium. Normal 
hours are Monday through Friday 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. local time, excluding holidays. 

• Cabling and WAN Data Communication Lines are properly installed and tested. Contractor is not 
responsible for any improper cabling or issues involving telecommunications lines. All troubleshooting 
and corrective action will be billed outside of this SOS on a time and materials basis. 

• Contractor is not responsible for any conflicts with existing hardware or software that is no longer 
supported by the manufacturer.  

• Contractor is only responsible for integration tasks outlined in this proposed SOS. Any work outside of 
this SOS will be handled through a COA Process, which may require additional billable time and materials. 
Customer will be informed before any out of scope work is performed. 

• Contractor will have access to Customer facilities and technical resources for the completion of this 
project and may conduct a substantial portion of the project work offsite at its own facilities. 

• Deliverables and related activities have been explicitly defined herein, and anything not specifically 
included, but desired to be completed is to be addressed through the change management process. 

• All systems will be installed in US English (other localized language configurations can be provided at an 
incremental cost and with a potential impact to delivery times). 

13. Customer Responsibilities 

The “Scope of Service – Details” is the Software specific activities that are defined as the responsibility of 
Customer. If any of these responsibilities either change or are incorrect a COA may be required, which may 
result in additional Professional Services fees. Please review this section to make sure these responsibilities 
are correct. 

• Ensure that all applications and data are successfully backed up prior to Contractor beginning work. 
Contractor is not responsible for any lost information. 

• Provide original Manufacturer’s documentation for all existing hardware and software. 
• Provide technical and application support for configuration and testing of Customer specific information. 

Contractor does not warrant Customer applications. 
• Provide systems personnel for the project familiar with all aspects of Customer’s enterprise configuration 

– security, remote access, domain structure, WAN/LAN connectivity, applications used for this project – 
to work in conjunction with the Contractor team on this implementation. Additionally, a desktop 
technician may be required to perform Customer -side duties. 

• Communicate the project to appropriate users. 



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 11 of 19         Customer Initials 

• Make available all the appropriate resources, systems, network access, reports and any/all other data 
elements required for Contractor to complete the deliverables and other research necessary to complete 
this project as contained herein. 

• Provide a dedicated project manager to provide management, reporting, day to day project tracking, 
move/add/change requirements, and cross coordination of requirements. 

• Network configuration information to assist in solution design. 
• Deploy Software with the assistance of Customer IT Personnel to Customer desktops (if required). 
• Network connectivity between all solution components. 
• Identify a Project Sponsor with sign-off authority and ability to facilitate Customer stakeholder 

participation. 
• Provide the resources to complete Customer responsibilities defined in the Deliverables section of this 

SOS. 
• Provide access to key personnel and information needed to complete the project. 
• Provide access to technology resources with an understanding of the hardware and software 

environments contemplated in this project. 
• Provide the appropriate physical and network access to onsite resources, including IT areas and all 

necessary fees, licenses, and release forms, related to photos, logos, and imagery that are to be provided 
to Contractor. 

• Provide a workspace for Contractor staff to use onsite. 
• Report on any Customer technical or resource issues that would delay, hinder or adversely affect the 

deployment of the solution or its performance in the Customer environment. 
• Allow for the distribution of Software upgrades to Customer PC's as needed. 
• Accept title and/or license upon delivery/installation for product and/or software purchased if 

applicable. 
• Sign appropriate Contractor finance document for leased or financed transactions. 

14. Contractor Responsibilities 

The following are the Software specific activities that are the responsibility of Contractor. 

• Software license key. 
• Technical specifications for implementation. 
• Installation of the Software components. 
• Email and phone support for the duration of the contract. 
• Technical Services included in the scope herein. 
• Configuration of the Software components. 
• Solution training . 
• Support for the download of software updates for any of the on premises components of the 

solutions defined in this SOS is included in the Annual Maintenance and Support Agreement. 
• Services associated with this installation and deployment of updates, patches, bug fixes and updates 

for any of the on premises components of the solutions defined in this SOS are outside of this 
agreement and will require a separate project plan and SOS. 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 12 of 19         Customer Initials 

15. ADDITIONAL TERMS  

1. Neither party shall be responsible for circumstances beyond its reasonable control that make its 
performance impossible or delays its performance under this SOS.  To the extent that a party is delayed 
by such causes, the time to perform will be extended upon mutual agreement and execution of a SOS 
Change Order Authorization provided for herein, except with respect to the obligation to pay money to 
the other party, which period shall not be extended. 

2. Payment Terms shall be in accordance with the MSSA. 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 13 of 19         Customer Initials 

Exhibit A: Proposed Project Plan 
Note: THIS WILL BE ESTABLISHED ON PROJECT KICKOFF CALL WITH TOSHIBA PROJECT MANAGEMENT TEAM/TEAM 
FROM TOWN OF PITTSFORD. 

Task Name Duration Projected 
Start Date 

Projected 
End Date 

Customer Solution Implementation Project Plan 17d TBD TBD 

Initiation and Planning 5d TBD TBD 
Resource Allocation 4d TBD TBD 

Milestone - Initiation and Planning Complete 0d TBD TBD 

Execution 10d TBD TBD 
Software Configuration 5d TBD TBD 

Milestone - Workflow Design Complete 0d TBD TBD 
Install Workstation Clients 4d TBD TBD 

Install Solution client software 4d TBD TBD 
Milestone - Software Configuration Complete 0d TBD TBD 

System Testing 2d TBD TBD 

Milestone - System Testing Complete 0d TBD TBD 
Maintenance and Support 

 
TBD 

 

Measures and Control 
 

TBD 
 

 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 14 of 19         Customer Initials 

Exhibit B: Pricing Schedule  
N/A – Please see section 7. 

 

 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 15 of 19         Customer Initials 

Exhibit C: Solutions Delivery and Acceptance Form 

Solutions Delivery and Acceptance Form 
Customer Name:  

Project Name/Description 
 

Project Location Address 
 

Name And Title Of Authorized Person 
 

City, State, ZIP 
 

E-Mail Address 
 

Phone 
 

FAX 
 

Service Agreement Information  

 
Service Agreement Type: Statement of Services If other, specify:  

Service Agreement Date  
 

Deliverable / Milestone / Project Information 

 
 
 
 

Acknowledgement.  By signing below, Customer acknowledges and confirms that the 
deliverable, milestone and/or project referenced above has been completed, and all testing and 
acceptance criteria have been satisfied in all respects as of the date of this Form.  Accordingly, 
Contractor is authorized to invoice Customer for all unpaid or outstanding fees and charges 
relating thereto, which shall be due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Service 
Agreement. 
 
 

___   ________                   ____________________________________________________          ___   _______                  _    
        Date                                         Authorized Customer Representative Signature                   Title 
 

 
 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 16 of 19         Customer Initials 

Exhibit D: Change Order Authorization Form 

Statement of Services 
Change Order Authorization 

PS Project Name:  [ Insert Project Name] 

MSSA Number (if Applicable): [ Insert MSSA Number] 

Change Order Number:  [ Insert Change Number] 

This Statement of Services Change Order Authorization (“COA”) is made and entered into by and between Toshiba America 
Business Solutions, Inc. (“TOSHIBA”), located at 25530 Commercentre Drive, Lake Forest, CA 92630, and [CUSTOMER], 
located at ____________________________ (“CUSTOMER ADDRESS”), collectively “parties”. This COA is hereby 
incorporated by reference into the Statement of Services (“SOS”) between the Parties as of the Effective Date below.  This 
COA shall continue in effect until the termination or expiration of the SOS, unless sooner terminated in accordance with the 
terms of the SOS or as indicated herein.  Parties agree that this COA hereby amends and/or modifies the referenced SOS as 
follows: 

Effective Date: 

Purpose of Change: 

Change Description (if attachments are necessary, please number sequentially as Appendices)   
 

Pricing:   

Facsimile and electronic signatures shall have the same effect as written signatures 
 
The Parties have caused this COA to be executed and each individual whose signature appears below hereby warrants that 
they are duly authorized to execute this COA on behalf of the Party they represent:  

CONTRACTOR 
 

 CUSTOMER 

Printed Name:  Printed Name: 
 

Signature: 
 

 Signature: 

Title: 
 

 Title: 

Date: 
 

 Date: 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 17 of 19         Customer Initials 

Exhibit E: Support Escalation Process 
 

 

 
 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 18 of 19         Customer Initials 

Exhibit F: Business Requirements Document 
The Business Requirements Document (“BRD”) outlines the details the business solution for a project including 
the documentation of Customer needs and expectations. The BRD is intended to highlight the project Scope, 
Requirements, Assumptions, Constraints, and Risks.  

 
BRD WILL BE PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR 

 
 

  



 

TOSHIBA Confidential     Version  12/07/2020 
 
 
Page 19 of 19         Customer Initials 

Exhibit G: Functional Design Document 
The Functional Design Document provides an overview of the business issue to be addressed, a mock-up of the 
User Interface (UI) design, and a plain English synopsis of the logic anticipated. This document provides the 
Customer with the opportunity to approve the high-level design before the effort is made to develop a detailed or 
technical design.  

 
FDD WILL BE PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 
 
Master Software and Services Agreement 

Page 1 of 5  Version 12072020 

This SOLUTIONS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the Effective Date by and between Toshiba America Business Solutions, Inc. a 
California corporation with an address of 25530 Commercentre Drive, Lake Forest, CA 92630 (“TABS”) including its division  Toshiba Business Solutions 
(“TBS”), (collectively or individually TABS and TBS shall be referred to as the “Contractor") and the Client specified below ("Client"). 

1. DEFINITIONS.  

As used in this Agreement and in addition to any other terms defined herein, the following defined terms will have the following meanings: 

1.1. “Client” means Town of Pittsford located at 11 South Main Street, Pittsford, NY 14534. 

1.2 “Data Management Services or “DMS” means the Internet-based transactional application and database services provided by Contractor or its 
subcontractors that are accessible to Client via a Web browser through the Internet for managing business processes and information. 

1.3 “Effective Date” shall be the date the Client or Contractor executes the Agreement, whichever is later in time. 

1.4. “Initial Term” means the initial 36-month term commencing on the later of the Effective Date or the date that Client is first granted access to the 
DMS. 

2. SERVICES AND LICENSES. 

2.1. Contractor, or its subcontractor, will provide to Client the following services, to the extent, and only to the extent, set forth on mutually agreed 
Statement of Services (each, a “Statement of Services” or “SOS”), according to the terms of this Agreement: (i) software licenses; (ii) access to a cloud-
based and/or local server for data management (“Data Management Services” or “DMS”); (iii) implementation of the DMS by integrating Client’s internal 
information systems with the DMS (“Implementation Services”); (iv) consulting and software integration services (“Consulting Services”); (v) Client care 
and support services (“Support Services”); (vi) outsourced business processing services (“BPO Services”); and (vi) other DMS projects (“Project 
Services”). The SOS is attached as Schedule A (the “Services”). Each SOS will include a description of each Service, the fee corresponding to each 
Service, and indicate whether the fee is recurring or nonrecurring. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency, this Agreement takes precedence over the 
SOS. 

2.2. Contractor, or its subcontractor, may develop modifications to the DMS and/or new software programs (collectively, the "Developed Software"). 
Client waives any and all proprietary right or interest in any requested changes, modifications, suggestions, or comments communicated by Client to 
Contractor, or its subcontractor, and assigns to Contractor, or its subcontractor, any and all rights therein. Contractor, or its subcontractor, reserves all 
rights in the Developed Software, including, but not limited to, all intellectual property rights therein. Contractor, or its subcontractor, hereby grants to 
Client a non-exclusive, non-transferable, fully paid up license to use the Developed Software solely for use with the DMS and subject to the access 
limitations in Section 3. 

3. ACCESS TO THE SERVICES AND/OR DMS AND PERMITTED USE. 

3.1. Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations set forth in this Agreement, Contractor shall grant Client a non-exclusive, non-transferable (except as 
set forth herein), license, for the duration of the Term, to the Software and/or access and use the Services and/or DMS as set forth in Section 2.1.  The 
Service and/or DMS offers access to the functionalities of the Software.  The functionalities available as part of the Service may vary from time to time, 
provided however that removed functionality will be replaced with other functionality permitting performance of substantially the same fundamental 
activities. Client is responsible for using the License and materials therein in a manner that complies with the applicable requirements but shall not use 
the Services that would subject Contractor to additional regulatory requirements. 

3.2.  Client is responsible for ensuring that the Services and/or DMS shall only be accessed and used by individually named users who are employees of 
Client, Client Affiliates or Contractors and who are provided with a User ID by Contractor or its subcontractor.  No more than one designated user shall 
have access to each User ID and Client shall ensure that User IDs are not shared.  Client shall be responsible for all activities that occurs under each 
User ID and shall be liable for Contractor for any acts and omissions of each designated User. Contractor is not responsible for monitoring Client’s 
internal access process or Client’s internal access authorization outside the United States. 

3.3. Client will not remove any proprietary notices of Contractor, or its subcontractor, or third parties found in or on the DMS or the Developed Software. 
Client shall not, and shall not allow third parties, to attempt to copy, modify, disassemble, or reverse engineer the DMS or the Developed Software. The 
DMS in object code and source code form, and all rights in the Services or DMS, including but not limited to all intellectual property rights therein, are 
and will remain the exclusive property of Contractor, or its subcontractor. Client will have no claim of ownership or any intellectual property rights in the 
Services or DMS. No rights other than those specifically stated herein are granted to Client, and Client will have no right to permit third-party access to 
the Services or DMS. 

3.4. Client and Client Affiliates may use the Services and/or DMS to process its and their own data for its and their own internal and commercial 
business purposes, including data collection and reporting activities which Client or any Client Affiliate performs on behalf of its clients, provided, 
however, that Client shall not, and will ensure that Client Affiliates shall not directly or indirectly resell or sublicense the Licenses Services or purport to 
do so. Client shall not download, copy, decompile, revise, reverse engineer, modify or derive source code from the Services and/or DMS. 

  



 
 
Master Software and Services Agreement 

Page 2 of 5  Version 12072020 

4. PAYMENTS. 

4.1. For the Services provided under this Agreement, Client will pay to Contractor the fees in the amount and manner set forth in the applicable SOS. All 
fees and expenses incurred by Contractor in the performance of the Services will be billed to Client in advance on a monthly basis unless stated 
otherwise in the applicable SOS, in which case the terms of the applicable SOS will control. Contractor may adjust the rates and charges applicable 
following the expiration of the Initial Term upon at least ninety (90) days prior written notice. All fees paid and expenses reimbursed under this 
Agreement will be in U.S. dollars. 

4.2. The applicable SOS may specify certain fees to be paid by electronic funds transfer. For those fees to be paid by electronic funds transfer, Client 
hereby authorizes Contractor to initiate an electronic funds transfer from Client’s bank account indicated in Schedule B in an amount equal to the fees 
set forth in the applicable SOS in accordance with the payment terms set forth in this Agreement and/or the applicable SOS. All payments made by 
electronic funds transfer will be paid in immediately available funds. For those fees payable to Contractor under this Agreement that are not paid by 
electronic funds transfer, Client will pay Contractor the invoiced amount within fifteen (15) days after Client’s receipt of an invoice from Contractor. 

4.3. Contractor may assess Client a late fee of 1½% per month (not to exceed the maximum allowed under state law) on all balances not paid when due. 
Client agrees to pay any and all costs incurred in the collection of charges due and payable, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, 
whether or not a lawsuit or other legal proceeding is instituted. Contractor, at its option, may suspend the Services, in whole or in part, if Contractor does 
not receive an amount due and owing under this Agreement within thirty (30) days after the due date. Contractor reserves the right to suspend all 
Services if Client is not current on all payment obligations to Contractor or its Subcontractors for the Services and all other obligations, including but not 
limited to equipment lease obligations. 

4.4. Client will pay, or reimburse Contractor for, any out-of-pocket expenses, including, without limitation, travel and travel related expenses, incurred by 
Contractor at the request of or with the approval of Client in connection with the performance of this Agreement. Reasonable and customary expenses 
incurred by Contractor, including without limitation expenses incurred for travel, local transportation, lodging and meals, will be billed to Client at 
Contractor’s actual cost. 

5. TAXES.  

Client will pay all sales, use, transfer, privilege, excise, charges, surcharges or other taxes, and all duties, whether international, national, state or local, 
however designated, which are levied or imposed by reason of the transactions contemplated hereby (collectively, the “Taxes”); excluding, however, 
income taxes on profits which may be levied against Contractor. In addition to the fees specified in the applicable SOS, the amount of any Taxes 
applicable to the transactions contemplated hereby will be paid by Client, or in lieu thereof, Client will provide Contractor with a tax exemption certificate 
acceptable to the applicable taxing authorities. 

6. USE OF CLIENT'S DATA.  

Client's information is proprietary to Client and Contractor, or its subcontractor, will not use for itself nor disclose to any third party any information that is 
identifiable to Client or to employees of Client without the express written consent of Client. Client shall permit Contractor, or its subcontractor, to use 
data obtained from Client and others to prepare statistical analyses, provided that Contractor, or its subcontractor, will not reveal information identifiable 
to any person or specific Client.  

7. SERVICES AND DMS. 

7.1. To the extent Contractor or its subcontractors provide DMS hosting services, such hosting services will be made available to Client twenty-four 
hours a day, seven days a week less (i) scheduled DMS, hardware or service maintenance; (ii) downtime resulting from the acts or omissions of Client 
or Client's employees, agents, contractors, or vendors, or anyone gaining access to the  DMS by means of Client's passwords or equipment; (iii) a failure 
of the Internet and/or the public switched telephone DMS or other event described in section 15 herein; or (iv) the occurrence of any event that is beyond 
Contractor, or its subcontractor’s, reasonable control (collectively, “Excusable Downtime”). Contractor, or its subcontractor, warrants that the Services 
and DMS will be available to Client at least 95% of the time during each month, excluding Excusable Downtime ("Uptime Warranty"); provided that Client 
satisfies the hardware and communication requirements set forth in the Services and/or DMS documentation and is otherwise current on all payment 
obligations to Contractor and its Subcontractors. 

7.2. If the Services and/or DMS is down more than the Uptime Warranty during a month, then upon client request Contractor will credit to Client a pro-
rated portion of the recurring fees set forth in the Initial SOS in the first month of the next succeeding calendar quarter following the failure. For purposes 
of this Section 7.2, "pro-rated portion of the recurring fee" means the product obtained by multiplying the applicable recurring fee during the month of the 
failure by a fraction, the numerator of which will be the number of hours that the Services and/or DMS did not satisfy the Uptime Warranty (i.e. the 
excess of actual downtime over Excusable Downtime in the applicable month), and the denominator of which will be the total number of hours of the 
Uptime Commitment during the month that such failure occurred. THE FOREGOING REFUND WILL BE CLIENT’S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY 
FOR CONTRACTOR’S FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE UPTIME COMMITMENT IN THIS SECTION 7.2 AND CLIENT HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL 
OTHER REMEDIES AVAILABLE IN LAW AND EQUITY RELATED TO THE UPTIME WARRANTY. 

  



 
 
Master Software and Services Agreement 

Page 3 of 5  Version 12072020 

8. WARRANTIES AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

8.1. Client represents and warrants (i) that Client either owns or has the right to authorize the reproduction of any hardcopy or electronic records 
provided to Contractor, or its subcontractor, (ii) the documents, materials or other records provided to Contractor, or its subcontractor, do not infringe any 
United States copyright, trademark, patents, trade secrets or other proprietary rights of any third-party. Client agrees to indemnify and hold Contractor 
harmless from any and all claims by any third-party that the documents, materials or records provided by Client pursuant to this Agreement infringe upon 
the third-party’s intellectual property rights, proprietary rights or were otherwise reproduced or processed in an unauthorized manner and (iii) the 
Services do not violate a federal, state or municipal law or regulation. Client will indemnify and hold Contractor and its affiliates, officers, directors, 
shareholders, employees, agents and representatives harmless from and against all damages, costs, expenses, and liabilities, including without 
limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, from any third party claim of any kind against Contractor arising from Client’s breach of this 
Agreement or negligence or willful misconduct arising in whole or in part under this Agreement. 

8.2. Contractor represents and warrants (i) that Contractor either owns or has the right to grant the access license set forth herein, and (ii) that the 
Services do not infringe any United States copyrights, trademarks, patents, trade secrets, or other proprietary rights (collectively, “IP Rights”) of any third 
party. Contractor will indemnify and hold Client harmless from and against any damages, costs, expenses and liabilities, including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees, from any third party claims against Client arising from the breach of the representations and warranties set forth in this Section 8.2. The 
indemnification obligations are contingent upon Contractor being promptly notified of such claim, having the sole authority to defend or settle such claim, 
and receiving the reasonable assistance of Client in connection therewith at Contractor’s expense. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor will have 
no indemnification obligation hereunder with respect to claims based on: (i) use of the Services and/or DMS except in accordance with this Agreement 
and Contractor’s written instructions; (ii) the combination of the Services and/or DMS with any other software or hardware; (iii) modifications of the 
Services and/or DMS not made by Contractor, or its subcontractor; or (iv) Client’s failure to implement changes recommended by Contractor, or its 
subcontractor, if the infringement would have been avoided in the absence of such combination, modifications or failure to implement recommended 
changes.  

8.3. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY INDICATED IN THIS SECTION 8, THE SERVICES AND/OR DMS ARE PROVIDED 
“AS IS” AND NEITHER PARTY MAKES ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, CONDITIONS OR REPRESENTATIONS TO THE OTHER 
PARTY WITH RESPECT TO THE DMS OR THE SERVICES PROVIDED HEREUNDER OR OTHERWISE, WHETHER ORAL OR WRITTEN, 
EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY. WITHOUT LIMITING THE FOREGOING, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OR CONDITION OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, AND THE IMPLIED WARRANTY OR CONDITION OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE EXPRESSLY 
EXCLUDED AND DISCLAIMED. 

9. TERM AND TERMINATION. 

9.1. Following the expiration of the Initial Term of this Agreement, this Agreement will automatically renew for additional successive terms of one (1) year 
(each a “Renewal Term”), unless either party provides written notice to the other party at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the then current term of 
its intent not to renew the term of this Agreement.  

9.2. In the event that either party hereto materially defaults in the performance of any of its duties or obligations under the Agreement and does not 
substantially cure such default within thirty (30) days after receiving written notice specifying the default, then the non-defaulting party may, by giving 
written notice thereof to the defaulting party, terminate this Agreement as of a date specified in such notice of termination. Termination of this Agreement 
for cause will terminate any SOS or SOS then in effect. 

9.3. Termination of this Agreement by either party pursuant to the provisions of this Section 9 shall terminate each party’s obligations under this 
Agreement except for the provisions of Sections 4, 5, 6, 8, 9.3, and 10 all of which shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

9.4. Client may terminate this Agreement during the Initial Term or any Renewal Term, upon sixty (60) days advance written notice to Contractor, without 
cause if Client pays Contractor a cancellation fee equal to one hundred (100) percent of the average actual fees charged for the prior four (4) month 
period, multiplied by the remaining billable months in the then applicable Initial Term or Renewal Term. Client agrees to pay any Cancellation Fee within 
fifteen (15) days of any specified early termination event. Client acknowledges that such Cancellation Fee is not a penalty, but is intended to be 
liquidated damages, the actual damages being difficult to determine in advance. Payment of the Cancellation Fee is the sole remedy for Client’s early 
termination. 

10. LIMITED LIABILITY. 

10.1. CLIENT AGREES THAT TOSHIBA, SUBCONTRACTORS AND ALL AFFILIATES' OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, SHAREHOLDERS, 
AGENTS, LICENSORS, OR REPRESENTATIVES WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DAMAGES OR COSTS INCURRED AS A RESULT OF LOSS OF TIME, LOSS 
OF SAVINGS, LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF DATA OR LOSS OF GOODWILL, WHETHER FORESEEABLE OR UNFORESEEABLE, THAT MAY 
ARISE OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DAMAGES OR COSTS RESULTING FROM 
THE USE OR INABILITY TO USE THE  DMS OR SERVICES, EVEN IF TOSHIBA HAS BEEN NOTIFIED OF THE POSSIBILITY OR LIKELIHOOD OF 
SUCH DAMAGES OR COSTS OCCURRING, AND WHETHER SUCH LIABILITY IS BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT 
LIABILITY, PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE.. 

10.2. EXCEPT FOR A DATA BREACH, IN NO EVENT WILL THE COLLECTIVE LIABILITY OF TOSHIBA, SUBCONTRACTORS, OR ITS AFFILIATES 
FOR ANY DAMAGES INCURRED BY CLIENT EVER EXCEED THE FEES RECEIVED BY TOSHIBA UNDER THIS AGREEMENT DURING THE 



 
 
Master Software and Services Agreement 

Page 4 of 5  Version 12072020 

TWELVE MONTHS PRIOR TO THE TIME AT WHICH THE DAMAGES AROSE REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER BASED ON 
CONTRACT, TORT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE.  TO THE EXTENT TOSHIBA OR ITS 
SUBCONTRACTOR IS IN BREACH OF SECTION 13, TOSHIBA’S ENTIRE LIABILITY IS LIMITED TO DIRECT, PROVEN DAMAGES BUT IN NO 
EVENT MORE THAN ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000.00) PER OCCURANCE AND TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($250,000.00) IN THE AGGREGATE.   

10.3. SHIPPING TERMS ARE FOB SHIPPING POINT. TOSHIBA IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGES INCURRED IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
PACKAGING, SHIPMENT OR DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS, FILES OR BOXES FROM CLIENT LOCATION TO TOSHIBA, OR ITS 
SUBCONTRACTOR, FACILITIES. 

11. NOTICES.  

Any notice, approval, request, authorization, direction or other communication under this Agreement, except for billing and payment communication 
pursuant to section 4, shall be given in writing and shall be deemed to have been delivered and given for all purposes (i) on the delivery date if delivered 
personally to the party to whom the same is directed; (ii) one business day after deposit with a commercial overnight carrier, with written verification of 
receipt, or (iii) five business days after the mailing date whether or not actually received, if sent by U.S. certified mail, return receipt requested postage 
and charges pre-paid or any other means of rapid mail delivery for which the receipt is available, to the address of the party set forth at the end of this 
document. 

To Contractor: 25530 Commercentre Drive 
  Lake Forest, CA 92630 
 

With a Copy to: TABS Legal Department 
25530 Commercentre Drive 

  Lake Forest, CA 92630 
 

To Client:  Town of Pittsford 

  11 South Main Street 

  Pittsford, NY 14534 

 

12. SCHEDULES AND EXHIBITS.  

The following Schedule(s) and Exhibit(s) are attached to and made a part of this Agreement by this reference: 

Schedule A: Statement of Services  
 

13. DATA PROTECTION, SUBCONTRACTORS, DATA BREACH NOTIFICATION.  

13.1 The Parties acknowledge and agree that (i) Client will be and remain the controller of the client material for purposes of the applicable laws relating 
to data privacy, personal data, transborder data flow and data protection; (ii) Client is the party instructing Contractor in relation to the use of the Client 
materials for activities including emailing, data collection, and reporting, and (iii) Contractor or its subcontractor will be processing Client materials on 
Client’s behalf.   

13.2 Pursuant to Section 13.1, Contractor (i) does not participate in Client’s or Client’s Affiliates selection of the individuals targeted by e-mails or 
questionnaires or individuals to whom data or access to reports is provided; (ii) does not influence or control the type of data and information gathered 
from individuals or the content of the material displayed to individuals, and (iii) does not influence or control the use and distribution of the data and 
information collected or inputted by Client or Client Affiliates. 

13.3 Contractor shall maintain and shall ensure any third-party subcontractor maintains commercially reasonable technical and organizational processes 
to protect (i) against the unauthorized access to such Personal Data; and (ii) against accidental loss or destruction of or damage to such Personal Data 
held or processed by it all times in accordance with generally accepted industry practice. 

13.4 Client hereby authorizes Contractor to use third party suppliers to manage the Services and/or DMS and the hosting environment therein as of the 
Effective Date.   

14. INSURANCE.  

During the Term, and for a period of three (3) years after its termination or expiration, the parties shall procure and maintain with a reputable insurance 
company, the following insurance coverage: 



 
 
Master Software and Services Agreement 

Page 5 of 5  Version 12072020 

14.1 During the Term, and for a period of three (3) years after its termination or expiration, Contractor shall procure and maintain the following insurance 
coverage: (i) for purposes of Contractor’s obligations set forth in section 13.3, Contractor shall maintain cybersecurity coverage in an amount no less 
than as required under section 10 herein, and (ii) for purpose of Contractor’s indemnity obligations set forth in section 8 herein, general liability coverage 
with limits as required under section 10 herein. 

14.2 During the Term, and for a period of three (3) years after its termination or expiration, Client shall procure and maintain the following insurance 
coverage: for purpose of Client’s indemnity obligations set forth in section 8 herein, general liability coverage with limits no less than $100,000.00 per 
occurrence and $250,000 aggregate. 

14.3 Upon request by either party, either Contractor or Client, as the case may be, will provide proof of insurance coverage. In the event that any such 
insurance coverage is canceled, terminated or not renewed, Contractor or Client, as the case may be, shall immediately notify the other party of such 
action and shall procure replacement insurance coverage without delay.   

15. MISCELLANEOUS.  

In the event that either party’s performance is delayed, prevented, obstructed or inhibited because of any act of God, fire, casualty, delay or disruption in 
transportation or utilities  flood, war, strike, lockout, epidemic, destruction or shutdown of facilities, shortage or curtailment, riot, insurrection, 
governmental acts or directives, any full or partial failure of any communications or computer DMS or any cause beyond such party’s reasonable control, 
the party’s performance will be excused and the time for the performance will be extended for the period of delay or inability to perform resulting from 
such occurrence. The occurrence of such an event will not constitute grounds for a declaration of default by either party. Client shall not assign or 
otherwise transfer all or any or of its rights, obligations or interest under this Agreement without the written consent of Contractor, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, and any attempt to do so shall be void and of no force or effect for any purpose whatsoever and shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement. The failure of either party to insist upon the performance of any provision herein or to exercise any right or privilege granted to it hereunder 
will not be construed as a waiver of such provision or any provisions herein, and the same will continue in full force. The various rights and remedies 
given to or reserved by either party herein or allowed by law, are cumulative, and no delay or omission to exercise any of its rights will be construed as a 
waiver of any default or acquiescence, nor will any waiver of any breach or any provision be considered an acceptance of any continuing or subsequent 
breach of the same provision. The Agreement and the Services will be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the internal laws of the state of 
California, excluding its conflict of law rules. Any action, suit, or other proceeding shall be brought by either party against the other party in a State or 
Superior court of competent jurisdiction in Orange County, California. Both Parties hereby submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts and waive 
any objection to jurisdiction or venue in any such proceeding.  

This Agreement, together with the exhibits attached hereto which are hereby incorporated herein, sets forth the entire agreement between the parties 
relating to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior agreements of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. No change, 
amendment or modification of any provision of this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in a written instrument signed by the duly authorized 
representatives of both parties. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all which together shall 
constitute one and the same document. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives and made effective as of the 
Effective Date. 

 
 

CLIENT NAME: 

ADDRESS: Town of Pittsford 

  

BY: Joy Brown 

NAME:  

TITLE: IT Manager 

DATE:  

 

TOSHIBA AMERICA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, INC.: 

ADDRESS:  

  

BY: Timothy J. O’Neil 

NAME:  

TITLE: Executive Vice President 

DATE:  

 



 
 4/5/22 
 

Budget Amendment 
 

  
Be it resolved that the following is approved: 
 
That 3.7410.4127.24.3 (Library: E-Materials) be increased by $9,649.17.  The source of the 
funds will be grant money from the Friends and Foundation of the Rochester Public Library 
(FFRPL). 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 1

PAGE 1

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

585 FITNESS JRH 155630 042022/TISA INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR YOUTH CONDITIONIN 148.75

VENDOR TOTAL 148.75

ACTION TELEPHONE EXCHANGE PJS 155585 198003312022 MARCH 22 - AFTER HRS ANSWER SVC 187.50

VENDOR TOTAL 187.50

ADMAR SUPPLY COMPANY, INC PJS 155509 RO2007545 RENT CHIPPER 808.00

VENDOR TOTAL 808.00

AETNA INC. BWL 155464 19796422 HEALTH PREMIUM: APRIL 16,270.40

VENDOR TOTAL 16,270.40

ALLIANCE DOOR & HARDWARE PJS 155470 227584 OVERHEAD DOOR REPAIR #9 270.00
PJS 155470 007553 OVERHEAD DOOR REPAIR #9 310.00
PJS 155416 227512 REPAIR PSD GARAGE DOOR 2-26 565.00

VENDOR TOTAL 1,145.00

AMERICAN EQUIPMENT LLC PJS 155598 89198 475 LIGHTS 130.94
PJS 155613 88802 RENTAL EXCAVATOR 2,750.00

VENDOR TOTAL 2,880.94

AMERICAN ROCK SALT CO. PJS 155442 0709419 191.94 10,823.49
PJS 155442 0709215 608.76 34,327.92
PJS 155442 0708954 38.90 2,193.57

VENDOR TOTAL 47,344.98

APPLIED MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES & SOLUTIONS PJS 155445 7023728618 HOURGLASS SLEEVES 310.00



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 2

PAGE 2

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

APPLIED MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES & SOLUTIONS PJS 155593 7023841539 SHOP SUPPLIES 47.18

VENDOR TOTAL 357.18

ARMSTRONG JRH 155634 042022/ARMSTRONG INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR WATERCOLOR CLASS 378.00

VENDOR TOTAL 378.00

ASSOCIATION OF TOWNS OF NEW YORK STATE BWL 155611 2261 2022 CLE TRAINING: SMITH 215.00
BWL 155611 2293 2022 CLE TRAINING: KOEGEL 215.00

VENDOR TOTAL 430.00

AUTO VALUE PARTS STORES PJS 155507 605429/L BRAKES FOR 335-2 888.74
PJS 155602 606808/L BULBS 7.30
PJS 155527 606349/L SHOP CHEMICALS 41.45
PJS 155522 6917-018121 BULBS 471 13.37

VENDOR TOTAL 950.86

AVILA - SMITH BWL 155459 20220315 INTERPRETER SERVICES 450.00

VENDOR TOTAL 450.00

BEEMAN JRH 155636 042022/BEEMAN INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR SENSORY & SCIENCE 189.00

VENDOR TOTAL 189.00

BLAIR SUPPLY CORP PJS 155534 1254695 PIPE FITTINGS 601.53

VENDOR TOTAL 601.53

BRIDGE TOWER OP CO, LLC RMN 155418 745337962 LEGAL NOTICE-ZONING BRD OF APPEALS PUBLI 66.33
RMN 155532 745347807 LEGAL NOTICE- PUBLIC HRG NOTICE SEWER DI 85.98



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 3

PAGE 3

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

BRIDGE TOWER OP CO, LLC RMN 155530 745312770 LEGAL NOTICE-ZONING BRD PBL HRG FOR AREA 80.74

VENDOR TOTAL 233.05

BRODNER EQUIPMENT, INC. PJS 155414 407174 VEH. #460-4 - EXMARK 60" LAZER E SERIES 13,481.00

VENDOR TOTAL 13,481.00

BSN SPORTS LLC PJS 155451 916465753 SOCCER NETS 603.04

VENDOR TOTAL 603.04

BYRNE JRH 155618 042022/BYRNE INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR MAKING SOAP THE E 141.40

VENDOR TOTAL 141.40

CASTLE BRANCH INC BWL 155606 0836981-IN EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 495.00

VENDOR TOTAL 495.00

CATALOG AND COMMERCE SOLUTIONS, LLC JB 155417 2323 WEBSITE MANAGEMENT/SUPPORT - 2ND QUARTER 1,550.00

VENDOR TOTAL 1,550.00

CCP INDUSTRIES INC PJS 155574 IN02983721 APPAREL - TH 37.99
PJS 155435 IN02978320 APPAREL - TH 69.99
PJS 155434 IN02972399 APPAREL - TH 55.99

VENDOR TOTAL 163.97

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS JB 155609 129319401032422 FIBER INTERNET 50MBPS & 5 STATIC IPS - 3 548.09
JB 155493 138786301031822 BUSINESS CLASS DIGITAL ADAPTERS 3/17/22- 42.08



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 4

PAGE 4

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 590.17

CHASE CARD SERVICES BWL 155457 031722 PLANTS / FLOWERS 202.86
BWL 155506 2183231 WILDFLOWER SEED MIX 1,079.95

VENDOR TOTAL 1,282.81

CHRIST CLARION PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH RMN 155486 03232022 GENERAL ELECTION- NOVEMBER 2, 2021 - SIT 80.00

VENDOR TOTAL 80.00

CHURCH OF THE TRANSFIGURATION RMN 155485 03232022 GENERAL ELECTION- NOVEMBER 2, 2021 - SIT 200.00

VENDOR TOTAL 200.00

CINTAS CORPORATION #411 PJS 155514 4114376442 RUG & MOP SERVICE 280.05

VENDOR TOTAL 280.05

COLLEGE ASSISTANCE PLUS JRH 155617 042022/CELUCH INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR COLLEGE 101 28.00

VENDOR TOTAL 28.00

COLONY HARDWARE CORP. PJS 155573 INV0840130 IBUPROFEN (WAS BACKORDERED) 23.56
JRH 155584 INV-0805198 FIRST AID SUPPLIES 28.30
JRH 155584 INV-0799909 FIRST AID SUPPLIES 172.42
JRH 155584 INV-0839820 FIRST AID SUPPLIES 388.80

VENDOR TOTAL 613.08

CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY, INC. PJS 155431 61912354101 PORT OF PITTSFORD 18.03
PJS 155431 61827739401 KINGS BEND PARK 8.18
PJS 155431 61827750101 631 MARSH ROAD 20.69



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 5

PAGE 5

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 46.90

COOK BROTHERS TRUCK PARTS PJS 155478 1569296 MIRROR 70.36

VENDOR TOTAL 70.36

COPPOLA JRH 155619 042022/COPPOLA INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR IRISH DANCE 1,963.31

VENDOR TOTAL 1,963.31

COUNTRYMAN PJS 155546 03302022 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 12.76

VENDOR TOTAL 12.76

CREIGHTON SELF-DEFENSE INC JRH 155643 042022/CREIGHTON INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR MARTIAL ARTS 3,195.20

VENDOR TOTAL 3,195.20

CROSMAN SEED CORP PJS 155500 10472 SEED 162.00

VENDOR TOTAL 162.00

CSX TRANSPORTATION PJS 155490 8422552 ALLENS CREEK ANNUAL LAND LEASE 2022 824.68

VENDOR TOTAL 824.68

CUSTOM TRUCK CREATIONS, INC. PJS 155518 13685 BUMPER GUARD AND BACK UP WARNING 1,631.95

VENDOR TOTAL 1,631.95

CYNCON EQUIPMENT INC. PJS 155604 88878 SWEEPER NOZZLES 102.30



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 6

PAGE 6

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 102.30

D.J.M. EQUIPMENT, INC. BOBCAT OF THE FINGER LAKE PJS 155426 01-165166 WIPER FOR BOBCAT WINDSHIELD 121.37

VENDOR TOTAL 121.37

DAVISON PJS 155413 MKD031622 MILEAGE REIMB - DMV 7.37

VENDOR TOTAL 7.37

DEBBIE SUPPLY INC PJS 155588 647373 SHOP SUPPLIES 94.34
PJS 155588 645734 SHOP SUPPLIES 15.29
PJS 155588 645210 SHOP SUPPLIES 43.20
PJS 155588 644393 SHOP SUPPLIES 0.00
PJS 155588 644355 SHOP SUPPLIES 0.00
PJS 155588 650376 SHOP SUPPLIES 0.00
PJS 155610 658529 WELDING CORD 64.05
PJS 155528 658455 CAULK 16.18

VENDOR TOTAL 233.06

DELL MARKETING L.P. JB 155587 10572761613 OPTIPLEX 3090 PC'S 9,499.32
JB 155595 10573066262 OPTIPLEX 3280 ALL-IN-ONE 24,911.80

VENDOR TOTAL 34,411.12

DOLOMITE PRODUCTS CO INC PJS 155497 1044817 STONE - CR1 209.44
PJS 155497 1044419 STONE - WASHED STONE 798.82

VENDOR TOTAL 1,008.26

DOWARD JRH 155631 042022/DOWARD INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR HORSE'S FRIEND HO 364.00



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 7

PAGE 7

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 364.00

EDP, KGS, LLC JRH 155622 042022/SSHOTS INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR SOCCER SHOTS 87.50

VENDOR TOTAL 87.50

EDWARDS TREE & LANDSCAPE PJS 155452 2416 TREE BEHIND 48 WOODGREEN 800.00

VENDOR TOTAL 800.00

ELMER W. DAVIS, INC. PJS 154496 4960 REPAIR TOWN HALL ROOF 3,335.00

VENDOR TOTAL 3,335.00

EMPIRE TENNIS, LLC JRH 155625 042022/SPEIRS INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR JUNIOR GROUP TENN 523.60

VENDOR TOTAL 523.60

EVEVSKY JRH 155644 042022/EVEVSKY TAI CHI CLASSES FOR SENIORS MARCH 2022 472.50

VENDOR TOTAL 472.50

EXCELLUS BWL 155594 55086-0002: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: GOV SERVICES 50.25
BWL 155594 55086-0003: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: BLDG MAINT 45.60
BWL 155594 55086-0004: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: DPW ADMIN 22.80
BWL 155594 55086-0005: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: IT 18.24
BWL 155594 55086-0006: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: RECREATION 45.60
BWL 155594 55086-0007: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: PARKS 54.72
BWL 155594 55086-0008: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: P & Z 54.72
BWL 155594 55086-0009: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: GIS 4.56
BWL 155594 55086-0010: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: LIBRARY 68.40
BWL 155594 55086-0001: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: GEN ADMIN 59.28
BWL 155594 55086-0011: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: HWY MECHANICS 13.68
BWL 155594 55086-0012: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: HWY 287.28



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 8

PAGE 8

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

EXCELLUS BWL 155594 55086-0013: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: PSD 82.08
BWL 155594 55086-0014: DENTAL ADMIN FEES: PFD 9.12

VENDOR TOTAL 816.33

F.W. WEBB COMPANY PJS 155543 75428780 PIPE AND FLANGES 2,067.00

VENDOR TOTAL 2,067.00

FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC PJS 155446 7495550 FAUCET/SENSORS 156.34
PJS 155549 7494915-1 FAUCETS 180.60

VENDOR TOTAL 336.94

FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE COMPANY OF NY BWL 155603 165220409 APRIL VISION PREMIUM 479.98

VENDOR TOTAL 479.98

FINGER LAKES CASTLE PJS 155510 851161 SHOP LUBES AND SOLVENTS 382.12
PJS 155529 851160 SHOP SUPPLIES 171.87

VENDOR TOTAL 553.99

FINGER LAKES MULCH & SOIL PRODUCTS PJS 155511 22-00338 DYED BROWN MULCH 1,608.75

VENDOR TOTAL 1,608.75

FLEET PRIDE PJS 155438 96504027 TARP PARTS 453.OIL FILTERS 250.00
PJS 155438 94406551 TARP PARTS 453.OIL FILTERS 203.79
PJS 155438 93519332 CREDIT -350.70

VENDOR TOTAL 103.09

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS PJS 155566 DPW FAX 032222 DPW - FAX 64.11



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 9

PAGE 9

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS EG 155548 32822 MONTHLY INVOICE 3/22-4/21 64.17
PJS 155562 HWY EMIS 032222 HWY EMISSIONS 63.80
JB 155498 3/22/6431-052517-6 IT DEPT EMERGENCY PHONE SERVICE 3/22/22 32.64
JRH 155565 032022/SENIORS SENIORS PHONE SERVICES 03/22/2022-04/21/ 64.52
BWL 155615 585-100-2618-050219-6 MONTHLY PHONE PYMT 1,165.64
PJS 155551 585-248-3897-052517-6 PSD FIRE SECURITY 32.50
PJS 155551 585-248-2520-052517-6 PARKS FIRE SECURITY 32.07

VENDOR TOTAL 1,519.45

FULMORE JRH 155620 042022/FULMORE INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR CPR/AED & FIRST A 196.00

VENDOR TOTAL 196.00

GENERAL WELDING AND FABRICATION PJS 155430 32814 PLOW MARKER 23.39
PJS 155599 32861 TRAILER PLUG 60.14

VENDOR TOTAL 83.53

GEORGE MILLER BRICK CO. PJS 155480 0004956-00 SEWER BRICK 868.00

VENDOR TOTAL 868.00

GOTTA III JRH 155570 032022/GOTTA SQUARE DANCING SENIOR PROGRAM FOR MARCH 75.00

VENDOR TOTAL 75.00

GRAINGER, INC. PJS 155425 1441075674 PT 2 BOOTS FOR RF & MO 121.49
PJS 155415 9244296654 SANDING DISCS 62.00

VENDOR TOTAL 183.49

HADLOCK'S ACE HARDWARE PJS 155502 001057 WRENCH 21.99
PJS 155443 001046 BROOMS 78.97
PJS 155533 001066 DRILL BITS 24.99



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 10

PAGE 10

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

HADLOCK'S ACE HARDWARE PJS 155535 001068 HAND TOOLS 298.52
PJS 155475 001040 CIRCUT BREAKER 64.99
PJS 155450 001053 DRILL BITS 51.98
PJS 155492 001052 ANTIFREEZE FOR RAVO SWEEPER 45.54
PJS 155545 001070 TAPCONS 35.99

VENDOR TOTAL 622.97

HANSON JRH 155642 042022/HANSON INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR PITTSFORD BALLET 1,867.87

VENDOR TOTAL 1,867.87

HANSON AGGREGATES NEW YORK LLC PJS 155542 656340 CONCRETE 1,245.00
PJS 155501 655893 CONCRETE 448.00
PJS 155520 4085862 COLD PATCH 208.94

VENDOR TOTAL 1,901.94

HARDICK JRH 155561 2112022 DJ SERVICES FOR SWEETHEART DANCE 350.00

VENDOR TOTAL 350.00

HARRIS BEACH PLLC BWL 155458 8849951 OUTSIDE COUNSEL 287.00

VENDOR TOTAL 287.00

HAWK COLLISION & FRAME PJS 155537 125680 INSPECTIONS 20.00
PJS 155537 125664 INSPECTIONS 20.00
PJS 155537 125649 INSPECTIONS 20.00
PJS 155469 125452 AXLE REPAIR 9,330.15

VENDOR TOTAL 9,390.15

HERZOG JRH 155576 03302022/HERZOG LINE DANCING FOR SENIORS FOR MARCH 2022 350.00



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 11

PAGE 11

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 350.00

HILLYARD, INC. PJS 155512 604676033 PAPER TOWELS 42.93
PJS 155449 604662713 CLEANING AND PAPER SUPPLIES ALL BUILDING 49.08

VENDOR TOTAL 92.01

HOME DEPOT PJS 155427 1014939 DUGOUT SUPPLIES 143.77
PJS 155428 3014606 ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES 129.75
PJS 155513 6023185 PICNIC TABLE LUMBER, CLAMPS 126.89
PJS 155437 7160137 MAILBOX 59.98
PJS 155436 2525296 TOOLS FOR SHOP 498.47
PJS 155466 2014734 LITHIUM BATTERIES, IMPACT DRIVER, LEVELS 466.91
PJS 155466 1031377 WOOD, BATTERIES 99.37
PJS 155466 7031755 WOOD 235.98
PJS 155466 6031863 WOOD, SCREWS, BITS 211.35
PJS 155466 6031915 WOOD, SCREWS 322.62
PJS 155466 7014024 WOOD, SCREWS 1,036.27
PJS 155539 00236986 HAND TOOLS 783.46
PJS 155586 8010586 PAINT, LUMBER 1,917.96
PJS 155590 0024031 POLEBARN 1,884.72
PJS 155589 8032901 CONCRETE SCREWS 53.74
PJS 155592 9521569 HDMI CABLE 82.96
PJS 155472 H1264-179655 GREASE GUN 169.00
PJS 155455 7022973 CONCRETE 15.51
PJS 155455 7023003 LUMBER FOR PICNIC TABLES 375.46
PJS 155491 5015654 WOOD FOR POLE BARN 1,977.20
PJS 155489 4032166 WOOD FOR POLE BARN 157.60
PJS 155544 0023976 PAINT, JOIST HANGERS 55.49

VENDOR TOTAL 10,804.46

HYNES CONCRETE CONTRACTOR INCORPORATED PJS 155440 S15158 TREE ON KNOLLWOOD 1,500.00

VENDOR TOTAL 1,500.00



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 12

PAGE 12

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

INTIVITY, INC. PJS 155422 1771194-0 STORAGE BOXES 85.46
JRH 155577 1773199-1 GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 94.76
JRH 155577 1773199-0 GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 34.76

VENDOR TOTAL 214.98

J. C. SMITH, INC. PJS 155572 1597747 LASER LEVER REPAIRS & RECEIVERS 706.00
PJS 155423 1594757 LASER LEVER REPAIRS & RECEIVERS 155.54
PJS 155473 1595642 CONCRETE/MORTOR 1,123.52

VENDOR TOTAL 1,985.06

J. O'CONNELL & ASSOCIATES, INC. BWL 155600 1109 APRIL GRANT SERVICES 3,600.00

VENDOR TOTAL 3,600.00

JOHNSON CONTROLS FIRE PROTECTION LP PJS 155550 88617561 SPRINKLER INSPECTION SCC 270.00

VENDOR TOTAL 270.00

JONES JRH 155568 032022/ZUMBA SENIORS ZUMBA GOLD PROGRAM MARCH 2022 120.00

VENDOR TOTAL 120.00

KAWCZYNSKI JRH 155571 032022/KAWCZYNSKI YOGA FOR SENIORS FOR MARCH 2022 240.00

VENDOR TOTAL 240.00

KOVALSKY-CARR ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO., INC. PJS 155515 S1990923.001 LIGHT BULBS 362.40
PJS 155515 S1990923.002 LIGHT BULBS 69.12
PJS 155516 S1987720.003 CREDIT FOR RETURNED BALLASTS -276.69
PJS 155516 S1987720.002 EMERGENCY BALLASTS 320.00
PJS 155516 S1987720.001 EMERGENCY BALLASTS 460.00
PJS 155525 S1991209.001 BULBS 955.80
PJS 155525 S1985320.003 CREDIT -195.00



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 13

PAGE 13

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 1,695.63

LAKESIDE TOOL, INC. PJS 155448 322291 TOOLS 200.81
PJS 155447 322323 1 3/16 SOCKETT 20.43

VENDOR TOTAL 221.24

LEWIS GENERAL TIRES, INC. PJS 155607 148537 471 TIRE REPAIR 118.95

VENDOR TOTAL 118.95

MAGGIO JRH 155638 042022/MAGGIO INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR MARTIAL ARTS FOR 60.06

VENDOR TOTAL 60.06

MAGLIATO JRH 155627 042022/MAGLIATO INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR WIGGLES & LIL ATH 1,073.80

VENDOR TOTAL 1,073.80

MCVEAN JRH 155639 042022/MCVEAN INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR AEROBICS 783.09

VENDOR TOTAL 783.09

MILLER JRH 155621 042022/MILLER INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR ALL-OCCASION CARD 63.00

VENDOR TOTAL 63.00

MITCHELL1 PJS 155524 IB27352121 APRIL BILLING 394.00

VENDOR TOTAL 394.00

MONROE CO FIRE MARSHALS & INSPECTORS PJS 155575 033022 MEMBERSHIP & SEMINAR 195.00



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 14

PAGE 14

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 195.00

MONROE COUNTY DIRECTOR OF FINANCE BWL 155456 SAP #300024 4TH QTR 2021 COPIES OF DEEDS 139.75

VENDOR TOTAL 139.75

MURPHY PJS 155429 03212022 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 85.00

VENDOR TOTAL 85.00

MURRAY JRH 155629 042022/MURRAY INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR PRESCHOOL ADVENTU 470.40

VENDOR TOTAL 470.40

MUTUAL OF OMAHA BWL 155463 001336795492 DISABILITY & LIFE INS. PREMIUM: APRIL 3,098.79

VENDOR TOTAL 3,098.79

MVP HEALTH CARE BWL 155481 16417003 HEALTH CARE BILL: APRIL 162,242.36
BWL 155465 16418753 HEALTH PREMIUM: MARCH RETRO 1,189.71

VENDOR TOTAL 163,432.07

NAPA AUTO PARTS PJS 155540 6917-018219 OIL AND FILTER FOR 338-2 46.49

VENDOR TOTAL 46.49

NEW YORK MARKING DEVICES CORP. RMN 155424 910162 3 NAME PLATES-IACOBBUCCI/VEKASY/ALGUIRE 138.60
JRH 155582 90031 NAME PLATES FOR SCHROM & POULIN 50.80

VENDOR TOTAL 189.40



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 15

PAGE 15

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

NOCO ENERGY CORP. PJS 155444 SP12301524 150.4 GALLONS 585.44
PJS 155596 SP12312385 100.4 GALLONS 350.39
PJS 155521 SP12307538 200.1GALLONS 774.95
PJS 155521 SP12309408 101.5 GALLONS 354.23

VENDOR TOTAL 2,065.01

NORTHEAST SWEEPERS AND RENTALS, INC. PJS 155605 8257 RAVO SERVICE 166.87

VENDOR TOTAL 166.87

O'BRIEN'S PORTABLE TOILETS PJS 155453 67051 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 170.00

VENDOR TOTAL 170.00

OIL FILTER SERVICE, INC. PJS 155499 48076 FILTERS 95.38
PJS 155499 48342 FILTERS 33.28
PJS 155597 48774 441 FILTERS 155.28

VENDOR TOTAL 283.94

PARK PLACE FARMS LLC JRH 155628 042022/PARKPLACE INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR HORSEBACK CAMP KI 448.00

VENDOR TOTAL 448.00

PAYCHEX, INC. BWL 155454 2209366 MONTHLY TIME & ATTENDANCE 150.00

VENDOR TOTAL 150.00

PHOENIX GRAPHICS, INC. PJS 155517 69014 2022 YARD DEBRIS MAILER 6,901.47

VENDOR TOTAL 6,901.47

PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC JRH 155583 1020349632 INK FOR THE POSTAGE METER 116.88



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 16

PAGE 16

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 116.88

PITTSFORD CENTRAL SCHOOLS PJS 155439 2375-22A HIGHWAY FUEL 10,303.93
PJS 155432 2379-22A TH UNLEADED GAS - NOV 2021 1,141.61
JRH 155579 1896-22A SENIORS GASOLINE OCTOBER 2021 120.47

VENDOR TOTAL 11,566.01

PITTSFORD YOUTH SERVICES INCORPORATED BWL 155640 3704 APRIL SERVICES 5,388.33

VENDOR TOTAL 5,388.33

POWER DRIVES, INC. PJS 155612 RRS874149 HOSES 475 196.49
PJS 155468 RRS872571 HOSE 440 114.81

VENDOR TOTAL 311.30

PRAZAR JRH 155632 042022/PRAZAR INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR ANTIQUES AND COLL 175.00

VENDOR TOTAL 175.00

PULSE OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE OF ROCHESTER BWL 155488 567050 EMPLOYMENT SCREENINGS 513.00

VENDOR TOTAL 513.00

R.M. PUTNEY & ASSOCIATES, INC JRH 155563 3844 COMMECIAL ORGANICS PICK UP FOR APRIL 202 48.00

VENDOR TOTAL 48.00

REGIONAL INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION PJS 155536 011187792P TAILLIGHTS 136.49
PJS 155601 011187970P 441 REPAIR 109.52
PJS 155477 011187035P AIR TANK 455 973.16
PJS 155494 011187563P TRANS FILTER 59.89



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 17

PAGE 17

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 1,279.06

ROBINSON JRH 155637 042022/ROBINSON INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR BELLY DANCE 311.85

VENDOR TOTAL 311.85

ROCHESTER GAS & ELECTRIC PJS 155483 11909977926 BARKER RD PARK ELECTRIC AND CONSTELLATIO 233.55
PJS 155482 12409905933 295 FAIRPORT RD PUMP STATION 48.22
PJS 155484 18600047975 ELECT & GAS - TOWN WIDE 6,855.33
BWL 155460 18600047903 MONTHLY STREET LIGHTING PYMT 6,591.32

VENDOR TOTAL 13,728.42

SEYMOUR MIDWEST LLC PJS 155503 1003754-IN ROAD RAKES 246.24

VENDOR TOTAL 246.24

SEYREK SEALERS LLC PJS 155645 032322 MITCHELL 80 MITCHELL DEMO - ROLL OFF SERVICE 8,000.00

VENDOR TOTAL 8,000.00

SHELBY CRUSHED STONE, INC. PJS 155441 12200135 COLD PATCH 120.75

VENDOR TOTAL 120.75

SLAUGHTER JRH 155633 042022/SLAUGHTER INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR SEMI-PRIVATE GYMN 1,716.40

VENDOR TOTAL 1,716.40

SOFTWARE HOUSE INTERNATIONAL, INC. JB 155495 B14891261 ADOBE PHOTOSHOP/PRO RENEWALS 3,648.12



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 18

PAGE 18

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 3,648.12

SPRINGBROOK SOFTWARE, LLC JB 155531 INV-008748 AD HOC REPORTING & ENTERPRISE MAINTENANC 15,601.66

VENDOR TOTAL 15,601.66

ST GEORGE JRH 155626 042022/STGEORGE INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR DEFENSIVE DRIVING 94.50

VENDOR TOTAL 94.50

STATE COMPTROLLER BWL 155616 2636690-2022-01-01 TOWN COURT FEES: JANUARY 3,062.75

VENDOR TOTAL 3,062.75

STREET SKILLS, LLC JRH 155624 042022/DELVECCHIO INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR 5 HOUR COURSE 175.00

VENDOR TOTAL 175.00

SYNERGY GLOBAL SOLUTIONS JB 155523 125317 ARCSERVE RENEWALS 1,084.63
JB 155614 125552 AD CONNECT SYNCH TROUBLESHOOTING CONSULA 90.00

VENDOR TOTAL 1,174.63

THE DUKE COMPANY PJS 155496 001507894 REBAR 96.00
PJS 155461 001507813 THREAD ROD 86.94
PJS 155462 001506968 REBAR AND FIBRE TUBE 281.80
PJS 155462 001507072 COIL RODS 97.52
PJS 155462 001507533 COIL RODS 48.08

VENDOR TOTAL 610.34

THE UNITED CHURCH OF PITTSFORD RMN 155487 03232022 GENERAL ELECTION - NOVEMBER 2, 2021 -  S 75.00



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 19

PAGE 19

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 75.00

THE WARRIOR FACTORY, LLC JRH 155578 57499498-151493 FIELD TRIP FOR BREAK CAMP 650.00

VENDOR TOTAL 650.00

TOLLS BY MAIL PJS 155591 17656174691 TOLLS 17.88

VENDOR TOTAL 17.88

TOSHIBA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS JB 155504 5743335 MANAGED PRINT SERVICES-NETWORKED PRINTER 36.29
JB 155419 5707785 MANAGED PRINT SERVICES-STAND-ALONE PRINT 270.00
JB 155420 5726879 MANAGED PRINT SERVICES-STAND-ALONE PRINT 270.00
JB 155421 5715036 MANAGED PRINT SERVICES-NETWORKED PRINTER 134.12
PJS 155412 5730577 DPW COPIER 2ND FL 1ST QTR CHARGES 506.76
JRH 155581 5726513 RECREATION COPIER BILLING FEBRUARY 2022 98.25
JRH 155580 5731154 SENIORS COPIER BILLING FEBRUARY 2022 13.12

VENDOR TOTAL 1,328.54

ULINE INC. PJS 155547 146185125 PAPER TOWELS 349.74
PJS 155547 CM144407722 CREDIT FOR RETURNED WIPE DISPENSER -180.00

VENDOR TOTAL 169.74

USI INSURANCE SERVICES LLC BWL 155505 4096692 ADD VEHICLE TO INSURANCE 181.00

VENDOR TOTAL 181.00

VAN BORTEL FORD PJS 155508 395136 CALIPERS FOR #335-2 370.90
PJS 155508 CM395136 CORE RETURN CREDIT -100.00
PJS 155608 395441 BRACKET 40.20
PJS 155526 395440 PLATE BRACKET 411 4.39
PJS 155519 FOCQ55023 NYS INSPECTION #414 21.00



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 20

PAGE 20

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 336.49

VERIZON WIRELESS PJS 155433 9901498715 MONTHLY CELL PHONE CHARGES 516.00

VENDOR TOTAL 516.00

VERNICK JRH 155623 042022/VERNICK INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR HARRY POTTER ETIQ 252.00

VENDOR TOTAL 252.00

VICTOR POWER EQUIPMENT PJS 155474 299074 AIR FILTERS/BAR OIL 282.25
PJS 155476 299091 SPARK PLUGS 133.29

VENDOR TOTAL 415.54

VIKING CIVES USA PJS 155471 4514865 CHAIN ADJUSTER 484.74

VENDOR TOTAL 484.74

VP SUPPLY CORP. PJS 155541 4962739 LIGHTS FOR STONETOWN 210.14

VENDOR TOTAL 210.14

WAGSTAFF JRH 155635 042022/WAGSTAFF INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR INDOOR JUNIOR TEN 875.00

VENDOR TOTAL 875.00

WARD RMN 155538 03292022 COURIER REIMBURSEMENT 3/14/22 -3/25/22 15.03

VENDOR TOTAL 15.03

WISSET JRH 155641 042022/WISSET INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR TINY TAP AND BALL 457.38



Run date: 01-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 21

PAGE 21

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 457.38

XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS USA, INC. PJS 155467 3556C13616 CONNECTION KIT FOR DOWNING PUMP STATION 2,104.60
PJS 155479 3556C14329 CONTROL PANEL - DOWNING PUMP STATION 1,020.60

VENDOR TOTAL 3,125.20

REPORT TOTAL 442,994.82

END OF REPORT



MEMORANDUM 
To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Brian Luke, Director of Finance 

Date: March 30, 2022 

Regarding: Surplus Inventory 
 

For Meeting On: April 5, 2022 
 
 
Attached is a list of surplus inventory for the Town Board to declare surplus in order for it to be 
removed from the Town’s inventory. 
 
 
Be it resolved, that the attached list of equipment be declared surplus and be removed 
from the Town’s inventory. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Asset   # Year Description Department Cost Disposition
14398 2006 MIG 115V WELDER & CART Highway 811.00       Junked
20169 2019 ELECTRIC DRYER Highway 398.00       Junked
17566 2013 FORD F-250 4X4 # 502-1 Highway 20,127.00 Auction
17566-2 2013 UTILITY BOX FOR # 502-1 Highway 5,697.00   Auction
18805 2016 WASHING MACHINE Highway 379.05       Junked
14324 2004 STEELMAX MAGNETIC DRILL Highway 850.00       Junked
17525 2013 CUT-SAW (W/ CART, WATER TANK) Highway 1,240.00   Junked
14096 2003 HONDA PLATE TAMPER Highway 1,550.00   Junked
10002 1980 IBM SELECTRIC II - BLUE Clerk 800.00       Junked



MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board 

From: Brian Luke, Director of Finance 

Date: March 30, 2022 

Regarding: Court Financial Review 
 

For Meeting On: April 5, 2022 
 
 
The Uniform Justice Court Act requires that Town Justices annually present their court records 
and dockets, and that the Town Board acknowledge that this has been done. 
 
The Town’s auditor, Bonadio & Co., has reviewed the Justice Court records for fiscal year 
2021.  There were no findings in its FY21 Court Review.  
 
 
At this time, I am requesting that the Town Board adopt the following resolution acknowledging 
that the required review has been conducted. 
 
 
 
Resolved, that the Town Board acknowledges that the required Justice Court financial 
review, pursuant to Section 2019-a of the Uniform Justice Court Act, has been 
conducted and filed with the Town Clerk. 
 
    
 



� � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ! " # � $ � $ � � � � % & � � � ' � � � � � � � � �( � � � ) � * � � � + � � � � , � � � - . � � / 0 1 2 3 2 0



4 5 6 7 8 7 5 6 7 5 9 : ; ; < = 5 9 : 5 9 > ? @ 7 8 < @ 9< 5 : 8 8 A B 4 5 C : C @ 7 7 6 D = 8 < 5 8 @ < ; 7 6 = @ 7 ?E F G H I J H K L M N L O L LP Q R S F P Q T U V Q J H W Q X R S FP Q T U Q X Y Z R R [ X Q H W N \ F T ] Q H ^ _` F S J a F b F H X Q H c F W R S F b H Q d F W I H F [ F U I c F H J R F W G F e Q T N T S Z d S T F H F J f H F F W R Q G K R S FP Q T U Q X Y Z R R [ X Q H W N \ F T ] Q H ^ g R S F P Q T U h N Q U R S F R H J U [ J d R Z Q U [ Q X P Q T U i I [ R Z d F i Q S UV F H U J d ^ Z N i H j J U W P Q T U i I [ R Z d F k Z d S J F e l U [ J e W Z g d Q e e F d R Z a F e K N R S F i I [ R Z d F [ h g R S F[ b F d Z X Z F W b J H R Z F [ h X Q H R S F K F J H F U W F W m F d F c G F H n o N L O L o j P S F P Q T U p [ c J U J f F c F U RZ [ H F [ b Q U [ Z G e F X Q H R S F i I [ R Z d F [ p R H J U [ J d R Z Q U [ j P S F P Q T U S J [ J f H F F W R Q J U WJ d ^ U Q T e F W f F W R S J R R S F b H Q d F W I H F [ b F H X Q H c F W J H F J b b H Q b H Z J R F X Q H R S F Z H Z U R F U W F Wb I H b Q [ F j P S Z [ H F b Q H R c J K U Q R G F [ I Z R J G e F X Q H J U K Q R S F H b I H b Q [ F j P S F b H Q d F W I H F [b F H X Q H c F W c J K U Q R J W W H F [ [ J e e R S F Z R F c [ Q X Z U R F H F [ R R Q J I [ F H Q X R S Z [ H F b Q H R J U W c J KU Q R c F F R R S F U F F W [ Q X J e e I [ F H [ Q X R S Z [ H F b Q H R J U W N J [ [ I d S N I [ F H [ J H F H F [ b Q U [ Z G e F X Q HW F R F H c Z U Z U f T S F R S F H R S F b H Q d F W I H F [ b F H X Q H c F W J H F J b b H Q b H Z J R F X Q H R S F Z H b I H b Q [ F [ jP S F b H Q d F W I H F [ J U W J [ [ Q d Z J R F W X Z U W Z U f [ J H F J [ X Q e e Q T [ _8 q r s t u v q t w xy Q c b e F R F R S F i I [ R Z d F y Q I H R d S F d ^ e Z [ R J [ W Q d I c F U R F W Z U l b b F U W Z z o O Q X R S F \ F T ] Q H ^{ R J R F | X X Z d F Q X R S F { R J R F y Q c b R H Q e e F H } l U U I J e y S F d ^ e Z [ R X Q H ~ F a Z F T Q X i I [ R Z d F y Q I H R~ F d Q H W [ � j� � � u � � � �Y H Q d F W I H F b F H X Q H c F W T Z R S Q I R F z d F b R Z Q U j8 q r s t u v q t w �| G R J Z U J U I U W F H [ R J U W Z U f Q X R S F Z U R F H U J e J d d Q I U R Z U f d Q U R H Q e [ Q a F H R S F b H Q d F W I H F [ X Q HS J U W e Z U f d J [ S J U W H F d Q H W Z U f R H J U [ J d R Z Q U [ R S H Q I f S W Z [ d I [ [ Z Q U [ T Z R S R S F y Q I H R y e F H ^ [ j� � � u � � � �Y H Q d F W I H F b F H X Q H c F W T Z R S Q I R F z d F b R Z Q U j8 q r s t u v q t w �| G R J Z U R S F G J U ^ H F d Q U d Z e Z J R Z Q U [ X Q H R S F i I [ R Z d F [ p G J Z e J U W X Z U F J d d Q I U R [ X Q H F J d S Q XR S H F F c Q U R S [ [ F e F d R F W g E F G H I J H K N i I e K N J U W | d R Q G F H L O L o h J U W d Q c b J H F R Q[ I b b Q H R Z U f W Q d I c F U R J R Z Q U [ I d S J [ Q H Z f Z U J e G J U ^ [ R J R F c F U R [ J U W Q I R [ R J U W Z U f d S F d ^e Z [ R [ j� � � u � � � �Y H Q d F W I H F b F H X Q H c F W T Z R S Q I R F z d F b R Z Q U j8 q r s t u v q t w �| G R J Z U J S J b S J � J H W [ J c b e F Q X R F U g o O h H F d F Z b R [ J U W R F U g o O h W Z [ G I H [ F c F U R [ X H Q cF J d S i I [ R Z d F p [ X Z U F J U W G J Z e J d d Q I U R [ X Q H R S F K F J H F U W F W m F d F c G F H n o N L O L o J U Wd Q c b J H F R Q [ I b b Q H R Z U f W Q d I c F U R J R Z Q U [ I d S J [ R Z d ^ F R N d J [ F T Q H ^ Q H c Q U R S e K H F b Q H R j� � � u � � � �Y H Q d F W I H F b F H X Q H c F W T Z R S Q I R F z d F b R Z Q U j�
ALBANY • BUFFALO • DALLAS • EAST AURORA • NY METRO AREA • ROCHESTER • RUTLAND, VT • SYRACUSE • UTICA

171 Sully ’s Trail 

Pittsford, New York 14534 

p (585) 381-1000 

f (585) 381-3131 

www.bonadio.com



8 q r s t u v q t w �| G R J Z U J S J b S J � J H W [ J c b e F Q X R S H F F g n h R H J U [ J d R Z Q U [ Q X J d d Q I U R [ H F d F Z a J G e F X Q H R S F K F J H F U W F Wm F d F c G F H n o N L O L o J U W d Q c b J H F R Q [ I b b Q H R Z U f W Q d I c F U R J R Z Q U j� � � u � � � �` F U Q R F W R S J R R S F H F T F H F U Q H F d F Z a J G e F [ J R K F J H F U W j P S F H F X Q H F N R S Z [ b H Q d F W I H F T J [ U Q R b F H X Q H c F W j` F T F H F F U f J f F W G K R S F [ b F d Z X Z F W b J H R Z F [ R Q b F H X Q H c R S Z [ J f H F F W � I b Q U b H Q d F W I H F [ F U f J f F c F U R J U Wd Q U W I d R F W Q I H F U f J f F c F U R Z U J d d Q H W J U d F T Z R S J R R F [ R J R Z Q U [ R J U W J H W [ F [ R J G e Z [ S F W G K R S F l c F H Z d J U� U [ R Z R I R F Q X y F H R Z X Z F W Y I G e Z d l d d Q I U R J U R [ j ` F T F H F U Q R F U f J f F W R Q J U W W Z W U Q R d Q U W I d R J U F z J c Z U J R Z Q UQ H H F a Z F T F U f J f F c F U R N R S F Q G � F d R Z a F Q X T S Z d S T Q I e W G F R S F F z b H F [ [ Z Q U Q X J U Q b Z U Z Q U Q H d Q U d e I [ Z Q U NH F [ b F d R Z a F e K N Q U R S F R H J U [ J d R Z Q U [ Q X F J d S i I [ R Z d F j l d d Q H W Z U f e K N T F W Q U Q R F z b H F [ [ [ I d S J U Q b Z U Z Q U Q Hd Q U d e I [ Z Q U j � J W T F b F H X Q H c F W J W W Z R Z Q U J e b H Q d F W I H F [ N Q R S F H c J R R F H [ c Z f S R S J a F d Q c F R Q Q I H J R R F U R Z Q UR S J R T Q I e W S J a F G F F U H F b Q H R F W R Q K Q I j` F J H F H F � I Z H F W R Q G F Z U W F b F U W F U R Q X R S F [ b F d Z X Z F W b J H R Z F [ J U W R Q c F F R Q R S F H F R S Z d J e H F [ b Q U [ Z G Z e Z R Z F [ N Z UJ d d Q H W J U d F T Z R S R S F H F e F a J U R F R S Z d J e H F � I Z H F c F U R [ H F e J R F W R Q Q I H J f H F F W � I b Q U b H Q d F W I H F [ F U f J f F c F U R jP S Z [ H F b Q H R Z [ Z U R F U W F W [ Q e F e K X Q H R S F Z U X Q H c J R Z Q U J U W I [ F Q X R S F P Q T U N R S F P Q T U V Q J H W N J U W R S F i I [ R Z d F [J U W Z [ U Q R Z U R F U W F W R Q G F J U W [ S Q I e W U Q R G F I [ F W G K J U K Q U F Q R S F H R S J U R S Q [ F [ b F d Z X Z F W b J H R Z F [ j

�



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � � , � �

-. - -
-. - -

-. - -
-. - -

-. - --. - --. - -
/ - 01 /2 -. - -

3 04 1 2 2 2 . - -
/ 5 61 4 4 7. - -

/2 / 1 3 3 0. - -
/ - 31 2 8 8. - -2 -1 - - -. - -2 61 4 0 -. - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� � �9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� : :9 	 	 �� � �� � �� � ��9 � : �� � �	 	9 ; : :� � �� � �� � �� � 9 � � �� � �	 	9 : � �� � �� � �� � �<9 � � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� �9 � < �� � �:9 < � �� � �

=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A

=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �

BC D ? / - / -
BC D ? / / / -

BC D ? / 8 8 -
BC D ? / 8 3 -

BC D ? / 3 / -BC D ? / 3 8 -BC D ? / 3 3 -
EF G H - - - / I J K J L MN E O K B= P Q K R P M L B= P Q K S O T = U V J T

= P Q K T O W J L X U T P L
V P Y Y O K U = Z T J L X U V J

B U L J V = P L P E E U K M K V J
U K B J W J K B J K = M O B U == M [ V P N N J V = U P K

/ - 01 /2 -. - -
3 04 1 5 / 0. 5 7

/ 5 61 4 4 7. - -
/2 31 84 4 . - -

/ - 31 2 8 8. - -2 -1 - - -. - -2 61 4 0 -. - -
� � �9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� � �� � �� � � 9 � � :� 	 �� : :9 	 	 �� � �� � �� � ��9 � : �� � �� � � 9 ; � ;� � �� � �� � �� � 9 � � �� � �	 	9 : � �� � �� � �� � �<9 � � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� �9 � < �� � �:9 < � �� � �

84 1 5 3 0. 6 6
5 71 5 72 . / 5

6 51 5 74 . - 8
3 01 7 5 5. 7 5

8 -1 2 0 -. 8 581 - - -. - -/ -1 4 54 . / 7
� ;9 � : :� � �� � �� � �� :9 � � :� ; :�� � �< :9 : � �� � �� :9 : � �� � ;�� � �� 9 � � �� ; �� �9 � � �� � ��� � �� �9 � 	 <� � 	� 	9 � � �� � ��� � �� 9 � � �� � 	�9 � � �� � �� �9 ; � <� � :: <� � :

0 -1 8 / / . 2 7
8 5 -1 52 3. 4 4

/ 6 61 0 - 0. 5 0
/ / 61 2 4 4 . 3 /

0 81 5 6 / . 4 /6 01 - - -. - -6 31 5 0 8. 0 6
; �9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� : :9 � � �� � �� � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � 	� ; <� � �� � ��9 � ; 	� � �; ;9 � � �� � �� � �� � �< �9 � � �� < �: �9 < : �� � �� � �� � ��9 � � 	� ; �� :9 � � �� � �< �9 ; � �� � �:9 � � �� < �

-. - -
3 7 3. 5 7

-. - -
-. - -

-. - --. - --. - -
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �< � <� 	 ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �

0 -1 8 / / . 2 7
8 5 -1 2 0 5. 0 /

/ 6 61 0 - 0. 5 0
/ / 61 2 4 4 . 3 /

0 81 5 6 / . 4 /6 01 - - -. - -6 31 5 0 8. 0 6
; �9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� : :9 � � �� � �� � �� � �� � � 9 : � :� � 	� � �9 � � 	� ; <� � �� � ��9 � ; 	� � �; ;9 � � �� � �� � �� � �< �9 � � �� < �: �9 < : �� � �� � �� � ��9 � � 	� ; �� :9 � � �� � �< �9 ; � �� � �:9 � � �� < �

82 . 0 3
82 . - -

82 . 72
82 . 82

/ 5. 0 06. - -/ 5. 4 /
� �� 	 �;� � �� <� � ��� � �� ;� � �� �� : ��� � �� �� : �� <� : ��� � �� :� < 	� 	� � ;�� � �< �� � <�� � �� <� � ;�� � �

BC D ? / - / -BC D ? / / / -
BC D ? / 8 8 -

BC D ? / 8 3 -
BC D ? / 3 / -

BC D ? / 3 8 -BC D ? / 3 3 -
= P Q K R P M L B

= P Q K S O T = U V J T
= P Q K T O W J L X U T P L

V P Y Y O K U = Z T J L X U V J
B U L J V = P L P E E U K M K V JU K B J W J K B J K = M O B U == M [ V P N N J V = U P K

� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � � , � �

-. - --. - -
-. - -

-. - -
-. - --. - --. - -

8 8 71 2 0 -. - -3 -1 - - -. - -
/ 54 1 -4 2 . - -

7 61 8 6 0. - -
8 - 61 0 8 0. - -8 -1 - - -. - -7 / 1 32 6. - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� 	 :9 � � �� � �� � �� � �� ;9 � < �� � �< �9 � � �� � �� : :9 � � �� � �< � �� � �:9 ; ; �� � �� �9 : � :� � �� � �� � �� ;9 � � �� � �� � :9 < 	 :� � �� 9 � � �� � �	 �9 � < �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � 9 < � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A

=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A

� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �
BC D ? / 32 2BC D ? / 34 2

BC D ? / 6 / -
BC D ? / 6 8 -

BC D ? / 6 3 -BC D ? / 6 6 -BC D ? / 62 -
EF G H - - - / I J K J L MN E O K BM T T J T T P L

V L J B U = V M L B E J J T= P Q K V N J L m
M = = P L K J Z

W J L T P K K J N
J K I U K J J L U K IJ N J V = U P K TL J V P L B T Y M K M I J Y J K =

8 8 01 5 0 3. - -3 -1 - - -. - -
/ 54 1 -4 2 . - -

7 01 32 -. - -
8 - 71 7 72 . - -84 1 2 7 -. - -7 / 1 32 6. - -

� � �9 : � <� � �� � �� � �� ;9 � : �� � �< �9 � � �� � �� : :9 � � �� � �< � �� � �:9 ; ; �� � �� :9 � � :� � �� � �� � �� 	9 � < �� � �� � �9 � < �� � �� 9 � � 	� � �	 �9 	 � �� � �� ;9 � � �� � �� � 9 < � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �
32 1 8 - 7. 7 661 - 04 . 3 3

6 81 5 6 6. 2 0
/2 1 8 - 5. /2

3 61 7 5 3. 3 -/ 1 / 52 . 347 5. 2 -
< �9 � � �� � 	�� � �� : �� � ��9 � : ;� < <� � 9 < � �� 	 ;	� 	 :� 9 � ; ;� � <� <9 � 	 �� 	 ;�� � ��9 � � <� � :� � 9 � < �� � ��� � �� <9 � � :� : �� 9 � 	 �� < ;� 	� � �� � �� � �

/ 5 31 4 4 7. 3 782 1 5 / 8. 74
/2 61 / 3 -. 6 8

2 31 / 6 -. 02
/ 4 / 1 54 / . 4 -8 71 3 7 6. 7 37 / 1 8 0 6. 2 -

� � �9 � : �� � �� � �� � �� �9 	 	 <� : �� �9 	 � �� � ;� � �9 � � <� � <� 	 �� � �;9 � 	 ;� < ;< �9 � ; �� � <� � �� � �� ;9 < � :� : �: :9 � � �� � �� 9 � � 	� � �: � 9 : � �� � 	� �9 < � �� � <� � 9 � : �� � �: < �� 	 �
-. - --. - -

-. - -
81 8 0 8. - -

/ 1 2 8 5. 2 24 1 2 7 -. - --. - -
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��9 � : �� � ��� � �� 9 � � 	� � ��� � �;9 � � �� � ��� � ��� � �

/ 5 31 4 4 7. 3 782 1 5 / 8. 74
/2 61 / 3 -. 6 8

2 -1 02 0. 02
/ 4 -1 6 6 8. /2/ 01 0 - 6. 7 37 / 1 8 0 6. 2 -

� � �9 � : �� � �� � �� � �� �9 	 	 <� : �� �9 	 � �� � ;� � �9 � � <� � <� 	 �� � �;9 � 	 ;� < ;< �9 � ; �� � <� � �� � �� �9 � < �� : �: :9 � � �� � ��� � �: � 9 : � �� � 	� :9 : � �� � <� � 9 � : �� � �: < �� 	 �
/2 . 3 0/ 3. 7 8

8 / . 4 5
8 8. 82

/ 7. 4 56. 3 6-. / /
� ;� � 	�� � ��� � :� <� � �� �� � �<� < <� ;� 	 :� �� 	 ��� � �� �� : ;� 	� � <�� � �� <� ; ��� < ��� � �� �� � �

BC D ? / 32 2
BC D ? / 34 2BC D ? / 6 / -

BC D ? / 6 8 -
BC D ? / 6 3 -

BC D ? / 6 6 -BC D ? / 62 -BC D ? / 6 7 -
M T T J T T P LV L J B U = V M L B E J J T

= P Q K V N J L m
M = = P L K J Z

W J L T P K K J NJ K I U K J J L U K IJ N J V = U P K T
� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � < � , � �

-. - -
-. - --. - --. - -

-. - --. - --. - --. - -
/ 1 - - -. - -

82 31 6 / -. - -84 4 1 2 2 / . - -72 1 - - -. - -
3 0 -1 02 / . - -8 82 1 - - -. - -/ 1 5 - -. - -61 - - -. - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� < �9 � � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �� :9 � � �� � ��9 : � �� � �� ; �9 ; � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� < � 9 ; < �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� 9 	 � �� � ��9 � � �� � �:9 � � �� � �

=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �

BC D ? / 6 7 -
BC D ? / 6 5 -BC D ? / 7 8 -BC D ? / 74 -

BC D ? / 7 0 -BC D ? / 5 / -BC D ? / 5 8 -BC D ? / 5 3 -
EF G H - - - / I J K J L MN E O K BL J V P L B T Y M K M I J Y J K =W O R N U V Q P L m T

R O U N B U K IV J K = L MN Y M U N U K IB M = M W L P V J T T U K I
O K MN N P V M = J B U K T O L M K V JY O K U V U W MN M T T P V U M = U P KB O J TS O B I J Y J K = T n V N M U Y TW L P W J L = Z = M [

/ 1 - - -. - -
82 71 / / 3. - -84 01 / 8 8. 5 772 1 - - -. - -

3 5 61 7 7 5. - /8 82 1 - - -. - -/ 1 5 - -. - -61 - - -. - -
� < �9 � 	 �� � �� 9 � � �� � �� :9 � � :� � ��9 : � �� � �� ; <9 < � �� 	 �� �9 � � �� � �� � :9 � � :� � ��9 � � �� � �� � <9 ; � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� 9 	 � �� � ��9 � � �� � �:9 � � �� � �

/ 72 . - 7
6 01 4 6 5. 0 332 1 3 / 6. 64/ 1 - 7 -. - -

54 1 3 5 6. 8 02 04 . - --. - --. - -
� �9 � ; 	� � �� 	 �� � �<9 < : �� � <� 9 � : �� � �< �9 � < �� � ;� 9 � � �� � �� �9 	 ; :� 	 :� ; 	� 	 �� �9 � < �� � �� : ;� � ��� � ��� � ��9 � � �� : 	

0 3 6. 5 6
8 -4 1 3 7 3. / 48 6 81 0 - 0. 6 57 31 5 6 -. - -

8 54 1 84 6. 4 38 8 61 6 / 3. - -/ 1 5 - -. - -61 - - -. - -
� 	 � 9 � � �� 	 �� 9 � � 	� 	 �� �9 ; : ;� < ;<9 ; � �� � �� < 	9 � : :� � 	� <9 	 � �� � �� 	 <9 � � 	� � ��9 < � �� � �� � � 9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � <� � �� 9 	 � �� � ��9 � � �� � ��9 � < 	� � �

-. - -
/ -4 . - -3 84 . 3 0-. - -

-. - --. - --. - --. - -
�� � ��� � �� � ;� � ��� � �< � ;� < :�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �

0 3 6. 5 6
8 -4 1 82 7. / 48 6 81 6 0 / . / /7 31 5 6 -. - -

8 54 1 84 6. 4 38 8 61 6 / 3. - -/ 1 5 - -. - -61 - - -. - -
� 	 � 9 � � �� 	 �� 9 � � 	� 	 �� �9 � : �� < ;<9 ; � �� � �� < :9 ; � �� � �� <9 	 � �� � �� 	 <9 � � 	� � ��9 < � �� � �� � � 9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � <� � �� 9 	 � �� � ��9 � � �� � ��9 � < 	� � �

/ 7. 2 /
/ 5. - 3/ 8. 4 -/ . 7 3

8 6. 7 0-. 8 7-. - --. - -
� 	� � 	� �� � �� :� � �� �� � �� �� � <�� � <� �� � <;� � �� 	� < :�� � ��� � ��� � �� :� � �

BC D ? / 6 7 -BC D ? / 6 5 -
BC D ? / 7 8 -BC D ? / 74 -BC D ? / 7 0 -

BC D ? / 5 / -BC D ? / 5 8 -BC D ? / 5 3 -BC D ? / 52 -
L J V P L B T Y M K M I J Y J K =

W O R N U V Q P L m TR O U N B U K IV J K = L MN Y M U N U K I
B M = M W L P V J T T U K IO K MN N P V M = J B U K T O L M K V JY O K U V U W MN M T T P V U M = U P KB O J TS O B I J Y J K = T n V N M U Y T

� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � � , � �

-. - --. - --. - -
-. - --. - -

-. - --. - --. - -
01 - - -. - -/ 0 81 82 -. - -/2 -1 - - -. - -

7 / 4 1 6 / / . - -/ 7 31 0 3 5. - -
8 61 7 - -. - -4 -1 /2 -. - -7 61 7 7 -. - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� : �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� < �9 � : �� � ��9 � � �� � �� : �9 ; � 	� � �� � �9 < : 	� � �� 9 � � �� � �;9 � � �� � �� ;9 � � �� � �� <9 � � �� � �;9 � � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A=> ?@ A

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �

BC D ? / 52 -BC D ? / 5 0 5BC D ? / 5 5 -
BC D ? 8 7 8 -BC D ? 3 / 8 -

BC D ? 3 3 / -BC D ? 32 / -BC D ? 6 8 / -
EF G H - - - / I J K J L MN E O K BW L P W J L = Z = M [O K V N M T T U E U J BV P K = U K I J K V ZV O T = P B U MN

V L P T T U K I I O M L B T= L M E E U V
V P K = L P N P E M K U Y MN TZ P O = o T J L X U V J TW o Z T U V U M K

01 - - -. - -8 - 81 3 62 . 3 // 6 61 2 - -. - -
4 3 51 - - 8. 6 0/ 4 -1 8 0 5. - -

82 1 2 52 . - -4 -1 / 4 4 . 5 -7 61 7 7 -. - -
� � �9 < � �� < �� � �9 � � �� � �� < �9 � : �� � �� � �9 � � ;� � �� 	 �9 	 � <� < �� � ;9 : : 	� � ��9 � � �� � �;9 � � �� � �� :9 � 	 �� � �� <9 � � �� � �;9 � ; ;� 	 �� �9 � � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �

2 1 6 7 -. 0 54 31 -4 / . 6 8-. - -
/ 7 / 1 7 7 8. - 832 1 52 2 . 2 /

2 4 3. 3 7/ 61 3 7 7. 7 58 / 1 2 2 3. 3 8
; <9 � ; �� � ��� � �� � �9 � : ;� ; :� �9 : � �� � �� �9 < � 	� : << �9 � � �� 	 :: : :� � <�� � �� ; <� < �� �9 � � �� � �� � �� � 	� � 9 � � <� < �� 9 � < �� � �

81 2 3 5. / // 8 51 84 3. 0 5/ 6 61 2 - -. - -
2 4 4 1 3 6 -. 6 7/ 3 61 3 3 3. 6 5

82 1 - 8 / . 7 62 2 1 0 / / . 8 /6 31 / - 7. 7 0
� � 	9 � ; <� : 	� � �9 � � �� � �< � ;9 	 	 �� � �� � �9 � 	 �� ; �� � :9 � � <� � 	� < �9 : � �� � �� 9 � � �� � ;;9 � � �� � �� ;9 � � �� � �� :9 ; < �� � �;9 � ; �� � �� <9 � � �� � :� � �� � �

-. - --. - --. - -
4 -1 32 7. - -32 -. - -

5 - -. - --. - --. - -
�� � ��� � ��� � �� 	9 ; � ;� � �� �9 � � 	� � ��� � �< � �� � �� � �� � �� � �� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �

81 2 3 5. / // 8 51 84 3. 0 5/ 6 61 2 - -. - -
2 - 71 5 0 6. 6 7/ 3 31 5 0 3. 6 5

8 61 / 8 / . 7 62 2 1 0 / / . 8 /6 31 / - 7. 7 0
� � 	9 � ; <� : 	� � �9 � � �� � �< � ;9 	 	 �� � �; �9 	 � �� ; �� � :9 � � �� � 	� < �9 : � �� � �� 9 � � �� � ;;9 � � �� � �� ;9 � � �� � �� :9 ; < �� � �;9 � ; �� � �� <9 � � �� � :� � �� � �

7 0. 8 73 7. / /-. - -
8 / . 0 08 / . / /

8. 8 68 -. 643 3. 3 3
< �� � ��� � �� �� � �� �� : �� �� � �� �� : 	< ;� � ��� � �<� � ;� �� � ��� � �< <� < <: :� � �

BC D ? / 52 -BC D ? / 5 0 5BC D ? / 5 5 -BC D ? 8 7 8 -
BC D ? 3 / 8 -BC D ? 3 3 / -

BC D ? 32 / -BC D ? 6 8 / -BC D ? 62 7 -
W L P W J L = Z = M [O K V N M T T U E U J BV P K = U K I J K V Z

V O T = P B U MNV L P T T U K I I O M L B T
= L M E E U VV P K = L P N P E M K U Y MN TZ P O = o T J L X U V J T

� � � � � % �� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � � , � �

-. - -
-. - -

-. - --. - -
-. - --. - --. - -

/ 1 6 - -. - -
7 -1 / - -. - -

02 1 6 8 0. - -6 -1 - - -. - -
/2 / 1 - 3 -. - -3 - -. - -8 74 1 0 7 8. - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� :9 � � �� � �� � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �< <9 � � �� � �� � 9 	 � :� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� � �� � �� ;9 	 � �� � �< � �� � �� ; <9 � ; �� � �	 �9 � 	 �� � �� : �9 � < �� � ��9 � � �� � �< : �9 � 	 �� � �

=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A

� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �
BC D ? 62 7 -

BC D ? 2 - / -
BC D ? 2 / 3 8BC D ? 2 / 0 8

BC D ? 7 6 / -BC D ? 72 / -BC D ? 74 4 8
EF G H - - - / I J K J L MN E O K BW o Z T U V U M KT O W J L U K = J K B J K = P Eo U I o Q M Z T

o U I o Q M Z I M L M I J
T = L J J = N U I o = U K IW O R N U V U = Z

X J = J L M K T T J L X U V JW L P I L M Y T E P L M I U K IL J V L J M = U P KM B Y U K U T = L M = U P K

/ 1 6 - -. - -
7 -1 / - -. - -

5 / 1 64 / . - -6 -1 - - -. - -
/2 / 1 - 3 -. - -3 - -. - -8 7 01 62 -. 54

� :9 � � �� � �� � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �< �9 < ; �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� � �� � �� ;9 	 � �� � �< � �� � �� ; <9 � ; �� � �	 �9 � ; :� 	 ;� : ;9 : � �� � ��9 � : �� 	 �< : �9 	 � �� : �
/ 1 8 3 6. - -

/ 61 / - 6. 4 3
8 81 2 8 7. 8 561 8 7 7. 6 /

/ 4 1 7 0 -. - 6-. - -34 1 2 -4 . 6 -
� �9 � : �� : <� �� 	 ��� � �� � 9 � � �� � �� �9 	 � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� ;9 � 	 �� � :�� � �� : ;� ; ��� � �� �9 � 	 	� < �� � 9 � � :� � �	 �9 : ; �� ; <<9 ; 	 	� � �: �9 � � �� � :

/ 7 7. - -
62 1 5 52 . 84

7 01 5 6 6. 4 /32 1 4 3 3. 2 5
/ 3 31 3 6 5. 5 73 - -. - -8 3 -1 5 6 3. 2 4

� �9 � � ;� � ;� ; :� � �� 9 � � �� � �� <9 ; � ;� ; �� �9 � 	 �� 	 �< �9 ; < <� � 	: �9 � � ;� ; �� � �� � �� ;9 � < �� � �< � �� � �� � �9 � ; �� � �: �9 � ; �� 	 �� 	 �9 	 � �� � ;�9 � : <� ; 	� 	 �9 	 � �� < <
-. - -

-. - -
/ -1 7 - 8. - --. - -

-. - --. - -8 54 . 5 3
�� � ��� � ��� � �;9 � < 	� � �<9 � � <� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �� 	 ;� 	 <�� � �� � 	� 	 	� ; ;� : ;

/ 7 7. - -
62 1 5 52 . 84

2 01 3 6 8. 4 /32 1 4 3 3. 2 5
/ 3 31 3 6 5. 5 73 - -. - -8 3 -1 7 62 . 7 6

� �9 � � ;� � ;� ; :� � �� 9 � � �� � �� �9 < � :� ; �� �9 � < <� 	 �< �9 ; < <� � 	: �9 � � ;� ; �� � �� � �� ;9 � < �� � �< � �� � �� � �9 � ; �� � �: <9 	 ; �� 	 	� 	 �9 	 � �� � ;� 9 	 � <� : �� 	 �9 � � �� � �
0 0. / 6

8 3. 64
8 6. 7 3/ -. 74

/ / . 4 /-. - -/ 3. 54
� �� � <�� < :�� � �< �� : �� 	� � �� �� � ;� �� ; ��� � ��� � ��� � �� �� < �� �� � �� �� � :� �� � ;� �� � �

BC D ? 62 7 -BC D ? 2 - / -
BC D ? 2 / 3 8

BC D ? 2 / 0 8BC D ? 7 6 / -
BC D ? 72 / -BC D ? 74 4 8BC D ? 4 - 8 -

W o Z T U V U M K
T O W J L U K = J K B J K = P Eo U I o Q M Z To U I o Q M Z I M L M I JT = L J J = N U I o = U K I

W O R N U V U = ZX J = J L M K T T J L X U V JW L P I L M Y T E P L M I U K I
� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � � , � �

-. - -
-. - -

-. - --. - -
-. - --. - --. - --. - -

/ 1 -4 / 1 5 82 . - -
4 3 01 7 -4 . - -

/ / 51 7 8 6. - -/ 61 - - -. - -
8 61 7 82 . - -0 -1 3 52 . - -2 - -. - -4 / 1 7 - -. - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� � �9 	 < 	� � ��9 � � �� � �� 	 �9 � � :� � �� � �9 � � �� � �<9 � � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� <9 ; � �� � �� � �� � �; � �� � �: �9 < 	 �� � �� � �� � �; � 9 � � �� � �

=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A

� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �
BC D ? 4 - 8 -

BC D ? 4 / / -
BC D ? 4 / 6 -BC D ? 4 84 -

BC D ? 4 2 / -BC D ? 4 2 2 -BC D ? 0 - 5 -BC D ? 0 / 7 -
EF G H - - - / I J K J L MN E O K BL J V L J M = U P KM B Y U K U T = L M = U P KW M L m T

W N M Z I L P O K B T pL J V L J M = U P K V K = L T
R M K B V P K V J L = T= P Q K o U T = P L U M K

V J N J R L M = U P K TJ K X U L P K Y J K = MN R P M L BL J E O T J p I M L R M I JB L M U K M I J

/ 1 -4 4 1 - / 7. 4 8
/ 1 - 3 / 1 4 8 0. 5 8

/ 8 81 8 04 . 7 0/ 61 - - -. - -
8 61 7 82 . - -0 -1 3 52 . - -2 - -. - -4 / 1 7 - -. - -

� � �9 	 < 	� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � � 9 < : 	� 	 �� � �9 � � �� � ��9 : � <� � :� �9 � � �� � �� <9 ; � �� � �� � �� � �; � �� � �: �9 < 	 �� � �� � �� � �; � 9 � � �� � �
/ 0 71 74 8. 3 3

/ 8 71 3 - -. 8 5
8 01 - 3 8. 5 5/ 1 4 7 7. 5 -

2 1 6 5 -. - -q 5 - -. - - r-. - -01 7 62 . 5 6
	 �9 � � �� � ��� � �< �9 : : �� � �� ;9 � : �� 	 		 � ;� � �� 9 ; � �� 	 ��9 � � :� ; ��� � �� �� � �s 	 � �� � � t�� � �:9 � � �� 	 �

0 5 -1 3 6 6. 3 5
5 -2 1 6 8 0. 7 3

5 61 82 6. 7 5/ 81 8 3 3. / -
/ 51 / 32 . - -0 / 1 8 52 . - -2 - -. - -7 81 52 6. - 7

� � �9 � � �� : �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� ; :: 	9 < < :� � ��9 	 � �� � :� �9 � < <� � �� :9 � < �� � �� � �� � �; � <� ; �: � 9 � 	 �� � �� � �� � �� �9 	 � �� � �
/ 1 8 -4 . 0 7

5 -1 8 6 / . / 0
/ 1 4 / 7. 7 0-. - -

-. - --. - --. - -31 0 52 . - -
�� � �< �9 ; � �� ; �� �9 � � �� � ��� � �� 9 ; � �� � :�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �<9 : 	 �� � �

0 0 51 / 3 7. 2 3
0 /2 1 / 04 . 62

5 81 2 3 0. - // 81 8 3 3. / -
/ 51 / 32 . - -0 / 1 8 52 . - -2 - -. - -2 51 -2 5. - 7

� � �9 � � �� : �:9 � : �� � �< � �9 	 : �� < �: 	9 < < :� � �<9 � � �� � �� �9 � < <� � �� :9 � < �� � �� � �� � �; � <� ; �: � 9 � 	 �� � �� � �� � �� 	9 � � 	� � �
/ 4 . 3 3

/ 8. 8 6
8 8. 5 8/ 8. 7 8

8 8. 8 5q / . / 8 r-. - -/ 8. - 0
� �� � ��� � �:� � <� <� � �� �� � �� �� � �� <� � ;�� � ��� 	 <s �� � � t�� � �� �� � :

BC D ? 4 - 8 -BC D ? 4 / / -
BC D ? 4 / 6 -

BC D ? 4 84 -BC D ? 4 2 / -
BC D ? 4 2 2 -BC D ? 0 - 5 -BC D ? 0 / 7 -BC D ? 02 6 -

L J V L J M = U P KM B Y U K U T = L M = U P K
W M L m T

W N M Z I L P O K B T pL J V L J M = U P K V K = L TR M K B V P K V J L = T
= P Q K o U T = P L U M KV J N J R L M = U P K TJ K X U L P K Y J K = MN R P M L BL J E O T J p I M L R M I J

� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � ; � , � �

-. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - -
/ 74 1 - 82 . - -2 / -1 7 7 3. - -3 3 51 8 5 5. - -0 -1 7 - -. - -/ 1 5 - -. - -/2 1 - - -. - -71 / 3 8. - -/ 1 -2 31 8 84 . - -2 1 2 6 -. - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� � �9 � � �� � �	9 � � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � <� � �< < 	9 � 	 	� � �: �9 � � �� � �� 9 	 � �� � �� �9 � � �� � ��9 � < �� � �� 9 � � <9 � � ;� � ��9 � � �� � �	 �9 � � �� � �<9 	 � ;� � �

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A

� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � �� � � ;
BC D ? 02 6 -BC D ? 5 - / -BC D ? 5 - 3 -BC D ? 5 - 6 -BC D ? 5 - 62BC D ? 5 -2 -BC D ? 5 -2 2BC D ? 5 - 7 -BC D ? 5 - 0 5

EF G H - - - / I J K J L MN E O K BB L M U K M I J
T = M = J L J = U L J Y J K =T P V U MN T J V O L U = ZQ P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P KN U E J U K T O L M K V JO K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V JB U T M R U N U = Z U K T O L M K V Jo P T W U = MN U u M = U P KY U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = TT J L U MN R P K B T

/ 74 1 - 82 . - -2 / -1 7 7 3. - -3 3 51 8 5 5. - -0 -1 7 - -. - -/ 1 5 - -. - -/2 1 - - -. - -71 / 3 8. - -/ 1 -2 31 8 84 . - -2 1 7 8 3. - -
� � �9 � � �� � �	9 � � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � <� � �< < 	9 � 	 	� � �: �9 � � �� � �� 9 	 � �� � �� �9 � � �� � ��9 � < �� � �� 9 � � <9 � � ;� � ��9 � � <� � �	 �9 � � �� � �<9 	 � ;� � �

/ 51 8 5 6. 3 --. - -7 81 5 5 7. 3 /7 61 04 0. 5 68 8 7. 8 0-. - -62 6. -48 0 -1 5 0 / . 3 0/ 1 6 8 -. 6 0
� <9 ; � ;� 	 ;�� � ��9 � � �� < <�� � �� �9 	 	 �� < �� �9 : ; :� 	 �� � �� � :�� � �� � �� � ;� : �9 	 : �� < :� 9 � � �� � :�� � ��� � �

/ 64 1 4 3 -. 4 -2 / -1 7 7 3. - -84 71 3 - 8. 7 5/2 1 4 8 / . - 7/ 1 74 3. 4 8/2 1 - - -. - -2 1 74 4 . 5 34 4 81 8 62 . 7 861 8 - 8. 2 8
: :9 � ; �� � <	9 � � �� � �� �9 � � :� � ;� � �9 � � <� � �� ; �9 < � �� � 	� �9 ; � �� � �� 9 � ; <� ; �� �9 � � �� � ��9 � ; ;� 	 <; ; �9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �	 �9 � � �� � �<9 	 � ;� � �

51 - - -. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - -
�� � ��� � �	9 � � �� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �

/ 3 01 4 3 -. 4 -2 / -1 7 7 3. - -84 71 3 - 8. 7 5/2 1 4 8 / . - 7/ 1 74 3. 4 8/2 1 - - -. - -2 1 74 4 . 5 34 4 81 8 62 . 7 861 8 - 8. 2 8
: :9 � ; �� � <	9 � � �� � �� � 9 � � :� � ;� � �9 � � <� � �� ; �9 < � �� � 	� �9 ; � �� � �� 9 � ; <� ; �� �9 � � �� � ��9 � ; ;� 	 <; ; �9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �	 �9 � � �� � �<9 	 � ;� � �

/ / . 2 2-. - -/ 0. 2 40 -. 6 5/ / . 5 /-. - -4 . 6 -8 7. 7 082 . 8 7
� <� � ��� � �	� 	 ��� � �� :� � ;: �� � 	� �� 	 ��� � �;� � �� �� � :� �� � ��� � ��� � �

BC D ? 02 6 -
BC D ? 5 - / -BC D ? 5 - 3 -BC D ? 5 - 6 -BC D ? 5 - 62BC D ? 5 -2 -BC D ? 5 -2 2BC D ? 5 - 7 -BC D ? 5 - 0 5BC D ? 54 / -

B L M U K M I JT = M = J L J = U L J Y J K =T P V U MN T J V O L U = ZQ P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P KN U E J U K T O L M K V JO K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V JB U T M R U N U = Z U K T O L M K V Jo P T W U = MN U u M = U P KY U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = T
� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % ��  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %� � � �̂ � � � � \ �� � � � � " � � � � % %� � " � � � % " \ �� � � � � " � � � � % %

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � : � , � �

-. - - / / 1 6 0 81 6 - 3. - -
-. - --. - --. - -
5 01 5 / 4 . - -81 - 3 81 04 7. - -/ - -1 - - -. - -

�� � ��� � � �9 � < �9 : ; �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
� � � 	� � � 	

BC D ? 54 / -BC D ? 5 5 - /BC D ? 5 52 -EF G H - - - /
EF G H - - - / I J K J L MN E O K BT J L U MN R P K B TU K = J L E O K B = L M K T E J L T= L M K T E J L = P V M W U = MNW L P S J V = T / 81 -2 71 - / 0. 5 /

5 01 5 / 4 . - -81 / 32 1 7 6 8. - -0 61 3 - -. - -
�9 � < �9 � � �� � �: �9 < � �� � � / 1 04 / 1 7 / 8. 2 5

-. - -/ - 81 4 7 7. - -51 - - -. - -
� � �9 ; � �� � �	9 � � �� � � / -1 / 0 61 6 - 7. 3 8

5 01 5 / 4 . - -81 - 3 81 04 7. - -4 2 1 3 - -. - -
�9 � < �9 : ; �� � �; �9 < � �� � � 8 - -1 4 3 7. 2 6

-. - --. - --. - -
�� � ��� � � 51 5 0 31 7 7 5. 4 0

5 01 5 / 4 . - -81 - 3 81 04 7. - -4 2 1 3 - -. - -
�9 � < �9 : ; �� � �; �9 < � �� � � /2 . 2 8

-. - -6. 0 // -. 7 0
�� : �� �� � :

BC D ? 54 / -BC D ? 5 5 - /BC D ? 5 52 - T J L U MN R P K B TU K = J L E O K B = L M K T E J L T= L M K T E J L = P V M W U = MNW L P S J V = TI J K J L MN E O K B
� � " � � & _ � � " � � � % & � � %� � " � � & _ � � " � � � % & � � %

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � 	 � , � �

-. - --. - -
-. - --. - --. - -

-. - --. - --. - --. - -
5 71 3 62 . - -2 -1 - - -. - -

8 0 31 3 / 7. - -32 -. - -61 8 - -. - -
3 0 81 3 / -. - -8 54 1 7 - -. - -0 61 4 6 8. - -6 61 - -2 . - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
	 �9 < � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �< �9 � � �� � �< � �� � ��9 � � �� � �< � �9 � � �� � �<9 < � �� � �< 	9 � � �� � �� 	 ;9 � � �� � �: �9 ; � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � :� � � :

BC D ? / 5 0 5BC D ? / 5 5 -
BC D ? 3 7 8 -BC D ? 62 7 -BC D ? 0 - / -

BC D ? 0 - 8 -BC D ? 0 / 7 -BC D ? 5 - / -BC D ? 5 - 3 -
EF G H - - - 8 W M L = = P Q K E O K BO K V N M T T U E U J BV P K = U K I J K V ZT M E J = Z U K T W J V = U P K

W o Z T U V U M Ku P K U K IW N M K K U K I
L J E O T J p I M L R M I JT = M = J L J = U L J Y J K =T P V U MN T J V O L U = ZQ P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P K

8 / 31 6 8 0. - -2 -1 - - -. - -
8 0 51 2 6 / . - -32 -. - -2 1 4 - -. - -

6 3 / 1 5 7 3. 048 54 1 7 - -. - -0 61 4 6 8. - -6 61 - -2 . - -
� � <9 � � :� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� � 9 	 	 �� � �< � �� � ��9 ; � �� � �< � � 9 � < �� � �<9 : � :� � �: �9 � � <� : ;� 	 ;9 � � �� � �: �9 ; � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �

/ / 4 1 - 0 3. - --. - -
6 51 3 - / . 4 4-. - -/ 1 5 0 8. 04

5 / 1 4 5 / . 0 071 5 - / . 64-. - -51 6 7 7. 62
� � ;9 � : <� � ��� � �� �9 	 : �� � ;; � 	� ; ��9 � � �� < ��� � �� 9 	 : �� : ;: 	9 ; � �� : �� < :� 	 �� 9 � : ;� � ��9 	 � �� � ;�� � �	9 � � �� � �

5 71 3 62 . - -2 -1 - - -. - -
8 6 -1 8 3 5. 8 332 -. - -31 4 / 4 . / 3

3 6 -1 / 4 / . 5 58 5 -1 7 5 0. 2 30 61 4 6 8. - -3 61 2 3 0. 2 2
	 �9 < � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � :� < <� 9 : � �� � �< �9 < : �� � �< � �� � �<9 ; � ;� � <� � � 9 : � �� � 	<9 < � 	� � 	: �9 	 ; �� ; �� 	 �9 � 	 :� � <: �9 ; � �� � �< �9 � < :� � �

-. - --. - -
81 -2 8. 4 --. - --. - -

64 1 34 0. 4 4-. - --. - --. - -
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��9 � � �� ; ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �� ;9 < ; :� ; ;�� � ��� � ��� � �

5 71 3 62 . - -2 -1 - - -. - -
8 3 01 / 0 7. 2 332 -. - -31 4 / 4 . / 3

8 5 81 4 5 3. 8 88 5 -1 7 5 0. 2 30 61 4 6 8. - -3 61 2 3 0. 2 2
	 �9 < � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � :� < <� 9 : � �� � �< �9 < � ;� 	 �< � �� � �<9 ; � ;� � <� � � 9 : � �� � 	<9 < � 	� � 	< ;9 � 	 ;� 	 �� 	 �9 � 	 :� � <: �9 ; � �� � �< �9 � < :� � �

2 6. 0 7-. - -
/ 4 . - 3-. - -3 6. 4 5

8 / . 828. 3 8-. - -8 / . 2 /
� �� : ��� � �� ;� � �� ;� : <� <� < ��� � �< �� ; 	� �� � :� <� 	 <�� ; ��� < ��� � �� �� � �

BC D ? / 5 0 5BC D ? / 5 5 -BC D ? 3 7 8 -
BC D ? 62 7 -BC D ? 0 - / -BC D ? 0 - 8 -

BC D ? 0 / 7 -BC D ? 5 - / -BC D ? 5 - 3 -BC D ? 5 - 6 -
O K V N M T T U E U J BV P K = U K I J K V Z

T M E J = Z U K T W J V = U P KW o Z T U V U M Ku P K U K I
W N M K K U K IL J E O T J p I M L R M I JT = M = J L J = U L J Y J K =T P V U MN T J V O L U = Z

� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % ��  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � � � , � �

-. - - / 1 6 8 51 -2 -. - -
-. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - -
8 / 1 3 - -. - -32 -. - -/ 1 - - -. - -/ 1 8 3 6. - -/ 7 81 / 5 0. - -/ - -. - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� � 9 < � �� � �< � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �� 9 � < �� � �� � �9 � 	 :� � �� � �� � �

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :

BC D ? 5 - 6 -BC D ? 5 - 62BC D ? 5 -2 -BC D ? 5 -2 2BC D ? 5 - 7 -BC D ? 5 - 0 5EF G H - - - 8
EF G H - - - 8 W M L = = P Q K E O K BQ P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P KN U E J U K T O L M K V JO K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V JB U T M R U N U = Z U K T O L M K V Jo P T W U = MN U u M = U P KY U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = T / 1 7 - 31 2 / / . 04

8 / 1 3 - -. - -32 -. - -/ 1 - - -. - -/ 1 8 3 6. - -/ 7 81 / 5 0. - -/ - -. - -
� � 9 < � �� � �< � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �� 9 � < �� � �� � �9 � 	 :� � �� � �� � � 32 4 1 5 7 / . / 6

/ 71 / 0 -. -22 8. 4 --. - -/ / 6. 5 772 1 -4 2 . 5 5/ -. - -
� �9 � : �� � �� �� ; ��� � �� � �� 	 �� �9 � ; �� 	 	� �� � � / 1 8 62 1 2 2 -. 4 3

2 1 / / 5. 528 54 . 3 -/ 1 - - -. - -/ 1 / / 5. - 654 1 / 8 8. - /5 -. - -
�9 � � 	� 	 �� 	 ;� < �� 9 � � �� � �� 9 � � 	� � �	 ;9 � � �� � �	 �� � � 6 51 6 3 / . 64

-. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - -
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � � / 1 / 5 71 / / 5. 8 7

2 1 / / 5. 528 54 . 3 -/ 1 - - -. - -/ 1 / / 5. - 654 1 / 8 8. - /5 -. - -
�9 � � 	� 	 �� 	 ;� < �� 9 � � �� � �� 9 � � 	� � �	 ;9 � � �� � �	 �� � � 8 8. 3 8

4 2 . 5 7/2 . - 7-. - -5. 3 86 -. / 8/ -. - -
; �� 	 �� �� � ��� � �	� < �� �� � �� �� � �

BC D ? 5 - 6 -BC D ? 5 - 62BC D ? 5 -2 -BC D ? 5 -2 2BC D ? 5 - 7 -BC D ? 5 - 0 5
Q P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P KN U E J U K T O L M K V JO K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V JB U T M R U N U = Z U K T O L M K V Jo P T W U = MN U u M = U P KY U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = TW M L = = P Q K E O K B

�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � � � , � �

-. - - / 1 2 5 51 32 8. - -
-. - -

-. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - -
7 - -. - -

/ 1 / 54 1 6 34 . - -/ / 51 64 5. - -4 81 6 7 / . - -51 4 82 . - -32 -. - -/ 1 2 - -. - -/ 1 2 - -. - -/ 5 71 - - -. - -3 - -. - -
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� � �� � �	 � � 9 < � �� � ��9 	 � �� � �� � <9 � � �� � �� � 	9 � ; 	� � �; �9 � � �� � �	9 ; � �� � �< � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �� 	 �9 � � �� � �< � �� � �

=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A

� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :
BC D ? 62 7 -

BC D ? 4 6 / -BC D ? 5 - / -BC D ? 5 - 3 -BC D ? 5 - 6 -BC D ? 5 - 62BC D ? 5 -2 -BC D ? 5 -2 2BC D ? 5 - 7 -BC D ? 5 - 0 5EF G H - - - 3
EF G H - - - 3 N U R L M L Z E O K BW o Z T U V U M KN U R L M L Z

T = M = J L J = U L J Y J K =T P V U MN T J V O L U = ZQ P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P KN U E J U K T O L M K V JO K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V JB U T M R U N U = Z U K T O L M K V Jo P T W U = MN U u M = U P KY U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = T / 1 7 5 / 1 64 8. 5 8
7 - -. - -

/ 1 8 0 51 2 6 3. 5 8/ / 51 64 5. - -4 81 6 7 / . - -51 4 82 . - -32 -. - -/ 1 2 - -. - -/ 1 2 - -. - -/ 5 71 - - -. - -3 / 6. - -
� � �� � �	 � �9 : : ;� � �� �9 � � �� � �� ; �9 � � �� 	 �� � 	9 � ; 	� � �; �9 � � �� � �	9 ; � �� � �< � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �� 9 � � �� � �� 	 �9 � � �� � �< � �� � � 3 / -1 - 7 5. - 8

/2 3. - -
8 3 / 1 3 7 7. / 6-. - -/2 1 3 6 7. / -71 0 62 . 742 3. 7 6-. - -5 -. / 82 71 / 7 -. 322 6. - -

� � <� � �� � �9 	 � 	� � �� < 	� 	 �� �9 � � �� ; ��� � �� �9 < � �� � ��9 : � �� � ;� <� � ��� � �	 �� � �� �9 � � �� < �� �� � � / 1 3 0 / 1 6 - 3. 5 -
6 64 . - -

/ 1 -2 01 / 4 4 . 4 0/ / 51 64 5. - -2 4 1 / / 6. 5 -81 04 5. 3 38 5 7. 3 7/ 1 2 - -. - -/ 1 6 - 5. 0 0/ 3 51 0 3 5. 728 7 -. - -
� � ;� � �; � ;9 	 � ;� � �� �9 � ; �� � �� � �9 � 	 �� � �� � 	9 � ; 	� � �� ;9 � � �� 	 ��9 : ; 	� < <� 	 �� < �� 9 � � �� � �� 9 � � 	� : :� < 	9 : < 	� � �� � �� � � 4 51 -4 4 . - 6

-. - -
4 51 -4 4 . - 6-. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - -

�� � ��� � �< �9 : : �� � �� �9 � 	 �� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � � / 1 3 - 81 3 8 7. 0 7
6 64 . - -

54 51 / - -. 4 6/ / 51 64 5. - -2 4 1 / / 6. 5 -81 04 5. 3 38 5 7. 3 7/ 1 2 - -. - -/ 1 6 - 5. 0 0/ 3 51 0 3 5. 728 7 -. - -
� � ;� � �; � ;9 	 � ;� � �� 	9 � : 	� � �� � � 9 : 	 <� � �� � 	9 � ; 	� � �� ;9 � � �� 	 ��9 : ; 	� < <� 	 �� < �� 9 � � �� � �� 9 � � 	� : :� < 	9 : < 	� � �� � �� � � / 0. 3 3

82 . 2 -
/ 4 . 5 6-. - -8 / . / 04 -. 3 5/2 . 3 3-. - -7. - /8 0. 72/ 4 . 8 -

� �� � �� �� � ��� < �	� � :�� � �� �� � :; �� < 	� �� < <�� � ��� � �� :� � �� ;� � �

BC D ? 62 7 -BC D ? 4 6 / -
BC D ? 5 - / -BC D ? 5 - 3 -BC D ? 5 - 6 -BC D ? 5 - 62BC D ? 5 -2 -BC D ? 5 -2 2BC D ? 5 - 7 -BC D ? 5 - 0 5

W o Z T U V U M K
N U R L M L ZT = M = J L J = U L J Y J K =T P V U MN T J V O L U = ZQ P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P KN U E J U K T O L M K V JO K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V JB U T M R U N U = Z U K T O L M K V Jo P T W U = MN U u M = U P KY U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = TN U R L M L Z E O K B

\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % ��  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � � � , � �

-. - --. - -
-. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - -

3 82 1 - - -. - -81 - - -. - -
3 / 51 4 - -. - -8 -1 6 - -. - -/ 1 6 8 61 3 3 -. - -/ 7 81 / 8 8. - -0 -1 - - -. - -4 01 8 3 -. - -0 52 . - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
< � �9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� � 	9 � � �� � �� �9 < � �� � �� 	 �9 � � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �	 < <9 � � �� � �� 	 � 9 < < �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �: �9 � � �� � �; :9 � < �� � �: 	 �� � �<9 � � �� � �

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A

� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :
BC D ? / 5 0 5BC D ? 62 7 -

BC D ? 2 / 3 -BC D ? 2 / 6 -BC D ? 2 / 6 8BC D ? 5 - / -BC D ? 5 - 3 -BC D ? 5 - 6 -BC D ? 5 - 62
EF G H - - - 6 o U I o Q M Z Q o P N J = P Q KE O K BO K V N M T T U E U J BW o Z T U V U M KY M V o U K J L Z

R L O T o p Q J J B TT K P Q L J Y P X MNT = M = J L J = U L J Y J K =T P V U MN T J V O L U = ZQ P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P KN U E J U K T O L M K V JO K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V J

2 7 / 1 5 62 . - -81 - - -. - -
3 8 31 52 -. - -8 -1 6 - -. - -/ 1 6 5 -1 82 6. - -/ 7 81 / 8 8. - -0 -1 - - -. - -4 01 8 3 -. - -0 52 . - -

� � � 9 	 � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� � 	9 � � �� � �� :9 � � �� � �� 	 �9 	 � �� � �� �9 � � �� � �	 < <9 � � �� � �� � ;9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �: �9 � � �� � �; :9 � < �� � �: 	 �� � �<9 � � �� � �
/ 5 / 1 4 5 0. - -8 0 -. - -

/ / -1 / - / . 3 7-. - -5 8 31 34 6. 6 8-. - -6 -1 / 0 / . 3 82 81 4 2 / . 2 7/ 82 . 32
� 	 � 9 ; 	 :� � �� : �� � �� ;9 � � :� � 	:9 < � :� � �; �9 � ; �� � <�� � �� � �9 ; � �� 	 �� � �9 � � 	� � ��� � �� �9 � : �� < �� �9 ; � �� � �� � �� < ��� � �

34 -1 / 64 . - -/ 1 4 8 -. - -
8 / 31 0 6 0. 7 68 -1 6 - -. - -2 7 71 04 5. 2 0/ 7 81 / 8 8. - -3 51 0 / 0. 7 082 1 64 0. 6 64 7 5. 72

< ; �9 � � ;� � �� 9 ; � �� � �: � 9 < : �� ; �	9 � 	 �� 	 �� � �9 ; ; �� 	 ;� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � 	 �� � :� � �9 � : �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �< 	9 : � :� � :� �9 � ; :� � �; � 	� � �<9 � � �� � �
84 / 1 84 5. - --. - -

/ 61 8 82 . 8 /-. - -84 1 4 - 6. 3 3-. - --. - --. - --. - -
� ; � 9 � ; 	� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �� �9 � � �� � ��� � ��� � �� ;9 ; � �� < <�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �

5 01 0 7 0. - -/ 1 4 8 -. - -
/ 5 51 7 8 3. 6 38 -1 6 - -. - -2 3 51 / 4 2 . 82/ 7 81 / 8 8. - -3 51 0 / 0. 7 082 1 64 0. 6 64 7 5. 72

	 :9 : � :� � �� 9 ; � �� � �: � 9 < : �� ; �	9 � 	 �� 	 �� � :9 � � 	� ; �� �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � 	 �� � :� � :9 : : �� � ;� � �9 � � �� � �< 	9 : � :� � :� �9 � ; :� � �; � 	� � �<9 � � �� � �
3 6. / 3/ 6. - -

3 3. 5 5-. - -7 / . 5 7-. - -2 -. 8 374 . 6 3/ 6. - /
< �� � <� �� � �� �� < �� �� � �< ;� � ��� � �� �� 	 �; <� ; ��� � �� �� � <� ;� � <� �� � ��� � �

BC D ? / 5 0 5BC D ? 62 7 -BC D ? 2 / 3 -
BC D ? 2 / 6 -BC D ? 2 / 6 8BC D ? 5 - / -BC D ? 5 - 3 -BC D ? 5 - 6 -BC D ? 5 - 62BC D ? 5 -2 -

O K V N M T T U E U J BW o Z T U V U M K
Y M V o U K J L ZR L O T o p Q J J B TT K P Q L J Y P X MNT = M = J L J = U L J Y J K =T P V U MN T J V O L U = ZQ P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P KN U E J U K T O L M K V J

� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % ��  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � < � , � �

-. - - 81 0 6 31 0 84 . - -
-. - --. - --. - --. - -
31 - - -. - -81 2 62 . - -6 82 1 3 0 -. - -8 82 . - -

�� � ��� � ��� � �
�9 � � �� � �� � �9 < : �� � �� � �� � �

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
� � � :� � � :� � � :

BC D ? 5 -2 -BC D ? 5 -2 2BC D ? 5 - 7 -BC D ? 5 - 0 5EF G H - - - 6
EF G H - - - 6 o U I o Q M Z Q o P N J = P Q KE O K BO K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V JB U T M R U N U = Z U K T O L M K V Jo P T W U = MN U u M = U P KY U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = T 31 /2 -1 5 7 -. - -

31 - - -. - -81 2 62 . - -6 82 1 3 0 -. - -8 3 5. - -
�9 � � �� � �� � �9 < : �� � �� < 	� � � / 1 62 / 1 4 7 5. - 3

-. - -/ 54 . 6 6/ 3 81 5 /2 . 2 06 6. - -
� 	 ;� � �� < �9 	 � �� � :� �� � � / 1 7 5 51 / 5 -. 54

31 - - -. - -81 3 64 . 2 78 5 81 6 7 6. 6 8/ 52 . - -
�9 < � ;� � �� 	 �9 � � �� � �� 	 �� � � 3 / 31 8 - 0. 2 6

-. - --. - --. - --. - -
�� � ��� � ��� � � / 1 3 02 1 5 0 8. 6 3

31 - - -. - -81 3 64 . 2 78 5 81 6 7 6. 6 8/ 52 . - -
�9 < � ;� � �� 	 �9 � � �� � �� 	 �� � � 6 7. -4

-. - -4 . 4 73 / . 82/ 0. 6 /
;� ; �< �� � �� :� � �

BC D ? 5 -2 -BC D ? 5 -2 2BC D ? 5 - 7 -BC D ? 5 - 0 5
O K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V JB U T M R U N U = Z U K T O L M K V Jo P T W U = MN U u M = U P KY U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = To U I o Q M Z Q o P N J = P Q KE O K B

�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � � � , � �

-. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - -
81 7 - -. - -81 7 0 61 2 7 8. - -/ 5 71 3 8 6. - -8 - 71 7 7 7. - -/ / 51 4 5 8. - -/ 0 61 5 - / . - -0 - -. - -31 - - -. - -81 6 - -. - -6 0 61 74 0. - -

�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
�9 � � �� � �� 9 � � �9 ; � �� � �� 9 � � <9 : � :� � �� 	 �9 < � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� � 	9 ; 	 �� � �� : �9 	 � �� � �: � �� � �<9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� : �9 � ; :� � �< � �� � �

=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A=> ?@ A
� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � �� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :� � � :

BC D ? 62 7 -BC D ? 2 / / -BC D ? 2 / / 8BC D ? 5 - / -BC D ? 5 - 3 -BC D ? 5 - 6 -BC D ? 5 - 62BC D ? 5 -2 -BC D ? 5 -2 2BC D ? 5 - 7 -
EF G H - - -2 o U I o Q M Z W M L = = P Q K E O K BW o Z T U V U M KI J K J L MN L J W M U L TU Y W L P X J Y J K = TT = M = J L J = U L J Y J K =T P V U MN T J V O L U = ZQ P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P KN U E J U K T O L M K V JO K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V JB U T M R U N U = Z U K T O L M K V Jo P T W U = MN U u M = U P KY U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = T

81 7 - -. - -81 7 5 01 3 3 6. - -8 - 81 8 8 6. - -8 - 71 7 7 7. - -/ / 51 4 5 8. - -/ 0 61 5 - / . - -0 - -. - -31 - - -. - -81 6 - -. - -6 0 61 74 0. - -
�9 � � �� � �� 9 � � �9 � � �� � �� 9 � ; �9 � � :� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� � 	9 ; 	 �� � �� : �9 	 � �� � �: � �� � �<9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� � �� : �9 � ; :� � �< < 	� � �

3 3 -. - -4 -1 74 2 . 7 3/ / -. - --. - -/ 1 5 5 3. 7 5/ 3 -1 3 6 6. 74/ / 5. / 7-. - -/ 0 0. 7 5/ 62 1 2 62 . 4 2
< < �� � �� �9 � � �� 	 �� �9 � � �� ; �� � �� � ��� � �� 9 	 	 <� � 	� < �9 < � �� � ;� � 	� � ��� � �� : :� � 	� � �9 � � �� ; �� �� � �

81 84 -. - -81 7 84 1 72 0. 348 - 81 / / 6. - -8 - 71 7 7 7. - -/ / 4 1 4 5 0. 3 /2 61 2 2 7. 3 37 0 -. 0 631 - - -. - -81 8 / / . 3 /3 3 51 / 3 8. 82
�9 � ; �� � �� 9 � 	 �9 ; � �� � 	� 9 � < �9 	 � ;� � :� � �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� � ;9 ; 	 :� < �� �9 � � �� < <� : �� : �<9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� < �< < 	9 � < �� � �� : �� � �

-. - -3 -1 3 8 0. 0 02 1 5 - -. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - --. - -
�� � ��� � �< �9 < � :� : :�9 	 � �� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �

81 84 -. - -81 2 54 1 3 8 5. 6 5/ 5 71 8 / 6. - -8 - 71 7 7 7. - -/ / 4 1 4 5 0. 3 /2 61 2 2 7. 3 37 0 -. 0 631 - - -. - -81 8 / / . 3 /3 3 51 / 3 8. 82
�9 � ; �� � �� 9 � 	 �9 ; � �� � 	� 9 � � �9 � ; :� � �� 	 �9 � � �� � �� � �9 � � �� � �� � ;9 ; 	 :� < �� �9 � � �� < <� : �� : �<9 � � �� � ��9 � � �� < �< < 	9 � < �� � �� : �� � �

/ 8. 7 58. 7 8-. -2-. - -/ . 7 74 -. 6 5/ 6. 5 --. - -4 . 0 73 -. - 3
� �� � 	�� � ;�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �; �� � 	� �� 	 ��� � �;� : �< �� � <� �� 	 <

BC D ? 62 7 -BC D ? 2 / / -BC D ? 2 / / 8BC D ? 5 - / -BC D ? 5 - 3 -BC D ? 5 - 6 -BC D ? 5 - 62BC D ? 5 -2 -BC D ? 5 -2 2BC D ? 5 - 7 -BC D ? 5 - 0 5
W o Z T U V U M KI J K J L MN L J W M U L TU Y W L P X J Y J K = TT = M = J L J = U L J Y J K =T P V U MN T J V O L U = ZQ P L m J L T V P Y W J K T M = U P KN U E J U K T O L M K V JO K J Y W N P Z Y J K =U K T O L M K V JB U T M R U N U = Z U K T O L M K V Jo P T W U = MN U u M = U P K

\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� � � % \ � � � % � � ] �̂ � %\̂ � " � �̂ " _ � �̀  � %̂ �� � � � � % �� a _ � �  � � "̀̂ � � � " � �\ _ " � � )�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %�  � � \ ) � � � � � � & � " %

Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � � � � � � 	
 � � � �� �� �� � �� � � � 
 � � � � � � � � � ��� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � � � �� 
 � � � � �� � � �� ��� � �  ! � "� # $ � 
� $ �� % �� � "� # $ � 
 & '( � � $ )� � � 
 � � � � � � � ' � � &� � * 
 � " �
 � � �� + � � � � , � �

-. - - 8 / 1 8 6 -1 7 0 -. - --. - - 31 0 0 71 - 6 0. - --. - - 3 82 . - -=> ?@ A=> ?@ AI g@ G H => ?@ ABC D ? 5 - 0 5EF G H - - -2EF G H - - -2 o U I o Q M Z W M L = = P Q K E O K BY U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = T 8 81 6 -4 1 7 54 . 4 -31 5 -2 1 4 3 6. - -3 3 5. - - 61 3 6 -1 4 4 3. 343 6 51 3 7 / . 2 52 6. - - / 01 - 7 71 5 8 6. 3 331 2 2 71 34 8. 6 /8 02 . - - 74 01 7 0 8. 643 71 8 8 0. 0 0-. - - / 4 1 3 0 01 8 6 / . 0 731 2 8 -1 / 6 3. 2 38 02 . - - / 5. 340. 5 6/2 . 5 3BC D ? 5 - 0 5 Y U T V. J Y W N P Z J J R J K J E U = To U I o Q M Z W M L = = P Q K E O K BK P = Jv P G C > g j > gC @ e e > F G ? c j @ w G > ? kC D g i G ?C H H F C ?> Me e > F G ? = @ k A C gC c ? g i e ? i > G c.
Z = B M H b F c ?C HRF Hd C ? Z = B Me ?F @ AJf DC G H C H Z = BO G C f DC G H C HR @ A @ G e CVF g g. Y > G ? h=> ?@ AJf DC G H C H P g id i G @ ARF Hd C ? Z = BJ G e F j kC gC H Z = BMl @ i A @ k A CR @ A @ G e C W C g e C G ?Jf D.R @ A @ G e C



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � 	 � 	 	 � 
� 	 �  ��� �� �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 	 	�� � �� � �� �� � �� � �� � � � �� � � � �  �� � � � �� �  � ! " � #� $ % � � % �� & �� � #� $ % � � � '(  � % )� � � � 	 � 	 	 � � � ' � � �� � * � � # �� � 	 �� + � � � , �

-. / 0 12 - 3 4 4 . 0 1 5 . 0 6 72 6 6
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��8 9 � �� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
�8 � � 98 � � �� � �	8 	 
 �� � �� � �8 � � �� � �: 
 �8 � � �� � �:8 	 � �� � �:8 � � �� � �	 � �� � �9 : 	8 	 � �� � �� � 8 	 � �� � �� �8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �� �8 � � �� � �: �8 � � �� � �� : �8 � 	 �� � ��8 � � �� � �� � �� � �� 98 � � �� � �	8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �� �8 � � �� � �� � �� � �	 �8 � � �� � �� � �8 � � �� � �	 �8 � � �� � �	 �8 � � �� � �� 8 � 	 �8 � � �� � ��� � ��� � �� � �8 � � �� � �� 8 9 : �8 
 : �� � �;< => ?

� �� * � � � �� �� * � � � �� �� * � � 
 �� �� * � � 9 �� �� * � 	 : 	� �� * � 	 � �� �� * � � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 	 � �� �� * 	 	 	 �� �� * 	 : � �� �� * 	 : � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � 
 �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 9 � �� �� * 	 9 � �� �� * 	 9 � �� �� * 	 9 9 �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * : � � �� �� * : � � 
� �� * � � � 
� �� * � � : �� �� * � 
 
 
@A B C 6 6 6 4
@A B C 6 6 6 4 D E F E G HI @ J F K

D E F E G HI @ J F K
� L  � � � M � L � # ) #  N L &M # O L � � ) � # � � � � L � M � #  N L &� � # L � L & # P � L �  � # ) M � � � M � #  N� �  � Q O � & L &#  N Q M � � L Q # M � � L L &Q � L � R � L L &� M � S  � � L � � L L &Q � � # � � L P � L Q � L  # � M � � L L &� L � L �  � & L � T � Q L & � M # O L � � M T U #� � & Q O  � � L & 8 M # O L � � M T U #) M � # O & L � � M # O L � � M T U #�� � M � �  � & � M �  � � � � � M # O L � � M T U #� � # L � L & # P L  � � � � � &� L � #  � M � �  � �� � L � � � & L � L L &Q M � � � & & � M � &� M � � � Q L � & L && # � L L # M � L � � � � � L � � � # &� L � � � # &� � � L & P � M � � L � # L � �  � �� L � � � � M � � � � M � ) L  � L N ��� � � # & P � M �  # � M � & � � � � L �  # L � �  ) � L � # &M # O L � � � Q �  & & � � � L � � L T L � � L &� � # L � � � � � � L T L � � L &� M � # �  � L #  NM # O L � & #  # L  � �� L � L �  � � L � L �  �  � �� � # L � � � � � # �  � & � L � & � � � M � � � �  �  � Q L 4 4 . V - 5 . V 4 72 6 6

�8 � � 98 � � �� � �	8 	 
 �� � �� � �8 � � �� � �: 
 �8 � � �� � �:8 	 � �� � �:8 � � �� � �	 � �� � �9 : 	8 	 � �� � �� � 8 	 � �� � �� �8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �� �8 � � �� � �: �8 � � �� � �� : �8 � 	 �� � ��8 � � �� � �� � �� � �� 98 � � �� � �	8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �� �8 � � �� � �� � �� � �	 �8 � � �� � �� � �8 � � �� � �	 �8 � � �� � �	 �8 � � �� � �� 8 � 	 �8 � � �� � ��� � �� 9 �8 � � �� � �� � �8 � � �� � �� 8 9 : �8 
 : �� � �W -. / 0 12 - 3 X
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �Y �8 9 � �� � � Z�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � � / . 3 4 7 . - 7 4 2 - 4
�8 � � 98 � � �� � �	8 	 � :� 	 ��� � ��� � ��� � �	 	 	� � �� : �� � �� � �8 	 
 �� : ��� � �� :8 � � �� � ��� � ��� � �:8 � � �� � �� �8 	 � 
� 	 �	8 � 	 �� � �	 � :� � �	8 9 	 �� � �� 8 � : �� � �� 8 : 	 �� � �	8 � 	 �� 	 �	8 � : 
� : :�� � ��� � �� 8 � � 9� � ��� � ��� � �� � �� � �� 9 �8 � � �� � �� � �8 � � �� � ��� � � 0. 7 7 V . 7 1 4 2 0 V
�� � �� �� 9 �� � �8 � � �� � �: 
 �8 � � �� � �:8 	 � �� � �:8 	 9 9� � �� �� � �� � � 8 
 � 
� � �� � 8 	 � �� � �Y :8 � � �� � � Z�8 � � �� � �� �8 � � �� � �	 �8 
 
 �� � �� �8 � � �� 9 ��8 � � �� � �� � �� � �� �8 	 9 	� � �� � �� � ��8 � 9 �� � �� 	8 � 9 �� 9 �Y � 8 � : 
� : : Z	 �8 � � �� � �� � �8 � � �� � �� �8 : � 	� : �	 �8 � � �� � �� 8 � 	 �8 � � �� � �Y � � �� � � Z�� � ��� � �� 8 9 : �8 
 : �� � � 3 72 / 6
� � �� � �
 
� � :�� � ��� � ��� � ��� : �� �� � �	 �� � 	�� � �� : �� � ��� � ��� � �� �� � 	: 9� 	 �: �� � �� :� : �� �� � �� �� � �� �� � ��� � 	� � 9� � 9�� � ��� � ��� � 
�� � ��� � �� � �� � �� � �� � �� � �� � ��� � �

[A \ \2 ] < B = ^G_̀ _ B A _G_ a _ bc =d [A \ \2 ] < B = ^eA Cf _ =e > ? > B a _ g \ bf b B > ?eA C f _ = h ; KH C i A d =_ CeA Cf _ = h ; KG_̀ _ B A _G_ a _ bc =d h ; KeA Cf _ =e > ? > B a _ j _ \ a _ B =G_ a _ b _̀ Ce > ? > B a _



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � 	 � 	 	 � 
� 	 �  ��� �� �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 	 	�� � �� � �� �� � �� � �� � � � �� � � � �  �� � � � �� �  � ! " � #� $ % � � % �� & �� � #� $ % � � � '(  � % )� � � � 	 � 	 	 � � � ' � � �� � * � � # �� � 	 �� + � 	 � , �

62 6 6 4 . 0 5 V . 6 - 62 6 6
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� 8 � � 	8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �9 � �� � �	8 � � �� � �� �8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �:8 � � �� � �:8 � � �� � �
 �8 � � �� � �:8 � � �� � �� 8 	 � �� � ��� � ��� � �: � :8 � � �� � �;< => ?

� �� * � � 	 �� �� * � � � �� �� * � � 9 �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � 
 �� �� * 	 � 
 �� �� * 	 9 � �� �� * � � : �� �� * � 
 
 
@A B C 6 6 6 5
@A B C 6 6 6 5 j H G ; ; g k F @ J F K

j H G ; ; g k F @ J F K
&  � L & #  N&  � L # ) � � & � L Q # � M � � L L &� L � M � � # � M � � L � � � # &l M � � � � � L L &� �  � � � � � � M  � � � L L &� � # L � L & # P L  � � � � � &� � Q L � & L & 8 M # O L �� L � � � # & � Q L � #� M � M Q Q � �  � Q )� � � � � � � � P  � # L �  # � M � � L � � � # &� L � � � # &� � � L  �  � � � L � � � # &� L � � � � M � � � � M � ) L  � L N ��� � # L � � � � � # �  � & � L � & � � � M � � � �  �  � Q L 4 . 0 7 6 . 3 1 52 6 6

� 8 � � 	8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �9 � �� � �	8 � � �� � �� �8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �:8 � � �� � �:8 � � �� � �
 �8 � � �� � �:8 � � �� � �� 8 	 � �� � ��� � �� 8 � : 	� � �: � :8 � � �� � �62 6 6
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � � 4 0. 1 1 4 2 6 1
�� � ��� � ��� � �� � �� � �9 9 �� � �: � �� 	 �	8 � � �� � �	 � �� � ��8 : � 	� � �� �� � �� 	 �� � �� 
 �� � �� 8 � : 	� � ��� � � 4 . 0 4 -. 1 6 62 V 5
� 8 � � 	8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �9 � �� � �	8 � : 
� � �
8 	 	 �� � ��8 � � :� 9 	
 � �� � �	8 9 
 �� � �� 	8 � � 9� 	 �	8 
 � �� � �� 8 � � �� � �Y � 
 �� � � Z�� � �: � :8 � � �� � � 4 2 6 0
�� � ��� � ��� � �� �� � �9� 9 ��� : :9 �� � �9� � �
� � 
	� � �� �� � �� � �� � �� � �� � ��� � �

[A \ \2 ] < B = ^G_̀ _ B A _G_ a _ bc =d [A \ \2 ] < B = ^eA Cf _ =e > ? > B a _ g \ bf b B > ?eA C f _ = h ; KH C i A d =_ CeA Cf _ = h ; KG_̀ _ B A _G_ a _ bc =d h ; KeA Cf _ =e > ? > B a _ j _ \ a _ B =G_ a _ b _̀ Ce > ? > B a _



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � 	 � 	 	 � 
� 	 �  ��� �� �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 	 	�� � �� � �� �� � �� � �� � � � �� � � � �  �� � � � �� �  � ! " � #� $ % � � % �� & �� � #� $ % � � � '(  � % )� � � � 	 � 	 	 � � � ' � � �� � * � � # �� � 	 �� + � : � , �

62 6 6 4 . - V V . 7 - 52 6 6
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� 8 � � :8 : � 	� � �
 � �� � �	 �8 � � �� � �:8 � � �� � �
8 � � �� � ��� � ��8 � � �� � ��� � �� � �8 � � �� � �;< => ?

� �� * � � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � 	� �� * 	 � � :� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 9 � �� �� * 	 9 � �� �� * � � : �� �� * � 
 
 
@A B C 6 6 6 7
@A B C 6 6 6 7 I m e G H G h @ J F K

I m e G H G h @ J F K
� L  � � � M � L � # ) #  N L &Q M � � L Q # � M � � L L &� � � �  � ) � � � L &� � � � # � � � � L T L � � L� � # L � L & # P L  � � � � � &� L � � � � M � � � � M � ) L  � L N ��& ) & # L � � �  � # &� � # L � � � � � # �  � & � L � & � � � M � � � �  �  � Q L 4 . 3 / 1 . - 1 72 4 /

� 8 � � :8 : � 	� � �
 � �� � �	 �8 � � �� � �:8 � � �� � �
8 � � �� � ��� � �� �8 � � 
� � 9
 
8 � � 	� � �� 	 �8 � � �� � �V . 3 0 V2 4 /
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
8 � � 
� � 9�� � ��� � � 4 . - 5 7 . 6 7 72 / 4
� 8 � � :8 : � 	� � �� 9 	� � ��8 	 9 �� � �� : �� 	 �: � �� � �� � �� � �� �8 � � 
� � 9
 
8 � � 	� � ��� � � 4 - -. - 0 V2 0 3
�� � �9 	 9� � �� 98 9 	 �� � �	8 
 � 
� 9 ��8 � : �� : �Y � � �� � � Z�8 � � �� � ��� � �� 	 �8 � � �� � � V 62 / 7
� � �� � �� 
� � :: �� � �� 9� � ��� � �� � �� � �� �� 
 �� � �� � ��� � �

[A \ \2 ] < B = ^G_̀ _ B A _G_ a _ bc =d [A \ \2 ] < B = ^eA Cf _ =e > ? > B a _ g \ bf b B > ?eA C f _ = h ; KH C i A d =_ CeA Cf _ = h ; KG_̀ _ B A _G_ a _ bc =d h ; KeA Cf _ =e > ? > B a _ j _ \ a _ B =G_ a _ b _̀ Ce > ? > B a _



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � 	 � 	 	 � 
� 	 �  ��� �� �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 	 	�� � �� � �� �� � �� � �� � � � �� � � � �  �� � � � �� �  � ! " � #� $ % � � % �� & �� � #� $ % � � � '(  � % )� � � � 	 � 	 	 � � � ' � � �� � * � � # �� � 	 �� + � � � , �

62 6 6 5 . 1 0 7 . 1 5 /2 6 6
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� 8 � : �8 	 � 
� � �� � 
8 : � �� � �� �8 � � �� � �� 8 � � �� � ��� � �� � � 8 	 � :� � �;< => ?

� �� * � � � �� �� * 	 : � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 9 � �� �� * � 
 
 
@A B C 6 6 6 0
@A B C 6 6 6 0 n m D n k H h k n g I E ; g k F @ J F K

n m D n k H h k n g I E ; g k F @ J F K
� L  � � � M � L � # ) #  N L && L � T � Q L � M # O L � � M T U #�� � # L � L & # P L  � � � � � &&  � L M � & Q �  � P L N Q L & &� L � � � � M � � � � M � ) L  � L N �� � � � M � � � �  �  � Q L 5 . 1 0 7 . 1 5 /2 6 6

� 8 � : �8 	 � 
� � �� � 
8 : � �� � �� �8 � � �� � �� 8 � � �� � ��� � �� � � 8 	 � :� � �62 6 6
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � � 5 . 4 3 -. 5 - 52 - 5
� 8 � : �8 	 � 
� � �: 	 98 
 � :� 
 9� � 9� � ��� � �� 8 � � 	� � ��� � � 3 / 1 . - / 02 0 1
�� � �� � � 8 : 	 �� � :� �8 � � 	� � �� 8 � � �� � �Y � 8 � � 	� � � Z� � � 8 	 � :� � � / 32 4 0
� � �� � �� �� � �	� 
 ��� � �� � �� � ��� � �

[A \ \2 ] < B = ^G_̀ _ B A _G_ a _ bc =d [A \ \2 ] < B = ^eA Cf _ =e > ? > B a _ g \ bf b B > ?eA C f _ = h ; KH C i A d =_ CeA Cf _ = h ; KG_̀ _ B A _G_ a _ bc =d h ; KeA Cf _ =e > ? > B a _ j _ \ a _ B =G_ a _ b _̀ Ce > ? > B a _



� � � � � � � �� �� � � � � � 	 � 	 	 � 
� 	 �  ��� �� �� � �� � � � � � � � � � � 	 � 	 	�� � �� � �� �� � �� � �� � � � �� � � � �  �� � � � �� �  � ! " � #� $ % � � % �� & �� � #� $ % � � � '(  � % )� � � � 	 � 	 	 � � � ' � � �� � * � � # �� � 	 �� + � � � , �

-. / 0 12 - 3 5 4 . 5 0 6 . 3 1 62 6 662 6 6 7 . 1 1 3. 6 0 12 6 6
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � �
� � �8 	 	 �� � �	8 � 	 :8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �� 	8 � � �� � ��� � �� 9 � 8 : 	 �� � ��� � �� : �8 � � �� � �;< => ?D \> B C ;< => ?

� �� * � � � �� �� * � � 	 �� �� * 	 : � �� �� * 	 � � �� �� * 	 9 � �� �� * : � � �� �� * � � : �� �� * � 
 
 
@A B C 6 6 6 -
@A B C 6 6 6 - n m D n k H h j H G ; ; g k F @ J F K

n m D n k H h j H G ; ; g k F @ J F K
� L  � � � M � L � # ) #  N L &&  � L & #  N& L � T � Q L � M # O L � � M T U #�� � # L � L & # P L  � � � � � &� L � � � � M � � � � M � ) L  � L N ��Q O � � & � � M � �  �� � # L � � � � � # �  � & � L � & � � � M � � � �  �  � Q L 5 4 . / V 7 . 3 6 -2 4 /7 . 1 1 / . 3 6 62 6 6

� � �8 	 	 �� � �	8 � 	 :8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �� 	8 � � �� � ��� � �� 9 � 8 : 	 �� � �� 8 � � 	� � �� : �8 � � �� � �7 . V 6 62 3 462 6 6
�� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � ��� � � 4 4 . 1 3 1 . 6 1 /2 / /- - 4 . 7 1 12 V -
� � �8 	 	 �� � ��� � ��� � �
 � �� � �:8 � 
 �� � ��� � �� 8 � � 	� � ��� � � V . V 5 -. - 4 /2 0 67 . 7 7 3. 5 4 4 2 6 -
�� � �	8 � 	 :8 � � �� � ��8 � � �� � �� � 8 � � :� � �Y :8 � 
 �� � � Z� 9 � 8 : 	 �� � ��� � �� : �8 � � �� � � - 02 0 34 02 4 1
� � �� � ��� � ��� � �9� : :� � �� � ��� � �� � �� � ��� � �F g ; Eo g B _ < \ p < \_ > a a< A B =d p > q B < = r _ c \ b B =_ C C A _ =< H a a< A B = ; > r ? _ \_ d = \ b a = b < B d 2

[A \ \2 ] < B = ^G_̀ _ B A _G_ a _ bc =d [A \ \2 ] < B = ^eA Cf _ =e > ? > B a _ g \ bf b B > ?eA C f _ = h ; KH C i A d =_ CeA Cf _ = h ; KG_̀ _ B A _G_ a _ bc =d h ; KeA Cf _ =e > ? > B a _ j _ \ a _ B =G_ a _ b _̀ Ce > ? > B a _



Run date: 05-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 1

PAGE 1

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

AMERICAN ROCK SALT CO. PJS 155695 0709798 77.80 TON 4,387.14
PJS 155695 0710062 78.11 4,404.62

VENDOR TOTAL 8,791.76

AUTO VALUE PARTS STORES PJS 155700 607308/L TAIL LIGHTS BULBS 102.33

VENDOR TOTAL 102.33

BENEFIT RESOURCE, LLC BWL 155665 674164 FSA ADMIN FEE: MARCH 150.00

VENDOR TOTAL 150.00

BRIDGE TOWER OP CO, LLC RMN 155702 745358312 LEGAL NOTICE - PLANNING BRD PBL HRG 4-11 71.57

VENDOR TOTAL 71.57

CASELLA WASTE MANAGEMENT OF N.Y., INC. PJS 155691 837296 MARCH BILLING 528.12

VENDOR TOTAL 528.12

CCP INDUSTRIES INC PJS 155707 IN02987834 APPAREL - TH 19.99
PJS 155673 IN02986712 APPAREL - TH 1,387.65

VENDOR TOTAL 1,407.64

CERTIFIED LABS PJS 155692 7716270 GREASE 345.00

VENDOR TOTAL 345.00

CITY TWIRLERS JRH 155683 042022/PEREYRA /INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR YOGA FOR KIDS 157.50



Run date: 05-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 2

PAGE 2

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 157.50

CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY, INC. PJS 155677 62067269701 DOWNING DRIVE 0.82
PJS 155677 62056832601 529 MARSH ROAD 55.19
PJS 155677 62025324801 LEHIGH STATION RD 123.75
PJS 155677 61912357501 4358 EAST AVE 0.00
PJS 155677 62066220401 625 MARSH RD 0.00

VENDOR TOTAL 179.76

CORN HILL NAVIGATION BWL 155715 04042022 SAM PATCH BOAT: ERIE CANAL BICENTENNIAL 350.00

VENDOR TOTAL 350.00

CROSMAN SEED CORP PJS 155718 10492 SEED 324.00

VENDOR TOTAL 324.00

DAVISON PJS 155670 032522 MILEAGE REIMBURSE - DMV 7.37

VENDOR TOTAL 7.37

DE LA COLINADOLORES JRH 155684 042022/LOURDES INSTRUCTOR PAYMENT FOR SPANISH: BASICS I 48.65

VENDOR TOTAL 48.65

DECKMAN OIL COMPANY PJS 155694 758661 471 TRANMISSION OIL 193.46
PJS 155699 758954 HYDRAU;IC OIL, 1540 DIESAL 5,443.20
PJS 155699 758857 HYDRAU;IC OIL, 1540 DIESAL 179.65

VENDOR TOTAL 5,816.31

DEL 3750 MONROE AVENUE ASSOCIATES LLC BWL 155667 MAY RENT COURT RENT: MAY 8,952.45



Run date: 05-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 3

PAGE 3

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 8,952.45

DEMOCRAT & CHRONICLE BWL 155722 4435741 LEGAL NOTICE 550.20

VENDOR TOTAL 550.20

DIRECT ENERGY BUSINESS MARKETING, LLC PJS 155649 HS22944538 DIRECT ENERGY TOWN WIDE AND PUMP STATION 2,658.81

VENDOR TOTAL 2,658.81

DOLORES DECOSTE - PETTY CASH JRH 155706 042022/PETTYCASH SUPPLIES PURCHSED FOR TUESDAY LUNCH 14.99

VENDOR TOTAL 14.99

ELDERBERRY EXPRESS, INC. BWL 155690 106 TRANSPORTATION SERVICES: 2ND QTR 1,875.00

VENDOR TOTAL 1,875.00

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS PJS 155679 585-198-6080-060617-6 COURT 41.07
PJS 155679 585-248-6202-052517-6 TOWN HALL 269.92
PJS 155679 585-248-6205-052517-6 HIGHWAY 32.07
PJS 155679 585-586-4739-052517-6 SCC ELEVATOR 71.47
PJS 155680 585-100-1313-0101717-6 PUMP STATION PHONE LINES 326.75
PJS 155680 585-218-9325-061517-6 TURNING LEAF / AUTUMN WOODS 33.00

VENDOR TOTAL 774.28

FUN EXPRESS LLC JRH 155704 714743813-01 SUPPLIES FOR CRAFT CLUB 72.51
JRH 155705 71437090-01 BASKETBALLS FOR PROGRAM 116.03

VENDOR TOTAL 188.54

GENERAL WELDING AND FABRICATION PJS 155697 32863 PARTS FOR TUB GRINDER 210.00



Run date: 05-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 4

PAGE 4

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

GENERAL WELDING AND FABRICATION PJS 155719 32871 418 STRAUB LIGHTS 143.98

VENDOR TOTAL 353.98

HADLOCK'S ACE HARDWARE PJS 155698 001091 SAW BLADES,ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES 292.12
PJS 155698 001087 SAW BLADES,ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES 29.98

VENDOR TOTAL 322.10

HANES SUPPLY, INC. ROCHESTER DIVISION PJS 155703 2158833-00 CUTTER WHEELS 143.58

VENDOR TOTAL 143.58

HAUN WELDING SUPPLY, INC. PJS 155701 8167461 PLASMA CUTTER PARTS 42.12

VENDOR TOTAL 42.12

HOME DEPOT PJS 155674 6010220 ANGLE GRINDER, MASONRY TOOLS, RADIO, MIS 319.30
PJS 155686 3010732 POLE BARN SUPPLIES 1,613.20

VENDOR TOTAL 1,932.50

INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM PJS 155711 50063883 BATTERIES 658.75
PJS 155710 10251079 BATTERY FOR 437 278.85
PJS 155710 40084706 BATTERY FOR 437 154.90

VENDOR TOTAL 1,092.50

LOWES CREDIT SERVICES PJS 155648 02876 BRACKETS AND RESPIRATORS 55.12

VENDOR TOTAL 55.12

MOFFETT TURF EQUIPMENT, INC. PJS 155721 01-330108 VENTRAC TRACTOR AND MOWING DECK 35,715.76



Run date: 05-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 5

PAGE 5

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 35,715.76

MUTUAL OF OMAHA THE MAXON COMPANY BWL 155666 GMNY6X007051-0001 NYS DBL PREMIUM: Q1 2,138.40

VENDOR TOTAL 2,138.40

NAPA AUTO PARTS PJS 155687 6917018679 OIL 131.76

VENDOR TOTAL 131.76

NGUYENTORIA EG 155717 040422 SMALL CLAIMS MAILING 7.38

VENDOR TOTAL 7.38

NOCO DISTRIBUTION LLC PJS 155689 SP12314254 224.2 DIESEL 1,010.15

VENDOR TOTAL 1,010.15

PAYCHEX, INC. BWL 155668 2022033100 MONTHLY PAYROLL PROCESSING 6,093.10

VENDOR TOTAL 6,093.10

PITNEY BOWES INC JRH 155583 1020349632 INK FOR THE POSTAGE METER 116.88

VENDOR TOTAL 116.88

PITTSFORD CENTRAL SCHOOLS PJS 155693 4324-22A TH UNLEADED GAS - MARCH 2022 988.16
PJS 155712 4321-22A HIGHWAY FUEL 10,890.19

VENDOR TOTAL 11,878.35

PLUG & PAY TECHNOLOGIES JRH 155685 2022040200031835682 PITTSWEB 85.50



Run date: 05-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 6

PAGE 6

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

PLUG & PAY TECHNOLOGIES JRH 155685 2022040200031835681 PITTSREC 15.00

VENDOR TOTAL 100.50

POWER DRIVES, INC. PJS 155647 RRS874539 HYDRAULIC HOSE 88.48
PJS 155713 RRS875250 FITTINGS 475 42.34

VENDOR TOTAL 130.82

REGIONAL INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION PJS 155696 011188240P TRANSMISSION FILTERS 59.89

VENDOR TOTAL 59.89

ROCHESTER GAS & ELECTRIC PJS 155682 12609919265 ELECT & GAS - TOWN WIDE 205.91

VENDOR TOTAL 205.91

ROSE JRH 155688 042022/ROSE SENIOR FITNESS FOR MARCH 2022 225.00

VENDOR TOTAL 225.00

S & S WORLDWIDE, INC JRH 155709 IN100943174 AFTER SCHOOL SUPPLIES 62.52
JRH 155708 IN100927059 SENIORS SUPPLIES FOR CRAFT CLUB 22.63
JRH 155708 IN100946704 SENIORS SUPPLIES FOR CRAFT CLUB 50.06

VENDOR TOTAL 135.21

SEYREK SEALERS LLC PJS 155716 RD 2022 MAR REFUSE DISTRICTS 2022 20,233.08
PJS 155723 PITTS TOWN MAR 22 DISPOSAL SVC - TOWN WIDE 1,897.55

VENDOR TOTAL 22,130.63

SHERWIN-WILLIAMS PJS 155676 8034-0 PAINT 53.98



Run date: 05-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 7

PAGE 7

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 53.98

TOP NOTCH MONOGRAMMING PJS 155671 2314 TH APPAREL MONOGRAMMING 24.00

VENDOR TOTAL 24.00

UDIG NY PJS 155669 22030669 AFTER HOURS EMERGENCY STAKE OUT REQUESTS 169.00

VENDOR TOTAL 169.00

ULINE INC. PJS 155646 147026065 LATEX GLOVES 672.79

VENDOR TOTAL 672.79

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERV CMRS-PB RMN 155681 04042022 REPLENISH POSTAGE METER - 1ST FLOOR 5,000.00

VENDOR TOTAL 5,000.00

VAN BORTEL FORD PJS 155678 FOCQ55380 INSPECT OIL CHG BRAKES 508-1 919.69
PJS 155720 396242 BULBS FOR 418 36.96

VENDOR TOTAL 956.65

VP SUPPLY CORP. PJS 155675 4968198 PIPE SEALANT 38.40

VENDOR TOTAL 38.40

WESTERN NEW YORK MEDICAL PRACTICE, PC BWL 155714 1917827 DRUG TESTING 1,590.00

VENDOR TOTAL 1,590.00

XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS USA, INC. PJS 155672 3556C16061 HIGHWAY PUMP STATION SMART SYSTEM 8,446.00



Run date: 05-APR-22 Town of Pittsford Page: 8

PAGE 8

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING

FOR TOWN BOARD APPROVAL

APRIL 2022

VOUCHER

VENDOR NAME APPV BY NO INV # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

VENDOR TOTAL 8,446.00

REPORT TOTAL 134,266.74

END OF REPORT



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Paul Schenkel - Commissioner of Public Works 

Date: March 21, 2022 

Regarding: Renewal of RG&E Auburn Trail License 
 

For Meeting On: April 5, 2022 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

Since 1991, the Town has had a License Agreement with Rochester Gas & Electric 
Corporation, through which we were able to establish the "Auburn Trail" along the old New 
York Central Railroad right-of-way. The License covers an area extending from the Town's 
southern boundary to the Brighton Town line.  

 
The most recent version of the License Agreement has expired and needs to be 

extended. 
 
In that regard, attached is proposed "Amendment 2" to the License Agreement which 

was entered into in 2001, and again in 2014, which would extend the term of the License to 
March 21, 2031.  Except for the addition of the prohibition of motorized vehicles and change of 
address, all other terms and conditions of the 2001 License would remain in full force and 
effect. A copy of the 2001 License is attached to the proposed extension.  

 
In the event the Town Board determines that the proposed action should be taken, the 

following Resolution is suggested: 
 
  
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board authorize the Town Supervisor to sign the proposed 
extension to the Auburn Trail License Agreement with Rochester Gas & Electric Corporation to 
March 21, 2031. 

























MEMORANDUM 
To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Paul Schenkel - Commissioner of Public Works 

Date: March 30, 2022 

Regarding: Set Bid Date for Installation and Repair of Concrete Sidewalks 
 

For Meeting On: April 5, 2022 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 
 With the possibility of a number of sidewalks that are scheduled to be newly constructed or 
repaired over the next several years, we would like to have the option to be able to utilize a private 
contractor to assist us.  We typically use an existing contract with Monroe County to hire a concrete 
contractor, but that contract has expired and is currently being renewed.  The County contract does not 
necessarily cover the type of work we are looking to perform and is limited to one contractor so 
scheduling work is difficult.  Having a second contractor available would provide some flexibility.   We 
have prepared our own bid specifications that will be specific to our needs but could also be utilized for 
other spot sidewalk repairs.  I recommend that the Town Board set a bid date for the Installation and 
Repair of Concrete Sidewalks for May 19, 2022 at 11:00 AM to be publically opened at the Department 
of Public Works. 
 
 In the event the Town Board determines that the proposed action should be taken, the following 
Resolution is suggested: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Resolved, that the Town Board sets a bid opening date for the Installation and Repair of 
Concrete Sidewalks for May 19, 2022 at 11:00 AM. 

 



Timeline for: 
 

2022 Installation and Repair of Concrete Sidewalks Bid  
 

March 30, 2022 - Bid Date Resolution Due for Town Board Agenda 
 

April 5, 2022 - Bid Date set at Town Board Meeting 
 

April 8, 2022 – Legal Notice submittal to Town Clerk to submit to Daily Record  
 

April 18, 2022 - Bid appears in The Daily Record & Post to Town Website 
 

Same day as above -Vendor packages sent or available @ Town Hall 
 

May 19, 2022 - Bid opening date at Town Hall (Schedule Room) 
 

June 2, 2022 - Successful Bidder Resolution due for Town Board Agenda 
 

June 7, 2022 – Award Contract to Bidder at Town Board Meeting 
 

June 15, 2022 - Notice to Proceed letter sent from Public Works 
 

 



MEMORANDUM 
To: William A. Smith and Town Board 

From: Jessie Hollenbeck, Recreation Director 

Date: March 29, 2022 

Regarding: Summer 2022 Recreation Programs 
 

For Meeting On: April 5, 2022 

 
    
The attached list of programs constitutes the list of summer 2022 recreation programs we 
anticipate offering. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In the event the Town Board determines that the proposed action should be taken, the 
following oral resolution language is suggested: 
 
I move that the Town Board approve the Recreation Department’s 2022 summer programs 
and authorize the Town Supervisor to sign instructor contracts as required. 



Town of Pittsford – Recreation Department 
New Proposed Programs for Summer 2022 

Secrets for College Success                      Erin Martin Kane 
                      
This fun, interactive short course taught by a seasoned university administrator prepares 
students for their first year of college. Topics include time management and study hacks, 
communicating with faculty, accessing campus resources, understanding the academic 
calendar and core curriculum, navigating the social scene, budgeting, and more. By the end of 
this course, students will have the confidence and knowledge needed to get good grades, 
create healthy habits, and crush their first year. 
 
Softball Camp                                                                 Robb DiGiacomo 
 
This camp is designed to help young players learn new skills, practice, and develop their 
knowledge of the game of softball with direction from one of the most accomplished college 
softball coaches in the region - Coach DiGiacomo.  Coach DiGiacomo has 21 years of head 
coaching experience, three NJCAA Division III national championships, and three National 
Coach of the Year awards.  Players should bring their own equipment (glove, helmet, and bat) 
and water bottle. 
 
Junior Volleyball                                                                            Feng Zhang 
                       
This program introduces kids to the basic techniques of volleyball.  Techniques taught and 
practiced will include passing, serving, setting, and spiking.  Junior volleyball aims to provide an 
opportunity for kids to learn the rules of volleyball, improve teamwork, and refine their volleyball 
skills. 
 
Intentional Yoga                        Susan Verrett Allen 
                       
Yoga can make your life better in so many ways.  To really grasp what yoga can do for you, 
you need to experience it.  The longer you stay with it, the deeper the love for your self will be.  
Vinyasa yoga means to place in a special way, with breath and with reverence. This is a slow, 
fluid class intended for participants to build strength, release stress, and move energy in the 
body. Intentional yoga is a way to embody presence, liberate the heart, and free the mind. See 
clearly, accept what is, set an intention, take a step, and repeat. Try it today in a judgement-
free setting. 
 
Afternoon English Tea                                                      Susan Vernick 
 
Started by the Duchess of Bedford, learn the basics of afternoon tea (low tea) in English society. 
But, with a fun twist where we learn what the royals started, but now all enjoy! We will enjoy 
afternoon tea (low tea) etiquette while enjoying tea (or cider/juice) scones, and more. Activities 
such as tea napkin folds, conversation/social skills, and other engaging activities and giveaways 
will make this an unforgettable afternoon. We use only English china, where fresh flowers and 
beautiful table settings will welcome you. Everyone leaves with a favor! (Feel free to dress 
casually or dress up if you choose). 
 



Intro to Tabletop Role-Playing Games                                    Liam Berger 
 
Interested in knowing more about Dungeons and Dragons and other role-playing games? Want 
to learn how to build characters and explore worlds? These games offer practice at creative 
storytelling, leadership, and acting in a safe space off stage. There aren’t board games or video 
games, rather most of the time you will use the outcome of dice rolls to tell the story. Each 
participant will receive their own polyhedral (many-sided) dice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Town of Pittsford – Recreation Department 
Proposed Programs for Summer 2022 

 
Program         Instructor 

Preschool 

Summer Fun Juniors Camp Recreation Staff 

Wiggles, Giggles, and Jiggles                               Lisa Magliato 

Lil Athletes Lisa Magliato 

Summer Sporty Tots      Mary Slaughter 

Summer Gymnastics      Mary Slaughter 

Soccer Shots for Youth      Soccer Shots Staff 

Irish Dance with Dunleavy       Amy Coppola 

Little Ninjas Martial Arts       James Creighton 

 

Youth & Teen 

Summer Fun Camp       Recreation Staff 

Adventure Camp        Recreation Staff 

The After School Program      Recreation Staff 

How Cool is That?       LQR Adventures Staff 

Disaster Preparedness Academy                LQR Adventures Staff 

Mealtime Manners I       Etiquette Chics 

Afternoon English Tea      Etiquette Chics 

Harry Potter's Hogwarts School of Etiquette   Etiquette Chics 

Geocaching 101       Recreation Staff 

Kids Kayak Level 1       Paul Twist 

Guided Standup Paddle Boarding  Tour    Paul Twist 

Intro to Whitewater Kayaking     Paul Twist 

Guided Flatwater Kayaking Tour     Paul Twist 

Doll Adventures                            Sherry Murray 

Summer Theater Camps     Edward Rocha 

Disney’s Newsies JR.     Edward Rocha 

Disney’s Frozen JR.     Edward Rocha 

Private Piano Lessons      Beth Werner 



Write Your College Application Essay   Sarah Nazarian 

Kids Spanish Fun Class     Lourdes de la Colina-Scofield 

First Aid for Kids       EPIC Trainings 

American Red Cross – Babysitter’s Training   Domenic Danesi 

Lifeguard Certification     Red Cross Instructor 

Safety First for Children      Domenic Danesi 

Basic First Aid for Children      Domenic Danesi 

Pittsford Ballet School      Karen Hanson 

Dance Camp      Katie Elizabeth 

Irish Dance with Dunleavy      Amy Coppola 

Irish Dance Camp       Amy Coppola 

FIT Kids: Fencers in Training     Rochester Fencing Club Staff 

Youth Beginner Fencing Camp    Rochester Fencing Club Staff 

Junior Tennis Camp       Jeff Wagstaff 

Junior Tennis Lessons      Jason Speirs 

Youth Conditioning       585 Fitness – Rob Tisa 

Youth Basketball       Glenn Anderson 

Irish Hurling Skills       Progressive Early Learning 

Running Club       Mary Slaughter  

Summer Gymnastics               Mary Slaughter 

Soccer Shots for Youth      Soccer Shots Staff 

Martial Arts for Youth      James Creighton 

A Horse’s Friend: Horsemanship Camp     A Horse’s Friend 

Horseback Camp for Kidz     Park Place Farms  

Youth Soccer Summer      Recreation Staff 

Edge11 Elementary Soccer Academy    Edge11 Soccer Staff 

Sports Camp for Kids      Ian Marshall 

Junior Golf        Erik Yaekel 

Advanced Junior Golf      Erik Yaekel 

Super Junior-Beginner      Erik Yaekel 

Advanced Super Junior Golf     Erik Yaekel 

FJ1 NFL Flag Football League     Felix Joyner 

Baton Twirling Lessons      Jessica Pereyra 



Yoga for Kids       Jessica Pereyra 

 

Adult Programs 

Guided Hikes on Pittsford Trails     Recreation Staff 

Historic Schoen Place Walking Tour    Bob Corby 

Erie Canal Cemetery Tour      Audrey Johnson & Vicki Profitt 

Fairchild Walking Tours                             Jack Butler 

Fabulous Furnishings      Peggi Heissenberger 

Custom Crafted Soap                       Beth Byrne 

Basic Cold Process Soap                          Beth Byrne 

Bath Salts                                                 Beth Byrne 

Bath Fizzies                                              Beth Byrne 

Pamper Those Tootsies!       Beth Byrne 

Cards for Kids!       Pat Miller 

Christmas in July       Pat Miller 

Summer Note Cards      Pat Miller 

Pittsford Ballet School      Karen Hanson  

Belly Dance        Deborah Robinson 

Just Dance!        Lindsey Miller 

Private Piano Lessons      Beth Werner 

Pre-Licensing 5 Hour Course               Jon DelVecchio    

Defensive Driving       Cindy St. George 

Becoming a Notary Public      Kristin Cavallaro 

Learn Spanish & Enhance Your Brain       Lourdes de la Colina-Scofield 

SAT Math Prep Course      Tine Andre  

American Red Cross CPR/AED     EPIC Trainings 

American Red Cross First Aid     EPIC Trainings 

Debbie MeVean Aerobics      Deborah McVean 

Martial Arts for Adults      James Creighton 

Martial Arts for Women      Tracy Maggio  

Zumba!        Carlos Chediak 

Pilates        Eva Pazral 

Yoga         Eva Pazral 



Pilates/Yoga Combo (Yogalates)     Eva Pazral 

Therapeutic Yoga       Kaitlyn Vittozzi 

Adult Beginner Golf       Erik Yaekel 

Adult Advanced Beginner Golf     Erik Yaekel 

Adult Short Game Clinic      Erik Yaekel 

Men’s Senior Golf Camp      Erik Yaekel 

Ladies’ Senior Golf Camp      Erik Yaekel 

A Horse’s Friend: Adult Horsemanship    A Horse’s Friend 

Women’s Soccer League      Recreation Staff 

 

 







































































PICKLEBALL
COURT  OPTIONS



Current Conditions
• 4 Pickleball Courts on Existing Tennis Courts



Additional Fence

Option 1
• 2 Pickleball Courts in place of 1 Tennis Court
• Add Fence
• Remove Pickleball Lines

Estimated Budget
$6,000



Additional Fence
and Gate

Shift Court Shift Court

Option 2
• 4 Pickleball Courts in place of 1 Tennis Courts
• Add Fence and Gate
• Shift 2 Courts and Nets / Remove Pickleball Lines

Estimated Budget
$16,000



Additional Fence
and Gate

Additional Fence
and Gate

Reconstruct Wall

Pave and
Acrylic Surface

Shift Court Shift Court

Option 2.5
• Additional Pickleball Court next to Basketball

Estimated Budget
$34,000



Option 3
• New Pickleball Court with Lights
• Remove Pickleball Lines on Existing Courts
• Less Parking

Estimated Budget
~$450,000



MEMORANDUM 
To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Cheryl Fleming, Personnel Director 

Date: March 16, 2022 

Regarding: Recommendations for Hiring/Personnel Adjustments 
 

For Meeting On: April 5, 2022 
 
 

1. The following employee(s) are recommended as a new hire, subject to successful completion 

of drug and background checks, based on the recommendation of the Functional 

Coordinator(s) for these areas:  

Name    Dept       Position   Rate   Date of Hire  

Richard Howk  Parks  Seasonal-Laborer  $14.50  04/04/2022 

Anthony Brott  Recreation Recreation Leader FT  $20.89  04/04/2022 

Armand Miale  Recreation Recreation Assistant PT $15.00  04/04/2022 

Abigail Farr  Recreation Recreation Assistant PT $13.20  04/07/2022 

Michelle Stenglein Recreation Recreation Assistant PT $15.00  04/07/2022 

Stephen Eddy  Court  Guard    $30.00  04/07/2022 

Paul Mosakowski Recreation Recreation Assistant PT $15.00  04/25/2022 

 

  This is subject to completion of the proper reviews and background checks for these candidates   

  and appropriate sign off by the Town Board representative.  

Name    Dept       Position   Rate   Date of Hire  

Richard Howk  Parks  Seasonal-Laborer  $14.50  04/04/2022 

Anthony Brott  Recreation Recreation Leader FT  $20.89  04/04/2022 

Armand Miale  Recreation Recreation Assistant PT $15.00  04/04/2022 

Abigail Farr  Recreation Recreation Assistant PT $13.20  04/07/2022 

Michelle Stenglein Recreation Recreation Assistant PT $15.00  04/07/2022 

Stephen Eddy  Court  Guard    $30.00  04/07/2022 

Paul Mosakowski Recreation Recreation Assistant PT $15.00  04/25/2022 

 

 

2. The following employee(s) are/is recommended for a status change and/or salary change due 

to a change in status. 

Name    Position Reason for Change  Rate          Effective Date 

Anastasia Taggart Library Page Additional Position  $13.20  04/11/2022 

 

Should the Board approve the above recommendation and personnel adjustment, the following    

resolution is being proposed, RESOLVED, that the Town Board approves the appointment for the  

following employee(s): 

Name    Position Reason for Change  Rate          Effective Date 

Anastasia Taggart Library Page Additional Position  $13.20  04/11/2022 

 


	01 Agenda
	01a 2nd page for indoor meeting
	02   A - Sewer District Extension JH-160 Resolution Creating District Memo
	02a  B - Sewer District Extension JH-160 Resolution Creating District
	02b  C - Sewer District Extension JH-160 Signed Petition
	03 Technology Dept. Proposed Projects Memo
	03a Technology Dept. Proposed Projects Presentation
	03b  Amendment  and  Transfer IT
	04 REVISION 2_ 03 15 22 T Bd min
	05  Resolution Memo Kilbourn
	05a Easement Release. Kilbourn Place
	05b  Sanitary Description  Map
	05c Notice of Permissive Referendum Kilbourn
	05d Resolution-Docuware Cloud Migration Proposal
	01 Resolution-Docuware Cloud Migration Proposal
	02 Town of Pittsford DocuWare Cloud Migration 36-Month SOS
	03 Town of Pittsford DocuWare Cloud 36-Month MSSA

	06 Budget Amendment
	06a Accounts Payable Listing
	06b Surplus
	06c  Court Audit Resolution
	06d 2021 Court Review Report
	06e Expense Report
	06f  Revenue Report
	06g  Additional Accounts Payable
	08  Renewal of RG&E Auburn Trail License
	08a Renewal of RG&E Auburn Trail License Amendment 2
	08b Set Bid Date for Installation and Repair of Concrete Sidewalks
	09 Summer 2022 Recreation Programs
	09a  2022 Event Infrastructure Contracts
	09b Town Board Pickleball Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6

	10  Hiring Resolution



